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KDDL Limited

(CIN - L33302HP1981PLC008123)
Registered Office: Plot No 3, Sector-Ill, Parwanoo, Distt. Solan, (H.P.) - 173220
Email: investors.relations@kddl.com, Website: www.kddl.com
Phone: 0172-2548223/24 & 27, Fax: 0172-2548302

NOTICE
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the 37th Annual General Meeting of KDDL Limited will be held at Hotel Timber Trail
Resorts, Parwanoo, Distt. Solan (H.P.) - 173220 on Friday, 11th August, 2017 at 12:30 pm to transact the following
business:
ORDINARY BUSINESS:
To receive, consider and adopt the audited Financial Statements of the Company (Standalone as well as
consolidated) for the financial year ended 31st March, 2017, the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors
thereon.
To declare dividend on Equity Shares.
To appoint a director in place of Mr. Vishal Satinder Sood, (DIN-01780814) who is liable to retire by rotation and
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.
To appoint Statutory Auditors and to fix their remuneration and in this regard, to consider and, if thought fit,
pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:-

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 139, 141 and 142 and other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactments thereof for the time being in force) M/s BSR & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, Gurgaon(Firm
Registration No. 101248W/W-100022), be and are hereby appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company, (in
place of Messrs Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, the retiring Auditor) for a term of two years
commencing from the Company's financial year ending March 31, 2018 to hold office from the conclusion of the
37" Annual General Meeting of the Company till the conclusion of the 39" Annual General Meeting subject to
ratification of their appointment by the Members at every intervening Annual General Meeting held after this
Annual General Meeting on such remuneration plus applicable taxes, out-of-pocket expenses etc., as may be
mutually agreed upon by the Board of Directors and the Statutory Auditors.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company including its Committee thereof and/or Mr.
Sanjeev Kumar Masown, Whole Time Director-cum- Chief Financial Officer or Mr. Raman K Sood, Company
Secretary be and are hereby severally authorized to do all such acts and take all such steps as may be considered
necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this Resolution.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

To appoint Mr. Jai Vardhan Saboo as a Non-Executive Director of the Company and in this regard, to consider
and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152, 161 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment
thereof for the time being in force), if any, and subject to articles of association and SEBI (LODR) Regulations,
2015 or any other applicable laws, rules, etc., if any, Mr. Jai Vardhan Saboo (DIN 00025499), who was appointed
as an additional director of the Company by the Board of Directors of the company w. e. f 12th December, 2016
and who holds office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting and in respect of whom a notice has been
received from a member proposing his name for the office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as a Non -
Executive Director of the company, liable to retire by rotation.”

To appoint Mr. Sanjiv Sachar as an independent, Non-Executive Director of the Company and in this regard, to consider
and ifthought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152, and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment
thereof for the time being in force), articles of association of the company, SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, or any
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other applicable laws, rules etc., if any, Mr. Sanjiv Sachar (DIN 02013812), who was appointed as an additional
director in the capacity of independent Director by the Board of Directors of the Company w. e. f 7" March 2017
and who holds office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting and in respect of whom the Company has
received a Notice in writing from a member proposing the name of Mr. Sanjiv Sachar as a candidate for the office
of Director of the Company and Mr. Sanjiv Sachar has submitted a declaration stating that he meets the criteria
forindependence as provided in section 149(6) of the Act and who is eligible for appointment be and is hereby
appointed as an Independent Director of the Company to hold office for a period of 5 (Five) Years from his
appointmenti.e. tillMarch 6,2022”

To approve amendment in existing Article 114 of the Articles of Association of the Company and in this regard
to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifications, the following resolution as a SPECIAL
RESOLUTION:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 14 and any other applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013, the existing Article 114 of the Articles of Association of the Company, be and is hereby
amended/altered to read as follows:

114. “The Directors may from time to time elect one of their members to be Chairman of the Board of Directors
and determine the period for which he is to hold office. The Directors may likewise appoint a vice Chairman of the
Board of Directors. The Chairman or Vice Chairman so appointed may also be appointed as Managing Director
and/ or Chief Executive Officer of the company and vice versa.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors or Company Secretary of the Company be and is hereby authorized
todoallactsandtake all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

To approve amendment of the Articles of Association of the Company by inserting a new article No. 114-A
after existing article 114 of articles of association and in this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with
or without modifications, the following resolution as a SPECIALRESOLUTION:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 14 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 and any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 the Articles of Association
of the Company be and are hereby altered as under, by inserting the following Article as 114-A after the present
Article 114 of the Articles of Association of the Company:

114-A Chairman Emeritus

(1) TheBoard shall be entitled to appoint any person who has rendered significant or distinguished services to the
Company or to the industry to which the Company's business relates or in the public field, as the Chairman
Emeritus of the Company, including ratification of any previous appointments made, from such period as the
board may decide.

(2) The Chairman Emeritus shall hold office until he resigns from his office or a special resolution to that effect is
passed by the membersin a general meeting.

(3) The Chairman Emeritus may attend any meetings of the Board or Committee thereof but shall not have any
rightto vote and shall not be deemed to be a party to any decision of the Board or Committee thereof.

(4) The Chairman Emeritus shall not be deemed to be a director for any purposes of the Act or any other statute or
rules made thereunder or these Articles including for the purpose of determining the maximum number of
Directors which the Company can appoint.

(5) The Board may provide such facilities and / or decide to make any payment in any manner for any services
rendered by the Chairman Emeritus to the Company.

(6) If at any time the Chairman Emeritus is appointed as a Director of the Company, he may, at his discretion,
retain the title of the Chairman Emeritus.”

To Approve re-appointment and remuneration of Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo as Chairman and Managing
Director and in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the
following resolution as a Special Resolution:
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“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to section 196, 197, 203 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and rules framed thereunder read with Schedule-V of the Companies Act, 2013, SEBI (LODR) regulations, 2015,
Articles of association of the company, and subject to the necessary approvals from Central Government, the
Statutory authorities and the Financial Institutions, if any, and all other statutory approval as may be required
from time to time, and subject to such conditions and modifications as may be prescribed by the approving /
consenting authority(ies) while granting such approvals, the consent of the Company, be and is hereby,
accorded for the re-appointment of Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo (DIN 00012158) with designation of Chairman and
Managing Director of the Company, w. e. f. 1% April, 2017, for a further period of three years, i.e., up to 31"
March, 2020, upon terms and conditions including remuneration as set out in the Explanatory Statement
appended herewith and the Board of Directors, be and is hereby authorised to alter and vary such terms of his
appointment and remuneration as may be agreed to by the Board of Directors and Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo so
as not to exceed the limits as specified in Schedule-V to the Companies Act, 2013.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company or any committee thereof be and is hereby
authorised to alter and / or vary the terms and conditions of the said appointment and / or enhance, alter or vary
the scope and quantum of remuneration, perquisites, benefits and other amenities payable to Mr. Yashovardhan
Saboo which shall be in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and / or rules made thereunder
and further to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary, proper or expedient for the purpose
of giving effect to this resolution and matters concerned therewith orincidental thereto.”

To Authorize investment in the subsidiary company and in this regard, to consider, and if thought fit, to pass,
with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to regulation 23(4) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015 as applicable and any amendments thereto as are made effective
from time to time and subject to such other approvals and sanctions of any authorities as may be necessary,
consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors to enter into

contract(s)/arrangement(s) with Ethos Limited, a material subsidiary within the meaning of the aforesaid
clause, and arelated party, on such terms and conditions as may be mutually agreed upon, for subscribing to its
paid up share capital, i.e. Equity and/or Preference share capital, subject, however, to that the value of this
contract/arrangement for investment in shares during the financial year shall not exceed in aggregate Rs.30
Croresincludinginvestments already made during previous financial year.”

To Authorize borrowings by way of inviting unsecured fixed deposits from shareholder of the company andin
this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as
an Ordinary Resolution:
“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of section 73 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
CompaniesAct, 2013 and the rules prescribed there under, approval of the Company, be and is hereby, accorded
to the Board of Directors of the Company to borrow money from its members by way of Fixed Deposits subject
to compliance of all the conditions stated under section 73(2) of the Act or any other applicable provisions of
the act, if any and subject to maximum limits provided under the act read with the Companies (Acceptance of
Deposits) Rules, 2014 asamended from time to time.
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Deposits accepted by the Company, may be cumulative or non-cumulative as per
the scheme framed by the Company and carrying rates of interest for periods varying from one year to three
years specified in the Circular to be specifically approved by the Board of Directors of the Company.
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of directors, be and are hereby, specifically authorised to do all such acts,
deeds and things as may be necessary to give effect to the above resolution and to settle any question, difficulty
ordoubtthat mayariseinthisregard.”

By Order of the Board

Date: 30th May, 2017 (R.K.Sood)
Place: Chandigarh Company Secretary
FCS-3722
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IMPORTANT NOTES:

1.

The Register of Members and the Share Transfer books of the Company will remain closed from 6th August,
2017 to 11th August 2017 (both days inclusive) for annual closing and determining the entitlement of the
shareholders to the dividend for 2016-17.

The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, which sets out details relating
to Special Business at the meeting, isannexed hereto.

AMEMBERENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY/ PROXIES TO
ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF. SUCH A PROXY/ PROXIES NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE
COMPANY. A person can act as proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in the
aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company.

The instrument of Proxy in order to be effective, should be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company,
duly completed and signed, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting. A Proxy form is
sent herewith. Proxy Form submitted on behalf of the Companies, societies etc., must be supported by an
appropriate resolution/authority, as applicable.

Members holding shares in electronic form are hereby informed that bank particulars registered against their
respective depository accounts will be used by the Company for payment of dividend. The Company or its
Registrars cannot act on any request received directly from the Members holding shares in electronic form for
any change of bank particulars or bank mandates. Such changes are to be advised only to the Depository
Participant of the Members. Members holding shares in physical form and desirous of either registering bank
particulars or changing bank particulars already registered against their respective folios for payment of
dividend are requested to write to the Company.

Under Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013, the amount of dividend remaining unpaid or unclaimed for a
period of seven years from the due date is required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund (IEPF), constituted by the Central Government.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) on 10th May, 2012 notified the IEPF (Uploading of information
regarding unpaid and unclaimed amounts lying with companies) Rules, 2012 (IEPF Rules), which is applicable to
the Company. The objective of the IEPF Rules is to help the shareholders ascertain status of the unclaimed
amounts and overcome the problems due to misplacement of intimation thereof by post etc. In terms of the
said IEPF Rules, the Company has uploaded the information in respect of the Unclaimed Dividends. The
Members who have not encashed their dividend warrants so far are requested to immediately return the outdated
warrants to the Company to enable the Company toissue D/Din lieu thereof.

Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India, has notified new rules namely “Investor Education and
Protection Fund authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 which have come into force
from 7th September, 2016 and “Investor Education and Protection Fund authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer
and Refund) Rules, 2017 which have come into force from 28th February, 2017” (IEPF Rules). The said rules,
amongst other matters, contain provision for transfer of all shares to DEMAT Account of IEPF authority in
respect of which the beneficial owner has not encashed any dividend warrant during last seven years.

Members are therefore requested to claim the unpaid / unclaimed amount(s) of dividend at the earliest.

To prevent fraudulent transactions, members are advised to exercise due diligence and notify the Company of
any change in address or demise of any member as soon as possible. Members are also advised not to leave
their demat account(s) dormant for long. Periodic statement of holdings should be obtained from the
concerned Depository Participantand holdings should be verified.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number
(PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, therefore,
requested to submit the PAN to their Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat
accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN details to the Company.

Details in respect of the Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting, forms
integral part of the notice. The Directors have furnished the requisite declarations for their appointment/re-
appointment.
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J




KDDL Limited

10.

13.

Electronic copy of the Annual Report for 2016-17 is being sent to all the members whose email IDs are
registered with the Company/Depository Participants(s) for communication purposes unless any member
has requested for a hard copy of the same. For members who have not registered their email address,
physical copies of the Annual Reportfor 2016-17 is being sentin the permitted mode.

Electronic copy of the Notice of the 37th Annual General Meeting of the Company inter alia indicating the
process and manner of e-voting along with Attendance Slip and Proxy Form is being sent to all the members
whose email IDs are registered with the Company/Depository Participants(s) for communication purposes
unless any member has requested for a hard copy of the same. For members who have not registered their
email address, physical copies of the Notice of the 37" Annual General Meeting of the Company inter alia
indicating the process and manner of e-voting along with Attendance Slip and Proxy Form is being sent in
the permitted mode.

Members may also note that the Notice of the 37th Annual General Meeting and the Annual Report for
2016-17 will also be available on the Company's website www.kddl.com for their download. The physical
copies of the aforesaid documents will also be available at the Company's Registered Office in Parwanoo for
inspection during normal business hours on working days. Even after registering for e-communication,
members are entitled to receive such communication in physical form, upon making a request for the same,
by post free of cost. For any communication, the shareholders may also send requests to the Company's
investor email id: investor.complaints@kddl.com or raman.sood@kddl.com

Voting through electronic means:

I. Incompliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended up to date, the Company is pleased to
provide member's facility to exercise their right to vote at the 37th Annual General Meeting (AGM) by
electronic means and the business may be transacted through e-Voting platform provided by Karvy.

The instructions for e-voting are as under:
i. Use the following URL for e-voting: Karvy website: http://evoting.karvy.com

ii. Shareholders of the Company holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on
therecord date, i.e. 4th August, 2017 (End of Day) may cast their vote electronically.

iii. Enterthelogincredentialsi.e.User ID and password mentioned in the attendance slip attached with
the Annual Report. Please follow the instructions given in the e-voting portal.

iv. After enteringthe detailsappropriately, click on LOGIN.

You will reach the Password change menu wherein you are required to mandatorily change your
password. The new password shall comprise of minimum 8 characters with at least one upper case
(A-Z), one lower case (a-z), one numeric value (0-9) and a special character. The system will prompt
you to change your password and update any contact details like mobile, email etc. on first login. You
may also enter the secret question and answer of your choice to retrieve your password in case you
forget it. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take
utmost care to keep your password confidential.

vi. Youneedto loginagain with the new credentials.
vii. On successful login, the system will prompt you to select the EVENT, i.e. KDDL Limited.

viii.On the voting page, enter the number of shares as on the cut off date under FOR/AGAINST or
alternately you may enter partially any numberin FOR and partially in AGAINST but the total number
in FOR/AGAINST taken together should not exceed the total shareholding. You may also choose the
option ABSTAIN.

ix. Shareholders holding multiple folios/demat account shall choose the voting process separately for
each folios/demat account.

Cast your vote by selecting an appropriate option and click on SUBMIT. A confirmation box will be
displayed. Click OK to confirm, else CANCEL to modify. Once you confirm, you will not be allowed to
modify your vote. During the voting period, shareholders can login any number of times till they
have voted on the resolution.
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xi. Once the vote on the resolution is cast by the shareholder, he shall not be allowed to change it
subsequently.
xii. The Portal will be open for e-voting from 8th August2017 at 10:00 am to 10th August, 2017 till 5:00p.m.
xiii.In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for shareholders and e-
voting User Manual for shareholders available at the download section of http://evoting.karvy.com or
contact Karvy Computershare Pvt. Ltd at Tel No. 1800 345 4001 (toll free).
. The Company has appointed Mr. Ajay Arora, Company Secretary, whole time in Practice (ICSI Membership

No. FCS - 2191 and Certificate of Practice No. 993) as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize and collate the e-voting
processinafairandtransparent manner.

. The Scrutinizer shall within a period not exceeding three working days from the conclusion of the e-voting
period unblock the votes in the presence of at least two witnesses not in the employment of the Company
and make a Scrutinizer's Report of the votes cast in favour or against, if any, forthwith to the Chairman of the
Company.

. The results shall be declared on or after the AGM of the Company. The results along with the Scrutinizer's
Report shall be placed on the Company's website www.kddl.com and on the website of Karvy.

. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy
(PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen
signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer through e-mail
to Mr. Ajay Arora, Practicing Company Secretary at his e-mail address ajaykcs@gmail.com with a copy
marked to Company Secretary, KDDL Ltd, Chandigarh at raman.sood@kddl.com

All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Explanatory Statement shall be open for
inspection at the Registered Office of the Company during normal business hours (11.00 am to 2.00 pm) on all
working days except Saturdays, up to and including the date of the Annual General Meeting of the Company.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF THE SPECIAL BUSINESS PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013

ITEMNO.5

Mr. Jai Vardhan Saboo was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company at the Board of Directors meeting held
on 12th December, 2016 who holds office till this Annual General meeting of the company. Notice has been received
from member proposing Mr. Jai Vardhan Saboo as candidate for the office of Director of the company. He is not
disqualified from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act and applicable provisions of the
articles of association and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, and has given his consent to act as Director.

Brief resume of Mr. Jai Vardhan Saboo, nature of his expertise in specific functional area and names of companies in
which he hold directorships and memberships/ chairmanships of Board Committees, is provided in this Notice. Mr.
Saboo is not the member /Chairman of any Committee of the Board of the Company. Mr. Jai Vardhan Saboo does not
hold any shares of the Company. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the company in its meeting held on
20th May, 2017 has also recommended the appointment of Mr. Jai Vardhan Saboo as non executive director of the
company, liable toretire by rotation.

The terms and conditions of appointment of the above director shall be open for inspection by the Members at the
Registered Office of the Company during normal business hours on any working days from 11.00 am to 2.30 pm and
shallalso be available on the website of the company.

A brief profile of Mr. Jai Vardhan Saboo whose appointment is proposed has been given in the annexure attached to
this notice.

Except Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo and the appointee, none of the other Directors and/or Key Managerial Personnel of
the Company and theirrelativesisinterested in the aforesaid resolution.

The Board recommends this Resolution for the approval of the shareholders.
ITEMNOG6
Mr. Sanjiv Sachar, was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company w.e.f. 7" March 2017 by the Board of
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Directors of the Company, who holds office till this Annual General meeting of the company. Notice has been received
from member proposing Mr. Sanjiv Sachar as candidate for the office of Director of the company. He is not disqualified
from being appointed as a Directorin terms of Section 164 of the Act and has given his consent to act as Director.

In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Sanjiv Sachar, as the Independent Director, fulfill the conditions specified in Sections
149, 152 and Schedule-1V of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of
Directors) Rules, 2013 and requirements of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
Further, the aforesaid Independent Director have given a declaration to the Board of Directors to the effect that he
meets the criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015.

Pursuant to Sections 149, 152, Schedule-IV of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment and
Quialification of Directors) Rules, 2014, and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, it is proposed to appoint Mr. Sanjiv Sachar as
Independent, Non-Executive Director of the Company up to 5 (five) consecutive years w.e.f date of his appointment i.e. till
6th March, 2022. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the company in its meeting held on 20th May, 2017
has also recommended the appointment of Mr. Sanjiv Sachar asindependent, Non-Executive Director of the Company.

In compliance with the provisions of section 149 read with Schedule-IV of the Act, the appointment of Mr. Sanjiv Sachar
as Independent Director is now being placed before the members for their approval. The terms and conditions of
appointment of the above directors shall be open for inspection by the Members at the Registered Office of the
Company during normal business hours on any working day from 11.00amto 2.30 pm

A brief profile of Mr. Sanjiv Sachar as the Independent Director whose appointment is proposed has been given in the
annexure attached to this notice.

Except Mr. Sanjiv Sachar, none of the other Directors or Key managerial personnel or their relatives are either
concerned orinterested in this resolution.

The Board recommends the approval of shareholders for this Resolution.

ITEMNO.7

The Articles of Association of the Company does not contain a provision that the position of Chairman may be held by

Managing Director or vice versa. To enable such a provision as required under Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013,
itis proposed to amend the Article No. 114 of the Articles of Association.

The proposed amendment in the Articles of Association of the Company requires the approval of the members in the
General Meeting. The Board recommends the passing of the resolution as set out in Item 7 as a Special Resolution. A
copy of the new Articles of Association is available for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company during
business hours on any working day between 11:00 am to 2:30 pm up to the date of the Annual General Meeting and is
also available on the website of the Company at www.kddl.com.

None of the Directors or their relatives and Key managerial personnel or their relatives is either concerned or
interested in this resolution.

The Board recommends the approval of shareholders for this Resolution.
ITEM NO.8

Under Section 14 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of a company cannot, except with the consent of
the membersinageneral meeting by a special resolution, amend the Articles of Association of the Company.

It is proposed to insert new Article 114-A in the Articles of Association after the existing Article 114 so as to include
provision relating to Chairman Emeritus on the terms mentioned therein.

None of the Directors or their relatives and Key managerial personnel or their relatives are either concerned or
interested in this resolution.

The Board recommends the approval of shareholders for this Resolution.

ITEMNO.9

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on 30th May, 2017, has re-appointed Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo as Chairman

and Managing Director of the company w.e.f. 1" April, 2017 for a further period of 3 (three) yearsi.e., up to 31st March,
2020, subject to the approval of shareholders.

(7]
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The terms and conditions relating to remuneration of Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo as approved by the Board of Directors
on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, are given below:-

Particulars 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20
Per Month Per Annum | Per Month Per Annum | Per Month Per Annum

Salary (10% annual increment) 600,000 7,200,000 | 660,000 7,920,000 |726,000 8,712,000
Perquisites

a) Fully furnished rent free 1,830,000 1,938,000 2,056,800
accommodation (separately agreement
to be executed considering

the market value)

b)10% of value of furniture provided 257,193 257,193 257,193

c) Reimbursement of charges for water,
electricity and gas expenses, subject to
maximum of Rs. 10,20,000 p.a 600,000 600,000 600,000

d) Medical Reimbursement : Expenses
incurred by him and family subject to a
ceiling of One month's salary in a year or
three month's salary over a period

of three years. 600,000 660,000 726,000

e) Personal Accident Insurance and/or
Medical Insurance subject to a
maximum of Rs. 50,000 per annum 50,000 50,000 50,000

f) Club Fees for two clubs subject to a
maximum of Rs. 30,000 per annum 30,000 30,000 30,000

g) Perquisites on a/c of Superannuation
exceeding Rs. 1.50 lac 930,000 1,038,000 1,156,800

Total Perquisites 4,297,193 4,573,193 4,876,793

Bonus: Maximum Rs. 50,00,000 based
on the performance as per the

parameters to be fixed from time to
time by the remuneration committee. 5,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000

*Total Payable 16,497,193 17,493,193 18,588,793

* Subject to maximum Limits as per Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made there under from time to time

Other perquisites (not included in the computation of the ceiling on remuneration, specified under applicable
provisions of Companies Act).

Contribution to Provident Fund 864,000 950,400 1,045,440
Contribution to Superannuation Fund 150,000 150,000 150,000
Gratuity 346,154 380,769 418,846
Total 1,360,154 1,481,169 1,614,286
Grand Total 17,857,347 18,974,362 20,203,079

Earned Leave: Encashment of un-availed earned leaves as per the Company's rules at the end of each year on
his request or at the end of the tenure.

Provision of Car(s) for use on Company's business and mobile phone(s) or telephone(s) at residence will not be
considered as perquisites. Personal long distance calls on telephone(s), if any, for private purpose shall be billed by
the Company and recovered through hisimprest from time to time.

(8 )
= J




KDDL Limited

The above remuneration and perquisites shall be subject to the limits allowed under respective schedule-V
of the Companies Act, 2013 or any modification(s) or amendment(s) in force from time to time and the
same shall also be considered as minimum remuneration in the event of absence orinadequacy of profits.

The approval of the members is being sought to the terms, conditions and stipulations for the appointment
of Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo as Chairman & Managing Director of the Company and the remuneration
payable to him. The terms and conditions proposed by the Board of Directors at their meeting held on
30.05.2017 are keeping in line with the remuneration package that is necessary for the important position
to encourage good professional managers with a sound career record to important position as that of the
Chairman and Managing Director. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the company in its
meeting held on 20th May, 2017 has also recommended the proposed appointment and Remuneration of
Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo.

None of the Directors or their relatives and Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except
Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo and Mr. Jai Vardhan Saboo, is either concerned orinterested in the resolution.

This Explanatory Statement together with the accompanying Notice may also be regarded as an abstract
and memorandum under Section 190 of the Companies Act, 2013 and also as a disclosure under SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015. The brief profile of Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo is given with annexure
accompanying this notice.

The Directors recommend this special resolution for your approval.
ITEMNO. 10

Inthe Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 8th November 2016, the company was authorized to invest
anamount up to Rs. 30 Crores during the financial year in its subsidiary company, Ethos Limited for meeting
its growth and expansion plans in following manner:-

1. Rs. 15 crores by way of subscribing in 1,063,829 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each at the price of Rs. 141/-
pershare;

2.Rs. 15 Crores by way of subscribing in 15,00,000 12% redeemable preference shares of Rs. 100/- each
foraterm of 3years

Upto the financial year ended 31st March 2017, the company has already invested Rs. 8 crores in equity
share capital of the subsidiary company. Your permission is required to invest the balance amounti.e.Rs. 7
crore as equity and Rs. 15 crore as Preference share capital, of Ethos Limited, under the provisions of SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015 as Ethos Limited is a related party to KDDL Limited and other applicable
provisions for proposed investment of funds of the Holding Company in Subsidiary Company by way of
subscription toits Equity and Preference Share Capital.

Owing to the materiality of the transaction for investment of funds of the holding company in the subsidiary
company by way of subscription to its share capital, this contract / arrangement requires the approval of
members by way of special resolution.
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The particulars of contract / arrangement are as under :

Name(s) of the related party: Ethos Limited.

Name of the director or key managerial| Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo
personnel whoisrelated, if any: Mr. Anil Khanna.

Nature of relationship: Directorsin both companies.

Monetary Value: Estimated aggregate contract/arrangement value for
the matter proposed in the Resolution will not exceed
Rs30crores.
Nature, material terms, monetary value and| This Investment is being made pursuant to Section 186 of
particulars of the contract or arrangement the Companies Act, 2013

Investment of an amount stated in clause 4 above, for
subscribing to the share capital of Ethos Limited will be at g
valuation to be determined by a valuer as per provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013, wherever applicable. Thig
Investment is being made by the Company keepingin view
the funds requirement of its subsidiary Company for
meetingitslong term growth and expansion plans.

Any other information relevant or important Nil
for the members to take a decision on the
proposed resolution:

Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo and Mr. Anil Khanna and their relatives are concerned and interested in this resolution in
terms of The Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI(LODR) Regulations, 2015. None of the other Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel and their relatives may be deemed to be concerned or interested in the aforesaid
Resolution.

The Board of Directors of the Company believes that the aforesaid Investment in its subsidiary company is in the
best interest of the Company and hence, recommends the special resolution for the approval of the shareholders.

ITEMNO. 11

Section 73(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 makes it mandatory for the Company to obtain approval of General
Meeting before accepting any borrowing from the shareholder by way of Fixed Deposits.

As the conditions and maximum limits for accepting deposits from the Shareholders has been laid down in the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 so approval of the shareholders is required for accepting
deposits after complying with all the conditions stated in Section 73(2) of the Act and within the limits prescribed
underthe Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

In view of the foregoing, it is therefore necessary for the shareholders to pass an ordinary resolution required
under section 73(2) and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 as set outin this resolution.

None of the Directors of the Company and /or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives is
either concerned or interested in this resolution.

The Board recommends the resolution for the approval of the Members.

By Order of the Board

Date: 30th May, 2017 (R.K.Sood)
Place: Chandigarh Company Secretary
FCS 3722
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Brief Resume of the Directors being appointed/re-appointed at the Annual General Meeting.

Name of the Director

Mr. Vishal Satinder Sood

Mr. Jai Vardhan Saboo

Mr. Sanjiv Sachar

Date of Birth

27-02-1972

07-07-1963

04-10-1957

Date of first Appointment

02-09-2015 as additional
director

12-12-2016 as additional Director

07-03-2017 as additional
director

Qualification and
experience in specific
functional areas

Mr. Vishal S. Sood is B.E. in
computer Science and
MBA from IIM
Ahmedabad. He has
worked in investment
Banking at Kotak, SSKI and
SBI Capital Markets. He
has spent three years as an
ERP consultant with
Quinnox. His primary area
of focus is in growth
equity.

Mr. Jai V. Saboo, is an M.Tech from
Virgina Tech University, MBA from
Kellogg School of Management
and is a fellow of Wharton School
at Penn State. He has over 20
years of international business
experience spanning the US, China
and Far East. He has successfully
built and run companies in the US,
including Concept Software and
Harmonia Inc. He has been
intimately involved with TIE (The
Indus Entrepreneurs) and is an
active member of the Indian Angel
Investors Network (IAN)

Mr. Sanjiv Sachar has a
Bachelor degree (Honours)
from Delhi University Hindu
College and is a Fellow of the
Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. He was
previously with A.F. Ferguson
as a Auditor, Senior Consultant
and thereafter worked as
Senior Manager Finance in SRF
Nippondenso before setting up
independent consulting
practice. He is the founding
Partner of Egon Zehnder
International, India For the
period 2003-2008, he was the
India Country Head. He is a
core member of the Firm's
Global Financial Services and
Industrial Practice and leads
the CFO practice in India. He
has extensive experience of
handling cross border Non
Executive Director, CEO and
Senior Functional Head
mandates.

List of other companies in
which Directorship held

SAIF Advisors P Ltd
Manpasand Bevereges Ltd
Pennar Industries Ltd
Zooropa Foods P Ltd
Lightfoot Consulting P Ltd
Senco Gold Ltd

Fizzy Foodlabs P Ltd.
Emtex Engineering P Ltd

Swades Capital LLC
Infoscient Inc.

NIL

Chairman/Member of the
Committees of Board of
other companies in which
he is a Director

Senco Gold Ltd:
Nomination &
Remuneration Committee
( Member)

Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee
( Member)

Chairman/Member of the
Committees of the Board
of the Company

Nil

Member of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee

Number of Shares held in
the company

NIL

Relationship with any
Director(s) of the
company

Related with
Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo
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Statement giving information required under Part-ll Section-Il, Sub-Clause (iv) to the Schedule V of
the Companies Act, 2013 for payment of remuneration to Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo, Chairman and
Managing Director of the Company

I. General Information Remarks

(1) Nature of Industry The Company operates in light engineering industry and
is engaged principally in manufacture of watch
components.

(2)Date or expected date of commencement of | Commercial production started in 1983.
commercial production

(3) In case of new companies, expected date of | N.A.
commencement of activities as per project approved
by financial institutions appearing in the prospectus

(4) Financial performance based on given indicators The financial performance is given in the enclosed
Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss of the
Company. The performance of the Company as on
31.03.2017 are given below

(Rs. in Million as on 31.03.2017)

Net Worth 1128.04

Turnover (gross) 1308.29

Net profit after tax 71.47

Dividend declared 15% i.e. Rs. 1.50 per share

(5) Foreign investments or collaborators, if any There is no foreign technical collaboration in operation at

present. The details of foreign investments are as follows:-

Sr.|Name of Investor No. of Shares(Rs. 10/- each)
1. | SAIF India V Fll Holdings Ltd. 1008400
2. |SAIF Partners India V Ltd. 754716
3. |Radexpo AG 48000
4. | Foreign Portfolio Investors 502532
Total 2,313,648
Il. Information about the Appointee Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo
(1) Background details He is BA (Hons.), PGDBM (IIMA) and has

experience of 36 years. He is a promoter director
and is with the Company since inception.

(2) Past remuneration During year 2016-17 (in Rs.)
Salary 47,19,000
Perquisites 298,476
Performance Bonus 24,00,000
Total 7,417,476

)
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(3) Recognition or awards

He has been conferred with “Udyog Ratna” Award by PHDCCI in 2005.
He was past Chairman of Cll, Chandigarh during 2002

(4) Job profile and his

suitability

He is overall incharge of the Company as Chief Executive Officer and
looks after new initiatives/ expansion projects and export growth.

(5) Remuneration proposed

Details of proposed remuneration of Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo are given in
the explanatory statement of the accompanying notice.

(6)Comparative remuner-
ation profile with respect to
industry, size of the
Company, profile of the
position and person (in case
of expatriates the relevant
details would be w.r.t. the
country of his origin).

Remuneration package is commensurate with his competence and
responsibility in the Company and also with remuneration paid by
comparable companies for similar positions.

(7) Pecuniary relationship
directly or indirectly with the
Company, or relationship
with the managerial
personnel, if any.

He is a director in the Company since inception. The details of
remuneration received by Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo during 2016-17 are
given above. Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo holds directly and indirectly 13.93%
shares in the company and besides his relationship with Mr. Jai Vardhan
Saboo does not have any relationship with any other managerial personal.

I1l. Other Information:

(1) Reasons of loss or inadequate profit

Due to major slow down in Watch Market leading to
declinein orders from exports.

improvement

(2) Steps taken or proposed to be taken for

Cost Reduction at all levels coupled with capacity
consolidation and building manufacturing excellence
will result in improved profitability.

profits in measurable terms

(3) Expected increase in productivity and

The Company anticipates an appreciable rise in the
profits with the revival of the economy and better
market conditions in the international scenario.

IV. Disclosures:

The required disclosures have been mentioned in the
corporate Governance Report attached to this Annual
Report

d
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

Dear Members,

Your Directors present this 37" Annual Report together with the Audited Accounts of the Company for the

financial year ended 31" March, 2017.
OPERATIONS AND PROSPECTS
Financial Results (Standalone and Consolidated)

The summary of operating results for the year 2016-17 and appropriation of divisible profitsis given below:

Particulars

Standalone

Consolidated

{Rs. in million}

2016-17

2015-16

2016-17

2015-16

Gross Operating Income

Profit before interest, depreciation and exceptional item

Less: Finance Cost

13083

238.7
551

12344

228.2
62.2

4605.7

3012
143.7

45422

3415
150.2

Gross Profit

183.6

166.0

157.5

191.3

Less: Depraciation and amortisation

Profit before exceptional Items and tax
Less/{Add): Exceptional itams

Profit Befare tax

Less: Provision for Income Tax, Deferred Tax
Profit after tax but befare minority Interest

Less: Share in Profit / {Loss) of associates

Adjustment for Minority interest

2.5
111.1
0.0
111.1
356

1.5
0.0

0.0

B8.9
57.1

0.0
57.1
313

£5.8
0.0

0.0

116.7
40.8

0.0
40.8
40.0

0.8
0.0

57

112.3
79.0
0.0
79.0
371

419
01

Net Profit / (Loss) for the Year

6.5

Add: Profit brought forward fraom previous year

Profit available for appropriation

Appropriated as under:

Deffered tax adjustments for earlier years
Transfer of Reserves of Joint venture {SIDL) on

account of acquisition of remaining 0% shares
Transfer to Minority reserve

Proposed Dividend
Corporate Dividend Tax

Transfer to General Reserve
Dividend on Cumulative Preference Shares [Net of Excass
Provision)

Total Appropriation

Surplus carried forward to Balance Sheet
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PERFORMANCE AND PROJECTIONS

During the year under review, the Company achieved consolidated sales revenue of Rs. 4606 million against Rs. 4542
millionin the previous year, agrowth of 1.4%. Profit before tax declined from Rs. 79 million to Rs. 40.8 million.

Sales revenue from manufacturing operations on standalone basis grew by 6% to Rs. 1308 Million from Rs. 1234
Million in the previous year. The company earned net profit after tax of Rs. 72 million against Rs. 66 million in the
previousyear.

Sales revenue in ETHOS, the retail business of the company decreased from Rs. 3287 million in the previous year
to Rs. 3276 million, registering a decline of 0.3%;the loss before tax increased to Rs. 74.8 million from Rs. 46.2
millionin previous year.

Manufacturing Business Segments

The main revenue of the manufacturing business of from watch components segment. The Swiss watch market,
the main destination for our exports, faced one of its worst years in 3 decades, and this impacted our sales
significantly. Despite the very soft export market conditions the revenue of the company from watch components
improved marginally by 1%; the improved domestic market helped significantly. The other major segment of
revenue is from the precision engineering business, wherein the company registered a growth of 28% over the
previous year. The revenue growth from domestic and exports market was 45% and 15% respectively. The
revenue from ornamental packaging business of the company witnessed a decline of 3%.

We are continuing the move to consolidate and restructure the watch components manufacturing facilities. This
is being supplemented by multiple initiatives to enhance capabilities to manufacture more complex products and
improved productivity and delivery compliance. Better results even in a sluggish market are already visible and
we expect larger gains as the market conditions improve during the year.

The revenue from the precision engineering business of the Company is expected to maintain a healthy growth as
we continue to expand our capabilities and capacity. Your company has established its reputation as a quality
supplier with the ability to meet sophisticated customer needs. By focusing on the vital levers of operational
performance while adding key technical capabilities and show-casing our capabilities at leading international
trade exhibitions and on digital platforms, we are confident of healthy growth and returnsin the ensuing periods.

The expansion project for the precision engineering business is progressing on schedule. The Company continues
to believe that this business segment will be a major source of growth and profitability in the future.

Retail Business Segments:-

FY 16-17 has been an extremely challenging year for the luxury watch retail business. Close on the heels of the
introduction of PAN requirement for transactions above Rs. 2 lakhs, there were further regulatory changes that
were enacted. In July 2016, a new requirement for collecting TCS for all transaction in cash above Rs. 3 lakhs was
introduced. Thereafter, on November 8, 2017, the government banned all Rs. 500 and Rs. 1000 notes.
Subsequently, an announcement was made in the Union Budget 2017, that cash transactions above Rs. 2 lakhs
would be banned with effect from 1 April 2017.

These changes have had a cumulative impact on the revenues of the company. The sales of the company have
declined by 3% over the sales of the previous year from Rs. 328.6 crores to Rs. 327.3 crores. The impact of these
regulatory changes was also felt on the margins of the company. The decline in sales and the margins of the
company percolated to the EBIDTA level, which declined from 2.2%in FY15-16t0 1.2% in FY16-17. The loss for the
year FY16-17 stood atRs. 7.48 crores.

However, the factors that made the market opportunity for luxury watches attractive are still as robust as they
were before these regulatory changes. The penetration of luxury watches continues to remain low, the number of
HNI households continues to rise and the demographics continue to remain favorable. Your Company is
recalibrating its strategy to realign with the new environment with a greater emphasis on accessible luxury price
points, and sharper focus on marginimprovement, operating leverage and capital efficiency.

{15 }
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The Companyis also investing in its omni-channel capabilities with a view to provide a seamless connect between
the digital and physical stores. Further, the Company is expanding its footprint of stores to cities where the
Company has little or no presence. In this regard, the Company has signed up 7 new locations and continues to
scout for more opportunities for growth.

The Company's Swiss subsidiary, Pylania SA in Switzerland reports financial performance as per the expected
levels, made possible by adding some new streams of the revenue and curtailing overheads. The recently
implemented “Swiss Made” regulations and guidelines in Switzerland will create new opportunities for the watch
component business of the Company through Pylania.

During the year, the former Joint Venture company, Satva Jewellery and Design Limited (SJDL) (50:50 with Pascal
Vincent Vaucher, SA of Switzerland), became a 100% subsidiary of KDDL. Now the joint venture agreement has
been terminated and your company’s Board has approved merger of this company with KDDL for greater
efficiency in operations and better utilization of resources and assets of SIDL.

LISTING OF SHARES

The equity shares of the company are listed at National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. (NSE) and Bombay Stock
Exchange Ltd. (BSE). The Company has paid the Annual Listing Fees to both the stock exchanges for the financial
year2017-18.

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURE OR ASSOCIATES

As per the provisions of Section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Accounts)Rules, 2014, a
separate statement containing the salient features of the financial statements of the subsidiary Companies/
Associate Companiesis preparedin Form AOC-1and the same s enclosed as Annexure-1to this Report.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated financial statements have been prepared by the Company's Management in accordance with the
requirements of Accounting Standard 21 issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) and as
per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

As per the provisions of Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has placed separate audited
accounts of its subsidiaries on its website www.kddl.com and a copy of separate audited financial statements of
its subsidiaries will be provided to the shareholders at their requests.

EXTRACT OF ANNUALRETURN

The extract of Annual Return, in Form MGT -9 for the Financial Year 2016-17 has been enclosed with this report as
Annexure 2.

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS

The detail of number of meetings of the Board held during the financial year 2016-17 forms part of the Report on
Corporate Governance in terms of Regulation 34(3) of Securities & Exchange Board of India ( Listing obligations
and Disclosure requirements) Regulations, 2015.

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Inaccordance with the provisions of section 134(3)(c) of The Companies Act, 2013 the Board confirms and report that:-

(a)  inthe preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along
with proper explanation relating to material departures;

the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period;

the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,2013 for safeguarding the assets of the company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and otherirregularities;

( 16 |
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(d)  thedirectors had preparedthe annual accountson agoing concern basis; and

(e)  the directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

(f)  the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE POLICY

The Board of Directors has framed a policy which lays down a framework in relation to remuneration of Directors,
Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel of the Company. This policy also lays down criteria
for selection and appointment of Board Members. The detail of this policy is explained in the Report on Corporate
Governance which forms part of this report.

AUDITORS AND THEIR REPORT

As per the provisions of section 139 of The Companies Act, 2013, other relevant rules and as per resolution
passed by the shareholders, the term of office of M/s Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants,
Statutory Auditors of the Company, who were appointed for a period of two years at the 35th Annual General
Meeting of the company, expires with the conclusion of this Annual General meeting.

Further, the company has received offer from M/s BSR & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration
No.101248W/W-100022)for appointment of Statutory auditors of the company for a period of two years and as
per terms of appointment, their appointment is subject to ratification by shareholders in the ensuing Annual
General Meeting. The Company has received a letter from them to the effect that their appointment, if made,
would be within the prescribed limits under section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and that they are not
disqualified for such appointment within the meaning of section 141 of the Companies Act,2013.

The Notes on Accounts referred to in the Auditors' Report are self-explanatory and therefore do not call for any
further comments.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under, the Company
has appointed M/s P. S. Dua & Associates, a firm of Company Secretaries (C.P. No.3934.) to undertake the
Secretarial Audit of the Company. The Secretarial Audit Report in prescribed format MR-3 given by aforesaid
Secretarial Auditorsis annexed to this Board Report as Annexure 3 and forms anintegral part of this report.

There is no qualification or observation made by the Secretarial Auditorsin their report.
PARTICULARS OF LOAN, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Securities, and Investments covered under Section 186 of the Companies Act,
2013 given during the year under review have been given under Annexure - 4 to the Directors Report.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in Section 188(1) of the Companies Act
2013 forthe Financial Year 2016-17 in the prescribed Form AOC 2 has been enclosed with the report as Annexure-4.

AMOUNTS TRANSFERRED TO RESERVES
The Board of Directors of the Company has decided to transfer Rs 20 million to its General Reserves.
DIVIDEND

Your directors have recommended a dividend of 15%i.e. Rs. 1.50 per equity share for the year ended 31st March,
2017.Thedividend shall be paid after the approval of the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.

The total financial outgo of the dividend to be paid to shareholders will be approximately Rs. 19.57 million
(inclusive of Dividend Distribution Tax).

The dividend payout for the year under review has been formulated in accordance with the Company's policy to
pay sustainable dividend linked to long term growth objectives of the company.
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TRANSFER OF UNPAID AND UNCLAIMED AMOUNTS TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND

Interms of Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013, the company has duly transferred the Unclaimed Dividend up
to the financial years 2007-08 to the Investor Education and Protection Fund established by the Central
Government. As no dividend was declared during 2008-09, hence no amount was required to be transferred to
the said fund during the year.

MATERIAL CHANGES AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

There are no Material changes and commitments in the business operations of the Company from the financial
year ended 31st March, 2017 to the date of signing of the Director's Report.

There are no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators and Courts that would impact the going
concern status of the Company and its future operations.

RISKMANAGEMENT POLICY

The risk management framework defines the risk management approach of the Company and includes periodic
review of such risks and also documentation, mitigating controls and reporting mechanism of such risks.

Some of the risks that the Company is exposed to are:

Risks of Specific Nature

Company as a part of normal business monitoring review and development plans, identifies the specific risks for
each business segment and develops necessary action plan to minimise the impact of same on business
performance. Based on the present operations and areas of interest for the company, following specific nature
risks are identified:

Risks due to decline in overall demand for watches and over dependence on watch segment;

Risks pertaining to over dependence on few customers;

Foreign Exchange Risks;

Risk related to availability of Skilled manpower;

Risks related to compliance and statutory requirements
Risk Strategy

Company recognizes that risk is an integral and unavoidable component of business and is committed to
managing the risk in a proactive and effective manner. The Company believes that the Risk cannot be eliminated
butitcan be better managed by
Transferred to another party, who is willing to take risk, say by buying an insurance policy or entering into a
forward contractin case of business involving use of Foreign exchange;
Reduced, by adopting good internal controls;
Avoided, by not enteringinto risky businesses;
Retained, to either avoid the cost of trying to reduce risk or in anticipation of higher profits by taking on
more risk, and;
Shared, by following a middle path between retaining and transferring risk.
Risk Management Framework

Company adopts systematic approach to mitigate risks associated with accomplishment of objectives,
operations, revenues and compliance with the regulations. The Company believes that this would ensure
mitigating steps proactively and help to achieve the risk management effectively.

The Company has constituted a Risk Management Committee of Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer,
Chief Marketing Officer and Business Heads as its regular members and other senior functional heads on
invitation basis. The Committee is committed to review periodically the various risks associated with the
Company andreportthe same to the Board.
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Focus of the Company is on the three key elements, viz., Risk Assessment / Identification, Risk Management and
Risk Monitoring.

. Potential Risks are identified and analyzed, considering likelihood and its impact, as a basis for determining
how they should be managed.

Risk Assessment consists of a detailed study of threats and vulnerability and resultant exposure to various
risks. Based on the assessment and identification of the risks, the committee decided the proactive steps
for managing and monitoring these risks.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) POLICY

The Company is committed to discharge its social responsibility as a good corporate citizen. As part of its social
responsibility, the Company has contributed to KDDL-Ethos foundation and the projects are undertaken by the
trust formed for the same purpose. These projects have been undertaken to carry services and in compliance to
the provision of the Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule VIl and rules made there under
and in accordance with Company's CSR Policy. The Report on CSR required under the Companies (Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 is set out as Annexure —5 forming part of this report.

MECHANISM FOR EVALUATION OF BOARD, COMMITTEES AND INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and regulation 17(10) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, a
structured procedure was adopted after taking into consideration the various aspects of the Board's functioning,
composition of the Board and its various Committees, execution and performance of specific duties, obligations
and governance.

The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was completed in time. The performance evaluation
of the Chairman and the Non-Independent Directors was carried out by the Independent Directors. The Board of
Directors expresses its satisfaction with the evaluation process.

DIRECTORS

During the year, Mr. R.K.Saboo has communicated to the Board his desire to relinquish the position as the
Chairman of the Board and the Director of the Company with effect from 1st December 2016, with a view to
spend more time on social activities in which he is already involved and also spare more time for himself. The
Board agreed to his request with great reluctance. The Board noted and placed on record that Mr. R.K.Saboo has
rendered yeoman service and enormous contributions in establishment, growth and progress of KDDL Limited
and several group companies of Saboo Business Group in past three decades. Under his able leadership, as
Chairman of the Board for thirty years, the Company has grown from strength to strength. The Board further
decided that in recognition of Mr R K Saboo's invaluable contribution to the Company's affairs over the last three
decades the honorary title of Chairman Emeritus be conferred on him following his stepping down from the
Board of Directors with effect from 1st December2016.

Due to his pre-occupations, Mr. Chandra Mohan resigned as Director of the company w.e.f. 7th October 2016.

Mr. Jai Vardhan Saboo and Mr. Sanjiv Sachar were appointed as Additional Directors by the Board of Directors on
12th December 2016 and 7th March 2017 respectively.

Both of the Additional Directors hold office till conclusion of this Annual General meeting and it is proposed and
recommended to appoint Mr. Jai Vardhan Saboo and Mr. Sanjiv Sachar as Non Executive Directors.

Mr. Vishal Satinder Sood retires as Director of the company and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.
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DEPOSITS

The details of deposits, covered under Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013 is given hereunder:

1. Deposits Accepted/ renewed duringthe year : Rs. 54,415,000
2 Deposits outstanding at the end of the year : Rs.112,482,000
3. Deposits remained unpaid or unclaimed as atthe end oftheyear : Nil
4

Whether there has been any default in repayment of deposits

or payment of interest thereon during the year and if so,

number of such cases and the total amount involved : NIL
The details of deposits which are not in compliance with the : NIL
Requirements of Chapter

STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL WITH REFERENCE TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A strong internal control culture is an important focus and thrust area in the company. The company has
comprehensive internal systems, controls and policies for all the major processes to ensure the reliability of
financial reporting, timely feedback on achievement of operational and strategic goals, compliance with policies,
procedures, laws, and regulations, safeguarding of assets and economical and efficient use of resources.

The formalized systems of control facilitate effective compliance as per applicable laws. The company also has
well documented Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) for various processes which are periodically reviewed
forchanges warranted due to business needs.

The Internal Auditors of the company continuously monitor the efficacy of internal controls/ compliance with
SOPs with the objective of providing to the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors, an independent,
objective and reasonable assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the organization's risk management,
controland governance processes.

The scope and authority of the Internal Audit activity are well defined in the Internal Audit scope and guidelines,
approved by the Audit Committee. Internal Auditors develop a risk based annual audit plan with inputs from
major stake holders and the major focus areas as per previous audit reports.

All significant audit observations are reviewed periodically and follow-up actions thereon are reported to the Audit
Committee. The Audit Committee also meet the company's Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditors to ascertain
their views on the financial statements, including the financial reporting system, compliance to accounting policies
and procedures, the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal controls and systems followed by the company.

The top and senior management of the company also assesses opportunities for improvement in business
processes, systems and controls, provides recommendations, designed to add value to the organization and
follow up on the implementation of corrective actions and improvementsin business processes.

The senior management of the company meets periodically to assess the performance of each business segment
and key functions of the company and areas for improvement of performance / controls are identified and
reviewed on continuous basis.

Report onadequacy of Internal Financial Controlisannexed with auditors report on financial statements.
CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL

During the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2017, the paid up equity share capital of the Company has
increased from Rs. 10,08,48,700/- to Rs. 10,83,95,860/- pursuant to the issue and allotment of 754,716 equity
shares at the price of Rs 265/- per share (including a premium of Rs. 255/- per share) by way of preferential
allotment to SAIF Partners India V Limited, as authorized by the shareholders by way of Special Resolution passed
at Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 8th November 2016.

Further, the Company has neitherissued any shares with differential voting rights nor any Sweat equity shares.
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DISCLOSURE REGARDING ISSUE OF EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTIONS

Details as required in Rule 12(9) of Companies (Share Capital and Debenture Rules, 2014) and pursuant to clause
12 (Disclosure in the Directors Report) of SEBI (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase
Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 are enclosed as a Annexure-6

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

All Independent Directors have given declarations that they meet the criteria of independence as laid down
under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(6) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The information required under section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 relating to “Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and
Outgo” is given inthe Annexure - 7 forming an integral part of this Report.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS

Thereis nochangeinthe nature of business of the Company during the year under review.
MANAGERIALREMUNERATION

Disclosure pursuant to section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5 of Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is enclosed with this report as Annexure -8.

RECEIPT OF ANY COMMISSION BY MD / WTD FROM A COMPANY OR FOR RECEIPT OF COMMISSION /
REMUNERATION FROM ITS HOLDING OR SUBSIDIARY

During the year under review, Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo, CEO received remuneration of Rs. 3 lacs per month w.e.f.
October 2016 onwards from the subsidiary company, Ethos Limited as its Managing Director which is in
accordance with the provisions of The Companies Act, 2013 and relevant rules made there under.

VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Board of Directors of the Company has adopted Whistle Blower Policy which aims for conducting the affairsin
a fair and transparent manner by adopting highest standards of professionalism, honesty, integrity and ethical
behavior. All permanent employees of the Company are covered under the Whistle Blower Policy.

A mechanism has been established for employees to report concerns about unethical behavior, actual or
suspected fraud or violation of Code of Conduct and Ethics. It also provides for adequate safeguards against the
victimization of employees who avail of the mechanism and allows direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit
Committee in exceptional cases. The Whistle Blower Policy of the Company is available at the link
http://www.kddl.com/pdf/2015/KDDL_Whistle_Blower_Policy.pdf.

DISCLOSURES UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION & RE-DRESSAL ) ACT, 2013

The Company is employing about 259 women, both permanent as well as contractual in various fields within the
factory premises and offices. The Company has in place a policy in line with the requirements of the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Re-dressal) Act, 2013. There was no complaint

received from any employee during the financial year 2016-17 and hence no complaint is outstanding as on 31st
March, 2017.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

A detailed Report on Management Discussion and Analysis, pursuant to Schedule-V of SEBI (LODR) Regulations,
2015isannexedtothisreportas Annexure-9.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with all the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015 during the year ended on 31st March, 2017 as per Report on Corporate Governance annexed
as Annexure -10 and a Certificate from the Auditors to this effect for the year ended on 31st March, 2017 is also
enclosed with this report.

CASH FLOW ANALYSIS

In conformity with the provisions of Clause 34(2) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Cash Flow Statement for
theyear ended on 31st March, 2017 forms an integral part of the Financial Statements.

PERSONNEL

Your Directors place on record their appreciation for the significant contribution made by all the employees, who
through their competence, hard work, solidarity and co-operation, have enabled the Company to perform better.

TRADE RELATIONS

The Board wishes to place on record its appreciation for the support and co-operation that the Company received
from its suppliers, distributors, retailers and other associates. The Company has always looked upon them as
partners in its progress and has happily shared with them rewards of growth. It will be Company's endeavor to
build and nurture strong links based on mutuality, respect and co-operation with each other and consistent with
customerinterest.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

Your Directors take this opportunity to thank all the investors, clients, vendors, banks, regulatory and government
authorities, for their continued support.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Date: 30th May, 2017 (Yashovardhan Saboo)
Place : Chandigarh Vice-Chairman—cum-Managing Director
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Annexure-1

Form AQC-1

[Pursuant ta first proviso to sub-section (3] of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies {Accaunts) Rules, 2014}
Statoment comtalning sallant featuras of the financlal statement of subsidladesfassociate companlesfoint ventures
Fart "A": Subsidiaries
{Infarmation in respect of cach subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Bs.)

Farticulars

Satva lewellery & Design
Limited

LD e ORI Pylania 5.4, Kamla International Ethos limited | Fahen Distribution

Holdings AG Umited
Reporting period for the subsidiary cancernad, 11/03,/2017 31/03/2017 11/03,/2017 31/03/2017 21/03/2017

if different from the heiding
Company's reporting period

Reporting currency and Fachange rate
as on the last date of the relovant
Financial year in the case of foreign subsidiarics

Share capltal 105,064,333 38,251,064 358,010,010 74,812,200 30,000,000

Bessissi buinhs [38,577,830) 3,217,258 288 571,582 (4,071,820 132,523,057}

Total assets 129,225,156 41,568,362 2,113,957,212 87,911,951 12,512,570
Total Liabil ties 72,735,653 mil 1,467,395,591 17,171,579 15,435,626
Investments wil 13,507,130 wil 84,003,130 nil
Turnover 69,752,752 1,194,275 3,262,153,909 1,684,039 2,250,658
Profit bet i

rofit before taxstion 53,804,383 846,773 174,335,963 [2,287,652) {617,225}

Provision for taxation il 73,748 il il il

Prafil aller laxalion 53,804,383 773,025 174,835,953} [2,287,692) {612,225)
Proposed Dividend

nll nll mll nil nll

% af sharehalding a5 o w 100 100

Part "B": Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies And loint Ventures

Name of Assoclates Kamla Tesin Dials Limited

1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 31/03/2017

2. Shares of Associate/ Joint Ventures held by the company on the year end
MNo. 300,000

Amount of Investment in Associatesf loint Ventures 3,000,000

Extent of Holdings % 30%
3. Description of how there is significant influence Assaciate

4. Reason why the associatef joint venture is not consolidated MNLA.

5. Netwoarth attributable to Shareholding as per latest audited Balance Sheet 2,742,943

B. Profit/ Loss for the Year 304,841

i. Considered in Consolidation 91,452
ii. Not Cansidered in Consolidation 213,388

1. Mames of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations
2. Mames of subsidiaries which have heen liguidated or sold during the year.
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Annexure-2
Form No. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on the financial year ended on 31t March, 2017
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

CIN :- L33302HP1981PLC008123

Registration Date :- 8" January, 1981

Name of the Company :- KDDL Limited

Category / Sub-Category of the Company : - Public Company(Limited by Shares)
Address of the Registered office and contact details :-

Plot no. 3, Sector IIl, Parwanoo 173 220 (Himachal Pradesh)
Telephone no.: 01792-232462/233402
Fax no.: 01792-232619

Whether listed company :- Yes

Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any:-
Karvy Computershare Private Limited, Karvy Selenium Tower B, Plot 31-32, Financial District,
Nanakramguda, Gachibowli, Hyderabad — 500 032
Phone No: 040-67161516/1518, Fax: 040-23420818 Website: www.karvy.com

Il PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

% to total turnover
of the company

NIC Code of the
Product/ service

sl Name and Description of main
praducts f services

26521
26101 & 25933

76.63
19.66

Manufacture of Watch {Dials & Hands)
Manufacture of Components & Press Tools

lll. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

sl Name and address of the
No. Company

CIN/GLN Applicable

section

Haoldingf
Subsidiary/
Associate

hahen Distribution Limited

US3000CH2005PLLO31625

Whally Owned
Subsidiary Company

2A87)01)

Ethos Limited

U52300HP2007PLCO30800

Subsidiary Company

2(87)(i1)

Fylania 54

Subsidiary Company

2(87)ii)

Kamla International Holdings SA

Wholly Owned
Subsidiary

2A87)1)

Satva lewellery and Design Limited

U3E911CH2004PLC027 767

Whally cwned
Subsidiary

2(87)111)

Kamla Tesio Dials Limiterd

U33303CH1396PLCO18T 32

Associgte Company

{2]i6}
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I¥. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN [Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
iy Cotegory-wise Share Holding

MO. OF SHARES HELD AT THE BEGINMING OF NO. OF SHARES HELD AT THE END OF THE %
THE YEAR 31/03/2016 YEAR 31/03/2017 CHANGE
% DF % OF DURING
TOTAL PHYSIC TOTAL THE
CATEGORY OF SHAREHCGLDER | DEMAT PHYSICAL SHARES AL SHARES YEAR
[} L1 {Iv) {w1) {¥In) {X) 1X1)
PROMOTER AND PROMOTER
GROUP
IMDIAN
Individual fHUF A7BATEL 4784781 4784751 47R4781
Central Government/State
Government]s) 4] a a 0

Bodies Corporate
Financial Institutions f Banks
Otheis

Sub-Total Afl) : 4801091 4301091 4861091

FOREIGN
Individuals (MRIs/Foreign
Individuals)
Bodies Corporale
Institutions
Qualified Fareigh Invesior
Others
Sub-Total Af2) :
Total A=A[1)+Al2) 48010591 4301091 4861091

PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING
INSTITUTIONE

hutual Funds fUTI
Financial Institutions /Banks 5] 50
Central Government / state
Government(s) 0 { { i
Venture Capital Funds 0 [u] { o]
Insurance Companies 0 il { {
Foreign Institutional Investors | 1447065 1447065 1510432 1510432
Foreign Yenture Capital
Invcstors o il 0 0

Qualificd Forcign Investor o a 0 a
Others 5] a 0 0
Sub-Total B(1] : 1537085 15415 LE03E3E

NON-INSTITUTIONS
Bodics Corporatc B176E5 161771 979456 . 1402371 101771 1504142
Individuals.

1] Individuals helding nominal
shave capital upto Rs.1 lakh 1121286 314087 1435373 1371004 | 305383 | 1677387
{ii] Individuals holding

narminal share capital in
excess of Rs 1 lakh 1154081 1154081 943765 943765
Others
CLEARING MEWEBERS 12732 12732 47613 47613
FOREIGN BODIES 0 0 4R000 48000
FOREIGN COLLABORATORS 1] 50000 a a
WBFC 1000 1000 1000 1000
WOMN RESIDENT INDIANS 111072 111122 105914 105964
MRI NON-REPATRIATION a A07E8 A07EB

0
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{d} Qualified Foreign Investor

Sub-Total B2} : 3217856 525508 3743764 3900455 | 408204 | 4368659

Total B=B(1}+E(2} : 4754921 528858 S2B3779 55607341 [ 411154 | 55784395

Total {A+B} - 3556012 528858 | 10034870 10368432 | 471154 | 10829586

Shares held by custodians,
against which Depository
Recelpts have been |ssued

Promoter and Promoter
Group
Public

GRAND TOTAL {A+B+(] : 9556012 10084870 10368432 10839586

ii) Shareholding of Promeoters

5. Mo. | Shareholder's Name Shareholding at the beginning of the Sharehelding at the end of the vear %age change
year in
Mo, of % of total | % of sharas Mo, of % of total | % of shares | shareholding
shares shares of | pledped/e shares shares of | pledgedfe during the
the ncumbered the ncumbered year
Company to total Campany to total
shares shares

R.K. Saboa 1862107 1846 1862107 17,18
Yashovardhan Saboo 1051501 10.43 . 1051501 8.70

Yashovardhan Saboo 333000 3.30 . 333000 3.07

Usha Devi Sabop 435180 432 436180 403

Anuradha Sahon 308050 308050 2.84

Pranay Shankar Sabaoo 170120 170120 1.57
Satwika Saboo 130121 130121 1.20
Yashovardhan Saboo 91371 91371 0.85

Rajendra Kumar Sahoo 838432 BE432 .82
Anuradha Sabao 75977 73977 .70
Rajendra Kumar Saboo 65820 69820 0.64
Pranav Shankar Saboo 44784 : 44784 .42

Asha Devi Saboo 30325 30925 0.28
Rajcndra Kumar Saboo 30800 30800 .28
Usha Devi Saboo 15000 15000 014
Yashavardhan Saboo 22908 22808 022

Yashovardhan Saboo 10750 10750 .10
Rajendra Kumar Saboo 730 7301 0.06
Satvika Saboo 5634 5634 .05

Vardhan Properties & apol G001 n.oa
Investment Limited
Dream Digital Technology 7309 . 7309 0.07
Limited
Swarles Capital LLC - 60000 {055

Total 4801091 4261091 44.85
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iiiy Chonrge in Promoters’ Shoreholding [pleose specify, if there is ne change)

SLMo.

Shareholding at the beginning of the
year

Cumulative sharehelding during the
year

Mo. of shares % of total shares

af the company

% of total shares
of the company

MHo. of shares

At the beginnlng of the year

R.K. Saboo

1862107

1862107

Yashovardhan 3aboo

1384501

3246608

Usha Devi Saboo

Anuradha Saboao

436180
308050

3632788
3590538

Pranav Shankar Sabog

170120

4160958

Satvilia Saboo

Yashovardhan Saboo

130121
91371

4291079
4382450

Rajendra Kumar Saboo

BE422

4470882

Wl SR =~ on| W P Wi rd| =

Anuradha Saboa

75977

4546358

=
o

Rajendra Kumar Saboo

63820

4616679

=
-

Pranav Shankar Saboa

44784

4661463

[
[

Asha Geyi Saboo

g5

4652358

ot
[

Rajendra Kumar Saboo

30800

4723138

=
I

Usha Devi 5aboo

15000

4746096

=
5]

Yashavardhan Sahoo

22908

4761096

=
o

‘fashovardhan Saboo

10750

4771346

e
[

Rajendra Kumar Saboo

Satwika Saboo

7301
G534

4779147
4784781

s
L]

Wardhan Properties & Investment Limited

9001

4793782

[ o]
=

Dream Digital Technology Limited

Date wise Increase/Decrease in
Promoter shareholding during the
yaar specifying the reasons for
increasefdecrease {e.g.
allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat
equity etc.)

7309

4801091

No Change

At the end of the year

R.K. Saboo

1862107

1862107

Yashovardhan Saboo

1051501

2913608

Usha Devi 5aboo

436180

3345788

Yasheovardhan Saboo

333000

3682728

Anuradha 5aboo

308050

3990838

Pranav Shankar Saboo

170120

4160558

Satvika Saboo

130121

4791075

Yashovardhan Saboo

91371

4382450

LY N I I S N o T I ) - N T R Y

Rajendra Kumar Saboo

58432

4470882

—
=]

Anuradha Saboo

75977

4546859

=
[

Rajendra Kumar Saboo

&9320

4616679

=
(=]

Pranav Shankar Saboo

44784

4661463
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13 Asha Devi 5aboo 30025 AR92383
14 Rajendra Kumar Saboo 30800 172318%
15 Usha Devi Sabeco 15000 4738188
16 Yashovardhan Saboo 22908 4761086
17 Yashovardhan Sabpo 10750 ATT71846
18 Rajendra Kumar Saboo 7301 4779147
19 Satvika Saboo 5634 4784781

20 Wardhan Properties & Investment 5001 A753782
Limited
1 Dream Digital Technolegy Limited 7309 0.08 4801081 44.20
22 Swades Capital LLC 60000 0.55 4861091 44.85

Note : The change in sharehalding percentage is due to preferential issue af 754716 shares during the year and re-defining of promoters group,
iv)  Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders [other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

Shareholding at the beginning of the | Cumulative Shareholding during the Year
Year 01/04/2016 31/03/2017

% of total shares % of total shares
Mame of the Share Holder Ma of Shares of the company Mo of Shares of the company
SAIF INDIA W FIl HOLDINGS
LIMITED

At the beginning of the year 1008400 1008400
Transfer / Sale of shares during
the year 0 1808400

At the end of the year 1008400 1003400
SAIF PARTNERS INDIA W
LIMITED

At the beginning of the year

Transfer / Sale of shares during
the year 754716 754716
At the and of the year 754716 754716
ASHA MUKUL AGRAWAL

At the beginning of the year 368259 . 368259
Transfer / Sale of shares during
the year 1000 369259

At the and of the year 369253 369255
KITARA INDIA MICRG CAP
GROWTH FUND

At the beginning of the year 323000 . 323000
Transfer / Sale of shares during
the year 51680 374680
At the end of the year 374680 374680
STRIVER CAPITAL ADVISGRS
PRIVATE LIMITED

At the beginning of the year 212913 . 212912
Transfer f Sale of shares during
the year -212913
At the end of the year 0
FARAM CAPITAL RESEARCH
PRIVATE LIMITED

At the beginning of the year 211535 . 211536
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Transfer / Sale of shares during
the year 1] 211536

At the end of the year 211536 211536
DIPAK KANAYALAL SHAH

At the beginning of the year 101000 . 101000
Transfer / Sale of shares during
the year -101000
At the end of the year 0
PULKIT.N.SEKHSARIA

At the beginning of the year
Transfer / Sale of shares during
the year

At the end of the year
MALIMI N SEKHSARIA
At the keginning of the year

Transfer / Sale of shares during
the year

At the end of the year
ANANTROOP FINANCIAL
ADVISORY SERVICES PRIVATE
LInAl

At the beginning of the year
Transfer / Sale of shares during
the year

At the end of the year
UNIVERSAL GOLDEN FUND

At the beginning of the year
Transfer [ Sale of shares during
the year

At the end of the year

SBI PIPE FUND -1

At the beginning of the year

Transfer / Sale of shares during
the year

At the end of the year
HARESH M HINODOCHA
At the beginning of the year

Transfer / Sale of shares during
the year

At the end of the year
R CTRITEC AG

At the beginning of the year
Transfer [ Sale of shares during
the year

At the end of the year
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Statement of changes in Shareholding pattern of top ten Sharehodlers {other than Directors, Promoters and
Holders of GDRs and ADRs)

Lurmulative
Dipld Follo/Cliant-ld |Name of the Share Holdar Holding

IM303173  |20017256 SAIF [MDIAY FIl HOLIHNGS LIMITED 1008400 3/31,/2016

IN3D3173  |20017256 SAIF IMDIA W FIl HOLDHMNGS LIMITED 1035400 3312017

IN3D3173  |20017416 5A4F FARTHMERS INDIA W LIMITED o 754716 331 2016
IN302173 20017416 SAIF PARTHERS IMDIA W LIMITED 734716 F54716 2/10/2017
IN303173 20017416 SAIF PARTHERS INDIA W LIMITED 0 754716 313142017

INOO1SS  |10719148 AGHA MUKUL AGRAWAL 265259 3/31/2016
IN300159 (10719148 ASHA MUKUL AGRAWAL 369239 11/4/2016

IMN300L5S (10719148 ASHA MUKUL AGRAVAL 369259 373142017

IN303173 20018771 KITARA INDIA MICRO CAP GRCWTH FUND 323000 3/31f2016
IN3D3173  |20018771 KITARA INDIA MICRO CAP GROWTH FUND 374359 6/24/2016
IM303173 (20018771 KITARA INDIA MICRO CAP GRCWTH FUND 374630 6{30/2016
IN3D2173  |2001B771 KITARA INDIA MICRD CAP GROWTH FUND 374680 3312017

IN303119 10994727 STRIVER CARITAL ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED
IN303116 (10994727 STRIVER CAPITAL ADWISDRS PRIVATE LIMITEDR
IN303116 (10994727 STRIVER CAPITAL ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED
IN3D3116  |10994727 STRIVER CAFITAL ADWISORS PRIVATE LIMITED
IN3DATTG 10994717 STRIVER CAPITAL ADVIZORS PRIVATE LIMITED
IMN303116 (10994717 STRIVER CAPITAL ACWISORS PRIVATE LIMITED
IN303116  |10994727 STRIVER CAPITAL ADWISORS PRIVATE LIMITED

212913]  3/31/2016
205826 5/6/2016
199320|  6/17/1014
139721 6/24/2016
123691 5/30/2016
120645 74112016
113379 7/8j2016
8| 7/15/2018
8| 33172017
211538 3/31/2018
INIODLSS (10685550 PARAM CAPITAL RESEARCH PRIVATE LIMITED 211536 3/31/a017
IN300G44 | L0GDLE24 DIPAK KANAYALAL SHAH 101000|  3/31/2015
IN3ONGSS | 10001824 DIPAK KANAVALAL SHAH 103000| 5/ 2016
IN3DOG4A | 10001324 DIPAK KANAYALAL SHAH 103200)  6/30/2014
IM300G44 | 10001824 DIPAK KANAYALRL SHAH L04000)  F/15/2016
IM3ONGSS | 100N1824 DIPAK KANAYALAL SHAH o R5/2016
IN3DOS44  |10061224 DIPAK KANAYALAL SHAH a|  3/31/2017

IN3DZ116  |109%4727 STRIVER CAPITAL ADWISORS PRIWVATE LIMITED
IN30Z116 10934727 STRIVER CAPITAL ADWISORS PRIVATE LIMITED
IM300159 | 10686550 PARAM CAPITAL RESEARCH PRIVATE LIMITED
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Cumulative
Holding

IN302603  |10037574 PLUILEIT M.SEKHSARIA 97000 |  3i11/2016
IN302603 | 10037574 PULKIT.N.SEKHSARIA: 0 o 171342017
INZOEED3 | 10037574 PLILKIT.NSEKHSARIA 0 al 3oy

Dpld FollofClient-1d Mame of the Share Holder Date

IN3OO126  |11210814 MALIMI M SEKHSARIA 33112016
IN300126 (11210814 MALIMI M SEKHSARIA 1/20,/2017

IN203126  |11Z10814 WALIMIN SEKHGARIA 33173017

IN201151 20513642 ANANTROOP FINANCIAL ADYVISORY SERVICES {F} Ltd- 3/31/2018
IN301151  |20513622 ANANTROOP FINANCIAL ADVISORY SERVICES {P} Ltd. 343142017

IN301348  |20042747 UNIVERSAL GOLDEN FUND 82817 343142018
IN301348  |20042747 LNIVERSAL GOLDEN FUND 73019 9/9/2016
IN301348 20042747 UNIYERSAL GOLDEM FUMND B2817) 10/2%/2016
IN301348  |20042747 UNIVERSAL GOLDEN FUND B2817 3/31/2017

IN303786  |10003205 SBI PIPE FUND -1 3/31/2015
IN202786  |10003205 SBI PIPE FUND - 1 5/6/2016
IN303736  |10002205 SBIPIPE FUND - 1 343172017

IN303116  [1000R184  |HARESH M HINDOCHA 3f31/2018
IN202116  |10008184  |HARESH M HINDQCHA 742211018
IN303116  |100031&4 HARESH b HINDOCHA, af2/2016
IN303116  [10008184  |HARESH M HINDOCHA u/ofan16
IN202116  |10008184  |HARESH M HINDQCHA 3/31/2017

KDLIB021? R CTRITEC AG 3/31/2016
KDL1G0217  [R CTRITEC AG 343172017
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{v} Shareholding of Directors and Key Manageriol Personnel:

Sl.No.

For each of the Directors and Key
Managerial Personnel

Sharzholding

Cumulative shareholding during the

year

Ma. of shares

% of tatal shares
of the tompany

No. of shares

% of total shares
of the company

At the beginning of the year

Mr. R.IC Sabao (Individually, laintly and
threugh HUF)

2058460

20.41

2053460

Mr. ¥ashovardhan Saboo (Individually
and through HUF}

1509520

14.97

32567990

Mr. Jagesh Khaitan

466

0.01

3562456

mr. Anil Khanna

M. Sanjeey Kumar Masown

4283
2000

0.04
0.02

2572739
3574739

Date wise Increase/Decrease in Pramoter
sharehalding during the year specifying

the reasons for increase/decrease (e.8.
allotmentftransfer/bonus/sweat equity ete ]

At the end of the year
A} Mr. R.K. Sabao {Individually, lointly and
through HUF)

B} Mr. ¥ashovardhan Saboo (Individually
and through HUF}

a Mr. Anil Khanna
()} Mr.Jagesh Khaitan

NO CHANGE

2058460 2058460

15083530 3567950

4283

466
2000
1400

3572273
3572739
3574739
3576139

E] M. Sanjeey Kumar Masown
Fl Mr. Sanjiv Sachar

V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Cempany including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment .
{Amount in Rs.)

Total Indebtedness

Particulars Secured Loans

Indebtedness as at the beginning of the Financial Year 1.4.2016

1 | Principal Amount 314,068,944
2 | Interest Due but nat paid
3 | Interest accrued but not duc o
Total of [1+2+3) 314,068,944
Change In indebtedness during the financial yea'r

Depasits |

119,198,000 433,266,544

14,442,224
133,640,224

14,442,234
447,709,168

Addition 106,934,084

144 457,073

62,835,000
58,852,999

169,769,054
203,310,072

(33,540,988]

Reduction

Net Change [37,522,885)

Indebtednass as at the end of the Financial Year 31.3.2017

3,952,001

Principal Amount 276,545,955 124,402,000 400,947,955

Interest Due but nat paid g S S

Interest accrued hut not due &

Total of (1+2+3)

13,220,225 13,220,225

276,545,955 137,622,225 414,168,180
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V.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors 5nq/0r Manager:

sl
No.

Particulars of the
Remuneration

Name of MD/WTD/Manager

Mr. R.K. Saboo

Mr. Yashovardhan
Saboo

*Mr. Sanjeev

Kumar Masown

Total Amount in
Rs.

Gross Salary

Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17{1)
of the Income-tax Act,
1961

value of perquisites u/s
{17(2) of Income Tax Act,
1961

2893600

7119000

258476

4611222

14623822

426392

Profits in lieu of salary
under section 17(3)
Income-tax of Income
Tax Act, 1961

Stock Qption

Sweat Equity

Comimission

as % of profit

QOthers, specify

COthers, please specify

Total (A)

2988516

7417476

4644222

15050214

Overall Ceilings

As per Act

As per Act

As per Act

As per Act

“woef 1t

June 2018

B. Remuneration ta Other Directors:

Particulars of the
Remuneration

Mame of Directors

Total
Amaunt[Rs.}

Mr. Chandra

Mohan Khan

Mr. Anil

M. Jagesh

na Khaitan

Mrs. Ranjana

Agarwal

Mr. Praveen
Gupta

Independent Directors

Fees for attending
boardfcommitiee meetings

40,000 15

0,000 135,000

110,000

105,000

Commission

Others, please specify

Total [1)

Other Mon Executive
Directors

Fees for attending
board/commities meetings

Commissian

Others, please specify

Total [2)

Total(Bl=1+2

Total Managerial
Remuneration

40,000

150,600

135,000

110,000

105,000 340,000

Overall Ceilings as per Act

As per Act

As per Act

As per Act

As per Act

As per Act As per Act
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C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD {Amount in Rs.]

particulars of the Remuneratian Key Managerial Personnel

+*

Company Secretary CFO Total

Gross Salary

L L 1314000 774000 2088000
{a] Salary as per provisions contained in

section 17(1} of the Income-tax Act,
1961

{b} Value of perquisites u/s 17[2}
Income Tax Act, 1261

{c) Profits in lieu of salary under
section17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961

Stock Option Mil Nil
Sweat Equity Mil Nil

Commission Mil Mil

a) as % of profit Nil Mil

) Others, specify Nil Nil

Others, please specify Mil Nil
Total 1314040 780600
*Lpto 31st May, 2016

VIl PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: (NOT APPLICABLE}

Type Section of the Brief Details of Authority Appeal made,
Companies Act Dascription penalty/punishment/fco {RO/MCLT/C if any {give
mpounding fees impesed | ourt} defails

A COMPANY
Penalty -NIL--
Punishment
Compounding

B. DIRECTORS
Penalty
Punishment
Compeounding

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty
Punishment
Campaunding
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Annexure-3
Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2017

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To
The Members

KDDL Limited
(CIN: L33302HP1981PLC008123)

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to
good corporate practices by M/s KDDL Limited (hereinafter called 'the company'). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a
manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and
expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during
the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2017(Audit Period) complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in
placetothe extent, inthe mannerand subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2017 according to the provisions of:

(i)  The CompaniesAct, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
(i) TheSecurities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder;
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992
('SEBIAct'):-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations,
2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;
(c) TheSecurities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 - Not
Applicable asthe Company has not granted any options to its employees during the audit period;

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 - Not
Applicable as the company has notissued any debt securities during the audit period;

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations,
1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client- Not Applicable as the Company is not registered
as Registrarsto an Issue and Share Transfer Agents;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 - Not Applicable as
the company has not delisted its equity shares during the audit period and

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 - Not Applicable as the
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company has not bought back any of its securities during the audit period.
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards with respect to Meetings of Board of Directors (S5-1) and General Meetings (SS-2)
issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(ii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 and the Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchanges.

During the period under review the Company has generally complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards etc. mentioned above.

We further report that we have relied on the representation made by the Company and its officers and quarterly
compliance reports by respective department heads taken on record by the Board of Directors for compliance, systems
and mechanism formed by the Company for following other applicable Acts, Laws and Regulations:

a) TheFactoriesAct,1948;

b) The Payment of Wages Act, 1936;

c¢) ThePaymentofBonusAct,1965;

d) Thelndustrial DisputesAct, 1947;

e) Employees'State Insurance Act, 1948;

f)  The Employees' Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952;

g) The Water (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act, 1974;

h) TheAir (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act, 1981;

i) Hazardous Wastes (Management, Handling and Transboundary Movement) Rules, 2008;

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive
Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during
the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice was given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were
sent at least seven days in advance except those urgent meetings which were convened at a shorter notice and were
duly attended by at least an Independent director and there exists a system for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decisions were carried through while the dissenting members' views, wherever applicable, were captured and
recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period:
(a)  TheCompany hasobtained approval of shareholders by way of Postal Ballot for the following:

- Authorisation to the Board of Directors of the Company to approve Loans, Investments and Guarantees
in excess of limits prescribed under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

- Authorisation to the Board of Directors of the Company to enter into Contracts or arrangement or
transactions with Related Party its subsidiary company viz, Ethos Limited upto an amount of Rs. 150
Crore (Rupees one hundred fifty Crore Only).

(b)  The Company has taken approval of Shareholders by way of Special Resolution at Extra Ordinary General
Meeting (EGM):-

- Authorisationto the Board of Directors of the Company toissue and allot upto 7,54,716 (Seven Lacs Fifty
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Four Thousand Seven Hundred Sixteen) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each to SAIF Partners India V Limited, a
foreign body corporate for cash at a price of Rs.265/- per equity share (including premium of Rs. 255/- per
equity share) (“Issue Price”) for anamount not exceeding Rs. 20 Crores (Rupees Twenty Crore Only).

- Authorisation to the Board of Directors of the Company to issue and allot upto 3,77,356 (Three Lacs Seventy
Seven Thousand Three Hundred Fifty Six) Zero Coupon Convertible Warrants (“Warrant”) (1 Warrant
convertible into 1 Equity Share of face value of Rs. 10/- each) to Promoters/ Promoter Group, for cash at a
price of Rs. 265/- per Warrant on preferential basis for an amount not exceeding Rs. 10 Crores (Rupees Ten
Crores Only).

- Authorisation to the Board of Directors of the Company to enter into Contract/ Arrangement(s) with Ethos
Limited, a material subsidiary and a related party for subscribing toits paid up capital upto Rs. 30 Crores.

- Approvalfor Changein the share capital of the material subsidiary Company, Ethos Limited.

Place: - Ludhiana Signature: -
Date: - 30th May 2017 Name of Company Secretary in Practice: - P.S. Dua
FCS No. 4552
CP No. 3934

The reportis to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as “Annexure A” and forms an integral part of this
report.

Annexure ‘A’ to Secretarial Audit Report

To

The Members

KDDL Limited
(CIN:L33302HP1981PLC0O08123)

Our Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about
the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct
facts arereflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the
Company.

4.  Where ever required, we have obtained and relied on the management representation about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis.

6. TheSecretarial Audit Reportis neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place: - Ludhiana Signature:
Date: - 30th May 2017 Name of Company Secretary in Practice: - P.S. Dua
FCS No. 4552
CP No. 3934
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Annexure-4
Disclosure of Particulars of Contracts/Arrangements entered into by the Company
Form No. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014)
Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to
in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transactions under
third proviso thereto
1. There are no contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in sub-

section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 which are not atarm's length basis:-

Sl af Lhe
relabed pary and
nature of
relationzhip

Ml al
coniLrac sy
arrange ments;tr
ansactions

Duraliun ul
Lhie conracls
!
aranAema s
FransActions

SialiviniL Lezeere <al T L e
Aftanpemenls oo lha~sacliang
Incluc g the walue, Ifamye

Lastilica o Ten
EriLeritg inka suzh
Contracts ar
ErTanpaIments or
Fransactions

Zuthiafs) ool sapeproasal

By Lhe Braard

Arrcurn | praid s
advanees, I aw:

Doz oy wenich
Lhie spseciul
resolutlan was
naszac i+ penaral
mesting a5
renquiresd undee -
firsl provisy Les
sectlon 188

“rho Lirnited

Irmwcstrrie it

Irrvesstrmint in Fquity shires il

aubs diary coamparry Elhos Lifmiles (e
Rs. A0 lacs 2t 3 price of Rs. 143~ par
share

Imwestrries it in
sy sl iary Gorfpd

03052016

MA

Talendra Kunar
Saboo
Yashowardnan
habea

Jshia Dol Rabuo
Lnuraeha sabeo

Sthes Limited

<arla Tesio Dials
td.

Lease foreemme it

Sub Lease

Agrecmimnt

Hre- Purchase
Agrocment

Lease of partlen of House Me. 1,
Yactor 5, Chandigarh

Sub cawc AErecmonts with
subsTdiary Company Ethes Limited,
for the usé and ooeupatlon of the
504 of area of premlzss sluatad at
'2od flocr inshop no. 204, bo 206 &t
squarc onc s wpping conples, [ifc
slyles Diskl Cenbre: , Sigkesl, Meswe Delhi
ranew the hire purchase facilties for
rnanufacture af YO F anc
Meciralormed dials wee |, 01-04-24015
Tor & peeviad ol 3 years alarenl of RS,
B Lakhs p.a. for é015-18 and
theraafter fis, 6 lskh p.a for
[2Mani g poriad,

Offlelaly Resldentlal
puronse

Crficinl

Buisi~ess

OEfOZ 2016

30.05.2016

90052016

“thos Ltd

Saboo Coat nps
Zur. 1td

Guaarantea

Inwostmerit

Leasa Apreameant

Zaars

Prowidiag security o credit facilities
avai of to b aveiled by Ethos Ltd

trom Ranks upte Bs. 3 reare

Inwestrnent im Erhos Limited by
subscrhing in 12% Reciemab n
Preference Shares of ks 200 each
hawlng tenure of [[2ne] year opto an
arrount of ks, 10 craras in one or
rnore sranches.

Lease apreement “or leasing of land
and factary building situstod ab

I haitzalpuor Bosicl, %l Sadbcamisji,
Dierabacsi §Disk. Melali] Punjak Mo a
period of & years

1z enable subsidiary
o avpil finance
Farilitins

Invostmaent in
Subsidiary

Lease of prenises at
Nera Bassi

302016

12.02.2016

12112016

28.08 2014

Sthis Limted

=thos Limitod

Wr. R.K.5aban

Inwestihmant

Corporatc
Guamntes

Agrocmenk

Symars

Inwestrnent of Fs 30 croves Ir
tubz diary corpany as follows:-

L. As. 15 crores by weay 0¥ sukscribing
in 1063329 Equity Sharos of Ry, 107
anich al the prve of Ba 141 per
share;

. Rs. 15 Crores by wey of subscriblng
in 1500000 12% redeemable
preference shares of Rs. 1000- aach
tiar it nf years

Enhancement of coroorate guam@nter
tr 1Al Rank amnunking to Rs. 2N.RS
Croees i i ol CLhng Lirmiled.

Appeintment ot M ALK, Sabon as an
acluisar Lo Lhe Board ol KDDL Limilesd
for & penad of three years w.ef.
O1.1Z2016 10 3U.11.2010at a
lumpsum arnourt of professicnal
fooy of Ra, 2.00 Las por qtr,

Irnastime it In
sUDEld Iary COmpa

Tz cnable Ethos
limized tr gwail

el e eredil.
I"ri=s frarm IDE Bank
Arvisory sordires

12.11.201E

12122016

12122010
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11 =thos Limitad

Investimant in
Equity Capital

Irwestrnent in equity capital af bthos Investment 1402 AL
LimTted For By, 300 lacs at a zrice ot
Rz 141/~ per shara,

Ranewal of corporate puaratee to
JEK bank wn kehalf of Ethes Limited

tor e, 5.3 Crores

=thos Limttad Corporate Guara~tes

Guarantee

1406 2017

Contractsfarrangements entered inta by the company with related parties referred to in sub-section {1)

of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 which are at arms length basis:

Mame(s) aof the
related party and
nature of
relationship

Mature of
canbactsfarrangenent
sftransactions

Duration of the
cantracts f
arrangements,tra
nsactions

Salient terms of the contracts or amangements
ar transactlons Including the value, If any:

Date{s) of approval
by tha Baard, If
any:

Amount paid as
advances, If
any:

Saboo Coatings
Limited

{Entity over which
significanl
influence is
exercise by the

&M Py Promaotor
Directars

Pylania 54
{Subsidiary
Cormpany)

Rusiness Transactians

Business Transactions

Transastions in
the normal courss
of business during
HILE-17

Transactions in
the normal course
of business during
FONE-17

Particulars

ilPurchase of Raw Material etc
ii|5ale of Goods & Services
fiijRent Paid by the company

iv} 5alaries of employees paid
v] Rant Recefived

i} Re-imbursemeant of expenses
wli) Securlty Deposit

ilPurchaze of Raw Material etc
ii]5ule of Goods B Services
lijGuarantee Charges received
iv] Re-imbursernent of expenses
W] Guarantees glven

vi} 5ale of fined assets

wiif Jub wark charges

amtin Rs,)

2,554,783
46,157
50,000
105700
1,477,536
343,469
953,628

3,265,373
5,145,051
495,140
13,574,434
17,452,500
1.583,514
TA5, 4402

Mot Required

Mot Required

Ml

Ethes Limited

ltamla Tesio Dials
Ltd

Satva lewellery B
Desipn Limited

Dream Digital
Tachnalogy Lirnited

Wardhan Properties
and Imvestment
Limited

YBL Innavaticns
Pwt. Lirnited

Wardhan
Internatichal
Limited

Iahen Boutigues
LLd.

|| #sha Devi Saboo

Business Transactians

Business Transactians

Business Transactions

Business Transactions

Business Transactions

Business Transactions

Business Transactions

Business Transactions

Business Transactions

Transactions in
the ncrmal course
of business during
201617

Transactions in
the normal course
af business during
Z016-17
Transactions in
the normal eourse
af business during
FONE-17
Transactions in
the norrmal courss
of business during
AE-1T
Transactions in
the normal eourse
af business during
2016-17
Transactions in
thea normal courss
of business during
AE-1T
Transactions in
the normal eourse
of business during
2016-17
Transactions in
lha nermal course
of business during
ZME-17
Transac<tions in
Lhe normal course
of business during
201617

ilPurchase of Raw Material et
ii|5ale of Goods & Services
jii)5alary of employess recavered
i) Renl rereivar]
v] Expenses recovered
wil Investrnents made
wiipSecurity Depasit takan
vii] @uarantees given
ix) Purchase ol lized azsals
x] Re-imbursement ot expenses
1] Reent Paid
1} Expenses recovered

it Rent Faid
il] Interest Received
iii) expenses recavered

i| Wanagement consultancy fee

fi] Expiersss rapnuered

i Interest Paid

1] Expenses recovered

i§ Purchase of raw rnaterials

il Investments

iy Interest Paid

254,414
&11.6A1
132,500
3,090,347
720,255
149,999,960
£77.235
547,364,168
LE,908
126,202
&00,000
96,567

00,000
00,000
171,774

1,980,000

245,494

252,691

152038

13,715

Mot Required

Mot Required

Mot Required

Mot Required

Mat Required

Mot Required

Mot Required

Mot Required

Mot Required
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Name(s] of the
related party and
nature of
relationship

Mature of
contractsfarrangement
sftransactions

Duratlon of the
contracts
arrangements/tra
nsactions

Salient tenms of the contracts or arrangements
or transactions including the value, if any:

Datels| of approval
by the Board, if
any:

Amount paid as
advances, if
any:

.| Mr. R.K. Saboo,

Business Transactians

Transactionsin
tha normal course
of business during
2016-17

it Rent Faid
ii] Remyneratian

a00,0d
2,982,516

Existing Contract

NIL

.| Mr¥ashovardhan

Sahon

Business Transactians

Transactions in
the normal course
of business during
201617

it Ront paid
1] Rermuraration

2,054,040
7,417,476

Existing Cantract

.| Ms. Anuradha

Sahoo.

Rent Faid for Praperty

Transactions in
the normal course
of business during
2016-17

i} RentPaid

300,000

Existing Cantract

-| s, Usha Saboo

Renl Pald Tor Froperly

Transacllans in
the nermal course
of business during
2016-17

1] Rent Pald

120,040

Esasling Conlracl

.| MIr. Sanjeey K
Fasowrn

Business Transaction

Transactions in
the narmal course
o busingss during
2016-17

i salary paid
ii] Interest Paid/ accrued
i) Deposils

4,611,222
41,677
220,04

Existing Contract

.| Mrs, Neera]
Fasowrn

Business Transactions

Transactions in
the narmal course
of business during
2016-17

ilinterest Paid
ii] Depasits

103,127
130,040

Existing Contract

.| 5h. Lal Chand

Masowrn

Business Transactians

Transactions in
the normal course
of business during
2016-17

Interest Paid

50,957

Existing Contract
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Annexure-5

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2016-17

(As per format given in the Rules to the Companies (CSR Policy) Rules, 2014)

A brief outline of the Company's CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs
proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or
programs.

The Company undertakes and/or supports various activities/projects as notified by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs from time to time. The Company undertakes CSR Activities directly or indirectly through
aregistered trust or society or any company established under Section 8 of the Act for CSR objectives. The
Company has framed a CSR Policy in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
same is placed on the Company's website and the web-link of the same is http://www.kddl.com
/html/csr_policy.html

KDDL contributes towards CSR through its charitable foundation namely KDDL-ETHOS FOUNDATION,
whichis eligible to conduct permissible CSR activity. KDDL has contributed an amount of Rs. 18 Lacs for the
financial year 2016-17 to KDDL-ETHOS FOUNDATION for carrying out various CSR activities as permissible
under section 135 of The Companies Act, 2013 and allied rules.

The Composition of the CSR Committee

Mr. R.K. Saboois the chairman of CSR Committee. Other members of the Committee are :-
Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo Vice-Chaiman-cum-CEO

Mrs. Ranjana Agarwal Independent Director

Mr. Jagesh Khaitan Independent Director

Average net profit of the company for the last three financial years as per section 198 of the
Companies Act, 2013. (Rs in lacs)

For the year ended on 31st March, 2016 : 930.36
Forthe year ended on 31st March, 2015 : 1043.98

For the year ended on 31st March, 2014 : 676.67
Average net profits : 883.67
Prescribed CSR expenditure (two per cent, of the amountasinitem 3 above)
Rs.17.67 lacs (being 2% of the average net profits as stated atitem 3 above)

Details of CSR spent during the financial year

(a) Totalamountto be spent forthe financial year Rs.17.67 lacs

(b)  Amountunspent,ifany: Nil

(¢)  Mannerinwhichtheamountspentduring the financial yearis detailed below:-
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(1) (2

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

S. CSR Project or

No. | activity identified

Sector in
which the
Project is
covered

Projects or
programs

(1) Local area
or other

(2) Specify the
State & District
where projects
or program was
undertaken

Amount
outlay
(budget)
project or
programs
wise

Amount spent
on the projects
or programs
Sub-heads:

(1) Direct
expenditure on
projects or
programs

(2) Overheads

Cumulative
expenditur
e upto to
the
reporting
period

Amount
spent:
Direct or
through
implementi
ng agency

Others Rs.
18,00,000/-

N.A. Rs.
18,00,000

Contribution to
KDDL-ETHOS
foundation, a Trust
established under
The Indian Trusts
Act, 1882, with the
motto to render CSR
activities as stated
under section 135
of The Companies
Act, 2013 for KDDL
Limited and its
subsidiaries/ Group
Companies

As per
Section 135
of The
Companies
Act, 2013

Through
implementi
ng agency
viz. KDDL-
Ethos
Foundation

The KDDL ETHOS foundation has spent towards various activities during the year 2016-17 as follows:-
S.No.

Particulars Amount

1. | Contribution to IIMPACT towards education of girl child by sponsoring five learning centres
(educating 30 girls per learning centre)

Contribution to YTTS towards promoting education, including special education and employment
enhancing vocation training skills especially among children, women, elderly and differently abled
and livelihood enhancement projects.

Contribution to Heart to Heart Service Society of Innerwheel Club of Chandigarh towards helping
poor and needy patientsin PGl

Contributionto Multiple Sclerosis Society of India for the welfare of people affected by multiple sclerosis
Installation of Napkin Destroyer & Napkin Vending machine at Government Model Senior
Secondary School, Sector 18, Sector 20-B and Sector 35-D, Chandigarh

TOTAL

Rs. 4,75,000/-

Rs. 2,50,000/-

Rs. 1,00,000/-
Rs. 30,000/-

Rs. 90,000/-
Rs. 9,45,000/-

In case the company has failed to spend the two percent of the average net profit of the last three financial years
or any part thereof, the company shall provide the reasons for not spending the amount in its Board Report.

Not applicable
A responsibility statement of the CSR Committee that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy, is in
compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the company.
The CSR Committee of the Company confirms that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy, is in
compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the Company.

Sd/-
(R.K.Saboo)
Chairman-CSR Committee

Sd/-
(Yashovardhan Saboo)
Vice Chairman-cum-CEO (Member)
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Annexure — 6

A. Summary of Status of ESOPs granted
The position of the existing scheme is summarized as under:
S.No. | Particulars Details
1. Details of the meeting Authorized by the shareholders of the Company on
September 15, 2011.
2. Approved limit Upto 1,10,000 stock options in aggregate
3. The Pricing Formula Exercise Price is Rs 120/- per option.
4, Options granted 84,000
5. Options vested and exercisable 0
6. Options exercised 39,750
7. Options cancelled 0
8. Options lapsed 23,250
9. Total number of options in force 21,000
10. Variation in terms of ESOP Not Applicable
11. | Total number of shares arising as a 39,750
result of exercise of options
12. Money realized by exercise of options NIL
B. Employee-wise details of options granted during the financial year 2016-17 to:
(n Senior managerial personnel None
(ii) Employees who were granted, during any one year, options None
amounting to 5% or more of the options granted during the year
(iii)  Identified employees who were granted options, during any one year None
equal to or exceeding 1% of the issued capital (excluding outstanding
warrants and conversions) of the Company at the time of grant
C. Weighted average Fair Value of Options granted during the year whose
(a) Exercise price equals market price 120/-
(b) Exercise price is greater than market price No
(c) Exercise price is less than market price Yes
Weighted average Exercise price of Options granted during the year whose
(a)  Exercise price equals market price Nil
(b)  Exercise price is greater than market price NIL
(c)  Exercise price is less than market price NIL

D. The stock based compensation cost calculated as per the intrinsic value method for the financial year 2016-17 is Rs
52,125/-. If the stock based compensation cost was calculated as per the fair value method, the total cost to be
recognized in the financial statements for the year 2016-17 would be Rs 291,900/-. Had the Company adopted the
fair value method, net profit after tax would have been lower by Rs 344,025/-for the financial year 2016-17.

The effect of adopting the fair value method earnings per share is presented below:

Earnings Per Share: Basic (in Rs.)

- Asreported
- Adjusted Performa

Earnings Per Share: Diluted (inRs.)

- Asreported
- Adjusted Preforma

6.93
6.90

6.93
6.90

g
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Annexure -7

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND
OUTGO PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 134(3)(M) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ
WITH THE COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014:

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:

a) Steps taken for conservation: The Company continues to give high priority to conservation of energy
onanon-going basis. Afew significant measurestaken are:

i) Periodical and preventive maintenance of electric equipments and ensured optimum utilization
of electricenergy.

ii) Phased balancing of heating and lighting load.

iii) Increasein power factor by installing capacitor at the individual machines.
Steps taken for utilizing alternate sources of energy :-

Cost of power is negligible in total cost of production.

Capital investment on energy conservation equipments:-

Further energy conservation is planned through replacement of and modification of inefficient
equipmentsand by providing automatic controls to reduce idle running of equipments.

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:
Efforts made for technology absorption
1. Research and Development (R & D):

a) Specific areas on which R & D carried on by the Company: Research and Development has been
carried out for quality improvement, new product developments and productivity improvement.

b) Benefits derived as a result of the above R & D: Increase in overall efficiency, productivity and
quality of outgoing product and a wider range of watch components along with incremental
business from customers

Future plan of action: Further improvement in production processes, to develop new dial finishes,
new types of index, development of tools and components and reduction of costs would continue.

Expenditure on R&D: No separate account is being maintained by the company for the expenditure
incurred on R&D. However, the Company is incurring recurring expenditure towards development
activities.

2.  Technology Absorption, Adaptation & Innovation:

Efforts, in brief, made towards technology absorption, adaptation and innovation: The Company is
constantly engagedinin-house R&D and is in constant touch with the new technologies.

Benefits derived as a result of the above efforts: Due to continuous developmental efforts, the Company
has been able to produce much more complicated dials which were beingimported until now.

3. i)  Technologyimported: None after 1995.
ii) Yearoflmport: N.A.
iii) Hastechnologybeen fullyabsorbed?: VYes.

iv) If not absorbed, area where this has not taken place, reasons thereof and future plans of
action: N.A.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO (Rupeesin Millions)
2016-17

Foreign Exchange earnings 688.45
Foreign Exchange outgo 55.09
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Annexure — 8

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES PURSUANT TO SECTION 134(3)(q) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ
WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL
PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

S.No.| Requirements of Rule 5(1) Details

(i) The ratio of the remuneration of each directorto | | Mr. R.K.Saboo # 184 :1
the median remuneration of the employees of | | Mr. Y. Saboo 37.9:1
the company for the financial year Mr. Sanjeev Masown 221 :1

The percentage of increase in remuneration of | | Name As per As per
each director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Payout Terms
Executive Officer, Company Secretary or | | Mr.RK.Saboo 6.8% 7.1%
Manager, if any, in the Financial year; Mr. Y.Saboo * 37.7% 26.6 %
Mr. Sanjeev 13.3 % 16.7 %
Masown

Mr. Raman Not applicable
Sood

* Including remuneration from subsidiary Ethos
Limited

The difference in Terms of appointment and actual
payout is due to variable component, which is
linked to performance of individual and company
againstthe agreed parameter.

The percentage increase in the median| 10%
remuneration of employeesin the financial year;

The number of permanent employees on the 1041 employees as on 31.03.2017
rolls of company;

Average percentile increase already made in the | Ayerage Salary increase of non-managerial
salaries of employees other than the managerial | employeesis 12.9%

personnel in the last financial year and its
comparison with the percentile increase in the
managerial remuneration and justification
thereof and point out if there are any There are no exceptional circumstances in
exceptional circumstances for increase in the | increaseinmanagerial remuneration.

managerial remuneration;

Average salary increase of managerial employees
is12.7%

(vi) | Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the | Remuneration paid during the year is as per the
remuneration policy of the company. Remuneration Policy of the Company.

# Retired on 30th Nov. 2016
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Annexure -9

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

AN OVERVIEW OF THE ECONOMY

Global Economy
The global economy s trying to bounce back after two difficult years 2015 and 2016.

With US showing healthy growth after activities were held back in 2016 by inventory adjustment and weak
investment. China is also projecting more robust growth on the back of policy support from their Government.
Activity has moved upward in emerging markets on expectation of improved macroeconomic triggers.

As per the latest IMF report, world growth is expected to grow to 3.4% in 2017 and 3.6% in 2018 from 3.1% in
2016.

The impactof Brexit and the US elections, though stilluncertain, points to some risk due toshifts in the direction of
isolationism andprotectionism. The post war consensus in favourof globalization of goods, services and laborin
particular, and market-based economicorganization more broadly, is under threatacross the advanced
economies. Butitis stilltoo early to analyze the repercussions of such decisions.

Indian Economy

India continues to dominate the market among developing nations attracting foreign investments from across
the globe. Government paved way for many key policies in 2016 making acceleration of activities from the
implementation of these structural reforms.

The government is all set to rollout GST during the year which will create a common Indian market, improve tax
compliance, boost investment and growth and improve governance. However as watches has been included in
the 28% bracket, higher than expected 18%, short term challenges are inevitable.

Government took the bold step on November 2016 to curb the black money transactions by demonetizing high
denomination notes. For a while entire nation was under cash crunch. Itimpacted several sections of the society
with their livelihood getting disrupted from individual financial crises to scarcity of demand in the market. Lack of
demand caused flat growth in manufacturing and services giving rise to widened gap in economy's deficit.

The demonetization of high currency notes together with other legislative and administrative steps will help the
economy to be more transparent and will give positive results in the long run.

The growth forecast as per IMF has been trimmed for 2017 to 7.2%. Medium term forecast seems to suggest
growth torise to about 8%.

The PAN Card implementation on transaction of Rs.2 lakhs and above and demonetization did affect the company
adversely but not severely as competition as a smaller part of our transactions was in cash. The Company is
confident of achieving higher sales number as there is definite sign of shift of consumption patterns among the
consumers.

As per the 2017 union budget, Government has further imposed restriction of cash usage above Rs. 2 lakhs. The
impact of the decision was already covered under PAN card implementation; thus, Company did not face major
hits on the wake of this. For the retail segment, Government has taken several initiatives and steps such as
liberalization of Foreign Direct Investment norms including permitting Single Brand Retail Trading (SBRT) under e-
commerce route, Digital India movement, etc. It is believed that it will take few quarters before infrastructure
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measures along with tax incentives starts providing impetus to consumer spending.

Swiss Watch Industry

In 2016, Swiss watchmakers had their worst year since the global financial crisis, with exports falling 10 per cent,
largely as a result of weakness in Hong Kong and the US, the industry's two biggest markets. Sales to Chinese
buyers have been hit in recent years by a corruption clampdown in the country, while consumer spending on
luxury goods in Europe has been damped by terrorist attacks.

The environment confronting the Swiss watch industry remained difficult throughout the year 2016. Swiss watch
industry exports fell for the second year in succession. Their value stood at 19.4 billion francs compared to
exports of 21.5 billion francs in previous year. With this result, the industry has returned to its 2011 level and seen
anendtothe growth of 15% achieved between 2011 and 2014.

Exports of Swiss watches fell in the first half of 2016 to CHF 9.5 billion from CHF 10.2 billion in 2015. This decline
continued inJuly and August also but picked up during the end of the year.

Asia strongly influenced by the trend in Hong Kong reported the biggest contraction in 2016 and accounted for
more than half the decline. Europe and America posted identical downturns with -8.6%. Hong Kong played a very
importantrole in terms of the global result. After two years of heavy decline, the value of this market has fallen by
halfin 4 years. China on the other hand, recovered strongly thanks to a positive second half (+9.1%). South Korea
(+3.7%) was one of the few countries to progress. The Middle East markets were affected by declining oil
revenues and weakened in the second half of the year.

In Europe, only the United Kingdom (+3.7%) benefiting from the weaker pound sterling, stood out as an exception
in the context of a clearly negative trend. France (-19.6%) was particularly hard hit by the decline in tourism and a
general sentiment of insecurity. The trend in United States (-9.1%) did not stand outin 2016 and remained in line
with the global average.

Overall, during the year, Switzerland exported 25.4 million watches against 28.1 million watches in 2015, i.e.
decline by 9.8%.

Main markets for Swiss Watches

Geographical distribution (in CHF million)

Countries

Value in
2016

Value in
2015

Change in
%

Share in
% 2016

Share in
% 2015

Hong Kong

2382.6

3,179.0

-25.0%

12.3%

14.7%

USA

21455

2,359.1

-9.0%

11.0%

11.0%

China

1293.2

1,336.8

-3.3%

6.7%

6.2%

Italy

1180.8

1,315.9

-10.0%

6.1%

6.1%

Japan

1262.0

1,305.5

-3.3%

6.5%

6.1%

Other Countries

11,141.0

12,038.2

-7.5%

57.4%

55.9%

Total

19,405.1

21,534.5

-9.0%

100.0%

100.0%

While the outlook continues to be weak especially in Hong Kong and China market due to economic slowdown in
the region and the anti-corruption and anti-kickback legislation in China. Hong Kong has also been affected by the
drop in Chinese tourists due to changes in visa requirements and increased political uncertainty in the region. In
addition, the sharp appreciation of the Swiss Francin 2015 following the removal of the exchange rate floor by the
Swiss National Bank led to arise in the price of imports from Switzerland, further affecting sales.
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Expectations from Europe have also deteriorated against a background of economic stagnation and geopolitical
uncertainty caused by a series of terrorist attacks. The most highly rated market remains North America and

considered as the market with most potential.

Main watch exporting countries (Direct Exports)

Countries

Units in Million

Change in %

Units in Million

Change in %

2016

China

652.0

-4.5%

682.8

+2.1%

Hong Kong

241.0

-12.9%

276.7

-12.2%

Switzerland

25.4

-9.8%

28.1

-1.6%

Germany

17.5

-20.5%

21.9

+4.4%

USA

10.4

+9.2%

9.5

-2.0%

China exported 652 million pieces of watches in 2016, decline of 4.5% over previous year but the value of exports
were 3.3% higher in the local currency with a value equivalent to 5.6 billion dollars. On the other hand Hong Kong
volume exports declined by 12.9% to 241 million pieces with value of 8.8 billion dollars. Volumes wise, Switzerland
maintained its third position with exports of 25.4 million watchesin 2015, decline of 9.8% over previous year.

Swiss brands also gained visibility in the Smart watch market. Swatch, which was already quoted in the top 3
smartwatch brandsin 2015is now joined by Tag Heuer.

So far, Swiss brands have not played a very important role in the smart watch market. During the year, TAG Heuer
and Frederique Constant have also launched smart watches. Despite the dramatic sales growth of the smart
watch segment, it remains unclear whether it poses a significant threat to the Swiss watch industry. The decrease
in exports of Swiss watches in recent months was mainly caused by the decline in Hong Kong and China, a strong
Swiss Franc and uncertainty in the global environment. There is no sign that sales of Swiss watches have been
impacted by Smart watches.

Another major development during the year is the implementation of the “SWISS ORIGIN” regulations w.e.f.
2017 and the sourcing strategy of the watch brands may undergo change in the next couple of quarters based on
the requirement for compliance of these regulations.

Overview of Indian Retail Sector

Both the size and shape of the consumer market in India are fundamentally changing. The Indian retail industry is
one of the fastest growing in the world. Retail industry in India is expected to grow to USS$ 1.3 trillion by 2020,
registeringa Compound Annual Growth Rate (CAGR) of 16.7% over 2015-20. Due to its high market potential, low
economicriskand moderate political risk, it has occupied remarkable position in global retail rankings.

Indiais the 5th largest preferred retail destination globally. With the Retail sector developing not only in major cities
& metros butalsoin Tier Il & Tier lll cities, India is experiencing an exponential growth compared to other developing
markets. The factors driving growth in the Retail industry in India are Healthy economic growth, changing
demographic profile, increasing disposable incomes, urbanization, changing consumer tastes and preferences.

Overview of Indian Luxury Market

India's nominal year-over-year expenditure growth of 12% is more than double the anticipated global rate of 5%
and it will make India the third-largest consumer market by 2025. Rising affluence is the highest driving factor for
increase in consumption.

Consumers in emerging cities behave differently from the big-city consumers. They have high purchasing
aspirations but are often constrained by product availability. Company is adding few stores to tap the
opportunitiesin such locations driving their aspirations into actual sales.

Indian luxury market is currently pegged to be at $18.6 billion and is expected to touch $50 billion by 2020 & further
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to reach $180 billion by 2025. This will make India the 12th largest luxury retail market in the world by 2020.

India is adding substantial number of ultra-high net worth individuals annually in its portfolio which drives the
luxury segment in the country. A series of progressive political and trade measures introduced by the
Government of India over the past three years has further triggered luxury trade interest.

A national love for the shopping and bartering experience is a large part of the reason why luxury brands choose
to enter the country through brick and mortar stores, despite the limited infrastructure and mall space which is a
huge stumbling block. Luxury has not been able to make footprints into the interiors of the country yet. However,
tier |l cities such as Surat, Pune, Ahmedabad and Baroda are home to some of the richest Indian families in the
country, who are eager to spend money on luxury but are left with limited options.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

KDDL Limited is one of the leading Companies in India in manufacture of watch components and also emerging as
a strong engineering company for manufacture of high quality precision stamped components and progressive
tools for various applications. KDDL also manages the largest retail chain luxury Swiss watches in the organised
sector through its subsidiary, Ethos Limited.

The Company's revenues are primarily from manufacture of watch components, progressive tools, precision
engineering components and sub-assemblies. An overview of the different business segments are given below:

Turnover

Despite the sluggish watch market environment, the total turnover of the company grew by 5% during the year as
compared to decline of 3% during the last year, primarily driven by the growth in the Precision Engineering business.

The watches component segment of company which has a major revenue share in the overall business is not
insulated from market environment and was impacted by the Swiss market down and the revenue from exports
declined by 6%. In spite of decline in revenue from exports market, the overall revenue in watch component
segmentimproved marginally by 1% because of the improved market conditions in domestic market.

All segments of the manufacturing business (except Packaging) witnessed growth in operational revenue. The
overall turnover from the domestic market improved by 22% and on the other hand turnover from exports
market declined by 4% compared to the revenue in last year from respective markets.

The watch components business of the domestic market saw healthy growth of 14.7% in value. On the other
hand, exports value of watch components business declined by 6.1% due to slow down in the Swiss market. This is
the second year in a row when the exports market have remained sluggish and the revenue has declined from
exportsto Swiss customers.

EIGEN the precision engineering business of the company saw a healthy growth of 28% in revenue compared to
previous year on account of improved market conditions especially in the 'Electrical & Electronics' and
'Automobile' segments catered by the company.

Revenue of ornamental packaging business of the company was stagnant during the year.

The Company's overall strategy is to continue focus on increasing exports of watch components to Swiss market and to
accelerate the growth of Precision Engineering business by adding new capabilities and increasing marketing efforts.

Watch Components

During the year, dials units of the company located at Parwanoo and Baddi (H.P) and Derabassi (Punjab) operated
at sub-optimal capacity utilisations due to sluggish order position mainly from export markets. The overall
revenue of Dial units declined further by 10% over a decline of 4% in previous year. The major reason of decline in
Dial units revenue was from exports market, which declined by 22% compared to previous year. All major
customers and brands in Swiss market were impacted by the slowdown and this led to overall decline in the order
position for the company. The Dial units revenue from domestic market improved by 12% during the year
compared toadecline of 3% in previous year.
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The overall revenue of Watch Hands Units of the Company located at Bangalore registered a growth of 11%
compared to decline of 5.5% in the previous year. The revenue of Hands unit from domestic and exports market
increased by 18% and 7% respectively compared to previous year.

Precision Engineering Components

The overall revenue of our precision components manufacturing unit at Bangalore witnessed a healthy growth of
28% compared to a decline of 6.5% in the previous year. The growth in turnover of the unit was from all segments
and markets catered by the unit. The year on year growth in revenue from domestic market was 45%, whereas
the direct and indirect exports market grew by 15% compared to previous year. During the year, company had
initiated various efforts for increasing its presence and reach with the potential customer segments, by regular
participationsin the relevant trade fairs and exhibitions.

Other Businesses

Another business of the company relates to manufacture of Packaging for ornamental jewellery, watches, writing
instruments and other accessories. The revenue of the company from this business declined by 0.7% compared
to previous year revenue. The major reason for decline in revenue was slow down in the market post
demonetization of high currency notes by the Government of India.

Strategic Initiatives

The financial year 2016-17 commenced with suppressed market conditions in the Swiss watch industry. Contrary
to expectation of improvement in H2, market conditions continued to fall. Only in the last quarter of the year, the
market conditions showed signs of improvement. It is likely that the Swiss watch industry will still need 2 to 3
quarters time for full recovery. The efforts of the company in the previous few year for consolidation and
restructuring of the watch component manufacturing facilities, enhancing the capabilities to manufacture more
complex products coupled with improvement in productivity and delivery compliance will help the company in
meeting the challenge of sluggish markets. The company will be well positioned to capture and encash the
opportunities post revival of market conditions.

During the year, company initiated efforts for manpower rationalization and restricting overheads on non-
productive areas. Company is continuously putting efforts and resources for enhancing skills to optimize
operational efficiencies, improving productivity and add capabilities to manufacture additional features, more
complexcomponents.

Despite the suppressed Swiss watch market conditions, the watch hands business of the company captured
market share from competition by offering new features and designs to customers and gained entry into many
new customersin the high end of segment by demonstrating the enhanced level of capability and execution skills.
Company also initiated the efforts for induction of some of the new customers in the Hong Kong market, where in
the existing presence and share of market was not significant. The efforts of the company to capture business
fromthe Far East market segment will help in generating healthy growth in the coming years.

The major focus of the company is to increase market presence in engineering business by enhancing the core
capabilities, adding value additive capabilities and aggressive marketing efforts.

As a part of this exercise, during the year, company increased its efforts for enhancing the growth of precision
stamped components and progressive tooling. The Company is show casing its technical capabilities by
participating in relevant international trade fairs and exhibitions. The Company has also initiated efforts in digital
marketing of capabilities and capacities in targeted countries; the response from these marketing efforts is
healthy. The flow of RFQ's both from existing and new customers are steadily improving. Leading indicators for
the business are very positive. The company continues to view the precision engineering business as major
growth driversinthe comingyears.

During the last year, company got AS 9100C certification by the inspection and registering authority TUV SUD.
This certification will help the company in getting leads and business from the Aerospace segment in due course
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of time. In addition the company also got certified for the Environmental Management System in accordance with
ISO 14001:2015, which becomes a pre-requisite for many of the international customers. Company also qualified
as VDA - 6.3 (QMC)Qualitats Management Center from the Continental Group and this makes company eligible
for getting the leads and RFQ''s for the existing capabilities of the company.

The revenue of the company during the year increased from new capabilities of mould making and manufacture
of plastic injection moulded components. During the year, company also added the capacity and capability of
stamping on higher tonnage presses, Wire EDM and EDM. The company also initiated the expansion project near
Bangalore Airportin KIADB Aerospace Park. The expansion project is progressing as per schedule.

During the year, the website of company www.ethoswatches.com, was utilised to the maximum potential for
enhancing the online leads and conversion. This platform continues to be used by our subsidiary Ethos Limited.

Company continues to identify and eliminate the non-value added process for improving internal controls and
efficiencies and during the year, company has extended the SAP tools for many additional processes and
automated many other processes for better compliance and cost optimizations.

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE REVIEW

Revenue

The gross operating income of the company declined from Rs. 1234 million to Rs. 1308 million representing an
increase of 6% over the previous year. The turnover of the company was broadly stable in both half's of the year,
but third quarter was significantly low in the year as the market slowdown impacted lead to reduced order
position for the company. However, the market situation and order position improved in the last quarter. The
watch market conditions and overall environment was sluggish, but the impact on Company operations was less
because of the structured focus and efforts of the company on other business streams coupled with the delivery
of the high quality competitive products. The watch segment gross operating income improved marginally from
Rs. 943 Million to Rs. 944 Million, compared to a decline of 1.7% in previous year. The precision engineering
business stream revenue increased from Rs. 185 Million to Rs. 248 Million, registering a healthy growth of 34%
compared toadecline of 3.9% in the previous year. The revenue from residual business stream mainly comprising
of ornamental packaging reduced from Rs. 45 million to Rs. 44 million.

The domestic sale of the company improved from Rs. 443 Million to Rs. 538 Million representing a healthy growth
of 21.5%, whereas the direct and indirect export revenue declined from Rs. 730 Million to Rs. 700 Million
registering a decline of 4.2%, mainly because of sluggish market conditions in the Swiss watch industry.

Margins
During the year the margins of the company remained under pressure due to major slowdown in the watch

export markets and strategic initiatives of the company for developing and enhancing the revenue from Precision
engineering business.

The earnings before interest, depreciation, taxes and appropriations improved from Rs. 228 million to Rs. 239
million, increase of almost4.6% over the previous year. The operating EBIDTA earning after eliminating the
exceptional, abnormal cost and CSR expenditure reduced from 19.2% to 18.8% achieved in previous year. The
reduction in EBIDTA percentage was due to decline in the exports revenue, wherein the margins are better
compared to domestic market.

Shareholders' Funds

The company's reserves improved from Rs. 756 million as on 31st March 2016 to Rs. 1019 million as on 31st
March 2017, on account of retained earnings from the profitability of the company and also due to receipt of
share premium of Rs. 191 million on issue and allotment of 754716 equity shares of face value Rs. 10 each on a
preferential basis for cash at a price of Rs. 265 (including premium of Rs. 255) during the year.

The Share capital of the company also increased from Rs. 101.7 million to Rs. 109.2 million on account of
allotment of equity shares on preferential basis.
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In addition, Company allotted 377356 Zero Coupon Convertible Warrants (1 warrant convertible to into 1 equity share
offace value of Rs. 10 each to promoter group for cash at a price of Rs. 265 per warrant (including premium of Rs. 255).

Loan Funds and Cost of Debt

The interest cost as a percentage to total revenue decreased substantially from 3.9% to 2.7% in 2016-17. During
the year, Reserve Bank of India reduced the interest rates but banks were lagging behind in passing on the benefit
to customers. However due to improved liquidity of the company post induction of funds through allotment of
new shares on preferential basis, the company reduced its high costs debts and working capital borrowings,
which led to sharp reduction in the borrowing costs. All new debt borrowings of the company are being
negotiated and concluded at lower interest rates. The overall simple average cost of debt decreased to 8.6% from
10.1% during the previous year.

The Company continues to focus and optimize the working capital cycle and reduce cost of borrowing by effective
use and availing of different financing options. The company continues its efforts on restricting the overall
borrowing of the company for better leverage.

Fixed Assets

Gross Fixed Assets of the company including Capital work in progress during the year increased from Rs. 1317
million to Rs. 1430 million mainly on account of expansion project of precision engineering business in KIADB
Aerospace Park, near Bangaluru Airport. In addition some investment was done on normal capital expenditure in
the different units forincreasing productivity, new product developments and addition of other assets for quality,
safety, Information technology and administrative functions.

Subsidiary Companies and Joint Ventures
Ethos Limited

FY 16-17 has been an extremely challenging year for the luxury watch retail business. Close on the heels of the
introduction of PAN requirement for transactions above Rs. 2 lakhs, there were further regulatory changes that
were enacted. In July 2016, a new requirement for collecting TCS for all transaction in cash above Rs. 3 lakhs was
introduced. Thereafter, on November 8, 2017, the government banned all Rs. 500 and Rs. 1000 notes.
Subsequently, an announcement was made in the Union Budget 2017, that cash transactions above Rs. 2 lakhs
would be banned with effect from 1 April 2017.

These changes have had a cumulative impact on the revenues of the company. The sales of the company have
declined by around 1% over the sales of the previous year from Rs. 328.6 crores to Rs. 327.3 crores. Thisis for the first
time that such adecline has happened in the entire history of the company. However, it is pertinent to note that while
the introduction of the PAN and the TCS requirement did have an immediate impact on the sale of the company, the
sales showed a turnaround and witnessed an increased rate of growth. The sales in Q1 of FY16-17 showed a growth
of 6%. In Q2, the sales of the company grew by 8%. This reflected the Company's position that that the impact of PAN
guidelines will diminish over a period and sales will revert to the normal rates of growth. The demonetization event
also had a similarly large immediate impact on sales. However, as these regulatory changes gain wider acceptance
amongst the watch customers, the sales growth should revert to levels witnessed.

The gross margins of the company declined by nearly 2% in FY16-17. The decline in sales and the margins of the
company percolated to the EBIDTA, which declined from 2.2%in FY15-16t0 1.2% in FY16-17. The loss for the year
FY16-17 stood at Rs. 7.48 crores. Needless to say, the impact of these changes has been considerable.

However, the factors that made the market opportunity for luxury watches attractive are still as robust as they
were before these regulatory changes. The penetration of luxury watches continues to remain low, the number of
HNI households continues to rise and the demographics continue to remain favorable. The company is
recalibrating it's strategy to realign with the new environment with a greater emphasis on accessible luxury price
points, and sharper focus on margin improvement, operating leverage and capital efficiency. We expect a healthy
rebound in all the basic performance metrics during the current financial year, after the turbulence that is
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expected after the GSTimplementation has died down.

The Company is also investing in its omni-channel capabilities with a view to provide a seamless connect between
the digital and physical stores. Further, the Company is expanding its footprint of stores to cities where the
Company has little or no presence. In this regard, the Company has signed up 7 new locations and continues to
scout for more opportunities for growth.

Pylania SA

During the financial year 2016-17 the manufacturing operations of the company were recommenced partially for
the manufacture of Watch Hands. During the year, company also commenced the watches trading to India for the
some of the major Swiss Brands like Titoni, Corum, Raymond Weil and ORIS.

As aresult of these initiatives the revenue of the company during the year increased to CHF 1040 K from CHF 486
Kin 2015-16, registering a healthy growth of more than 114%. During the year, company continued to provide
consultancy and managerial services to customers.

During the year, Kamla International Holding SA (KIH) waived partially subordinated loans of CHF 690 K, which
resulted in onetime extraordinary income for the company. These loans were purchased earlier by KIH from 3rd
party lenders at discounted prices and without any financial outgo. The waiver of loan did not have any adverse
financial impact on KIH financials. Management of Pylania hasalso taken various steps for restricting overheads
and meeting financial obligations of all stakeholders.

During the year, SWISS MADE regulations have been implemented w.e.f. 1st January 2017 and this will lead to
shift in sourcing strategy of some watch manufacturing brands. Company plans to extend operations to meet the
requirement of these customers.

The Company has reported profit of CHF 768 K(including extraordinary income of CHF 690 K on account of loan
waiver) during the financial year compared to profit of CHF 56 Kiin previous year.

The management is confident that with the improvement in market conditions, Swiss made regulations and trading
business of the company will helpinfurtherimproving the financial performance and growth of revenue and profitability.

Satvalewellery and Design Limited

During the financial year, this company became 100% subsidiary of the KDDL from earlier joint venture Company
between KDDL and Pascal Vaucher Holding, SA of Switzerland with equal ownership. Company was in dialogue
with other joint venture partner for last few years and now the joint venture agreement has been terminated
without any financial liability on company. KDDL Board has also approved the merger of this company with parent
company to bring synergy in the operations and to utilize its resources for creating value for shareholders.

Human Resource Management

The skills and capabilities of our team remain our most valuable asset. KDDL seeks to attract and retain the best
talent available. Human Resource Management incorporates a process driven approach that invests regularly in
the training and development needs of employees through succession planning, job rotation, on the job training
and extensive training workshops and programs.

The Company's Talent Management process focused on building talent at various levels in the organization. A
number of professions in different functions had been hired keeping in mind the company's future needs to build
a leadership pipeline. Also, new people had been hired to build capabilities in new areas and to fill any gaps. As
such, the Company has focused on developing internal talent through a robust identification process and with a
clear development plan designed for each such talent.

During the year the Company held various employee engagement programs in order to bolster employee morale
inculcate a feeling of team work and camaraderie and create a mechanism to recognize individual and team
contributions to the organizations. Programs such as Chairman's Annual Awards and Star Performer Awards
recognize and reward individual and team achievements across the Group. The total number of employees of the
Company was over 1300 during the year under review.
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INTERNALCONTROLSYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

A strong internal control culture is an important focus and thrust area in the company. The company has
comprehensive internal systems, controls and policies for all the major processes to ensure the reliability of
financial reporting, timely feedback on achievement of operational and strategic goals, compliance with policies,
procedures, laws, and regulations, safeguarding of assets and economical and efficient use of resources.

The formalized systems of control facilitate effective compliance as per Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement. The
company also has well documented Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) for various processes which are
periodically reviewed for changes warranted due to business needs.

The Internal Auditors of the company continuously monitors the efficacy of internal controls/ compliance with
SOPs with the objective of providing to the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors, an independent,
objective and reasonable assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the organization's risk management,
controland governance processes.

The scope and authority of the Internal Audit activity are well defined in the Internal Audit scope and guidelines,
approved by the Audit Committee. Internal Auditors develops a risk based annual audit plan with inputs from
major stake holders, and the major focus areas as per previous audit reports.

All significant audit observations are reviewed periodically and follow-up actions thereon are reported to the
Audit Committee. The Audit Committee also meet the company's Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditors to
ascertain their views on the financial statements, including the financial reporting system, compliance to
accounting policies and procedures, the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal controls and systems
followed by the company.

The top and senior management of the company also assesses opportunities for improvement in business
processes, systems and controls, provides recommendations, designed to add value to the organization and
follows up onthe implementation of corrective actions and improvements in business processes.

The senior management of the company meets periodically to assess the performance of the each business
segment and key functions of the company and areas for improvement of performance / controls are
identified and reviewed on continuous basis.

RISKS, THREATS AND CONCERNS

Risk means uncertainties about events and their outcomes that could have a material impact on the performance
and projections of the Company. Since risk is inherent in every business, it is the Company's responsibility to
minimizeitsincidence in orderto protect and enhance shareholder value.

Our framework for combating risks recognizes that risks may be divided into two broad categories —risks that
are common and relevant for most business in general and risks that are more specifically applicable to your
company and business in particular. The Risk Management Policy at KDDL inter-alia provides for Risk
identification, assessment, and reporting and mitigation procedure. The Policy is continuously updated and
adoptedto the changing environmentin which the Company operates.

Risks of General Nature

Risks relating to the general macroeconomic environment of the Company include risks associated with political
and legal changes, changes in tax structures, and commercial rules & laws. The Company keeps a proactive track
to anticipate such changes and mitigate associated risks to the extent possible.

Risks related to man-made and natural disasters such as explosions, earthquakes, storms as well as civil disturbances
are handled by following best practices in the design of structures and “safety first” as a guiding principle while
designing technical and business processes duly supplemented with requisite insurance coverage.

: 54 ',




KDDL Limited

The third set of general risks relates to risks from market led changes. These include risks associated with sudden
fall in GDP and growth rates, overall market condition in India and abroad, or sudden changes in market
preferences. The mitigation of these risks is achieved by a cost-effective and flexible working structure which
would allow the Company to scale up or scale down working in affected areas in accordance with the changes.

Specific Risks
We have identified the following specific risks that need more detailed attention in the present circumstances
and business of the Company.

Risks due to decline in overall demand for watches: While we remain confident of a steady growth in the
demand of watches in India over the next 10-15 years, we are aware of the decline of the watch as a time keeping
instrument. At the same time, we see an evident increase in the watch becoming an important fashion accessory
and also as an activity monitoring cum communicating instrument. The risk of such decline in the functional value
of awatchis mitigated by positioning ourselves to better serve the watch as a fashion and wearable technology.

Risks pertaining to over dependence on few companies: The Company has enjoyed a close and mutually
beneficial association with several leaders in the watch business most notably Titan, Timex in India and the
Swatch Group and many of the other leading brands in Switzerland. This inevitably has lead to a substantial part of
the Company's business being related to these groups.

Notwithstanding the strong standing of these companies and our Company's enduring relationship with them,
we recognize that broad-basing our customer base and brand partner base is a priority to mitigate any inherent
risk from over-dependence on any specific partner.

Risks related to over dependence on one business: The company is structurally focussing on increasing the
revenue from other manufacturing business streams and strategically enhancing the growth of these segments, which
will help is off-setting the over dependence on the watch segment. In order to overcome the risks of over dependence
on watch components, company is aggressively focusing on the business growth from other business segment of
precision engineering components and also adding new capabilities for enhancement of revenue stream.

Foreign Exchange Risks: More than 55% of the Company's manufacturing turnover comes from exports,
denominated in Swiss Francs and US Dollars. The fall and rise in these currencies can seriously impact the working
of the Company in the short and medium term. In the current year, the fall in the value of these currencies will
have a significantimpact on the export earnings in Rupee terms and thereby on the profitability of the Company.
This risk is mitigated with several measures whichinclude:

e Hedging of currencies to the extent reasonably possible, also keeping in mind natural hedge we enjoy by
exporting and importingin the same currency.

e Balancingofimports and exports.

Risk related to Personnel: Our business is increasingly dependent on the skills and competencies of our
employees and management team. The general war for talent in our growing economy has created a risk
related to the retention of key personnel both in manufacturing and retail sector. This risk is mitigated through
effective HR policies relating to recruitment and retention and a proactive remuneration and rewards policy
thatis periodically reviewed at the highest management level.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Certain statements made in the “Management Discussion and Analysis Report” relating to the Company's
objectives, projections, outlook, expectations, estimates and others may constitute “forward looking
statements' within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations. Actual results may differ materially from
those expressed or implied. Important factors that could make significant difference to the Company's operations
and actual results include among others, Government Regulations, statutes, tax laws, economic developments
within India and countries in which the company conducts businesses, litigations and other allied factors.
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Annexure - 10

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

I COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance is the application of best management practices, compliance of laws, rules, regulations
and adherence of standards for achieving the objectives of the Company, enhance shareholder value and
discharge of social responsibility. The Corporate Governance structure in the Company assigns responsibility and
authority to Board of Directors, its committees and executive management, senior management, employees etc.

The Company acknowledges its responsibility to its esteemed stakeholders. Even in a fiercely competitive
business environment, the Management and the employees of the Company are committed to uphold the core
values of transparency, integrity, honesty and accountability which are fundamental to the Saboo Business
Group. The Company believes that Corporate Governance helps to achieve commitment and goals to enhance
stakeholder value by focusing towards all stakeholders. Any good corporate governance provides an appropriate
framework for the Board, its committees and the executive management to carry out the objectives that are in
the interest of the Company and its stakeholders. The Company maintains highest levels of transparency,
accountability and good management practices through the adoption and monitoring of corporate strategies,
goals and procedures to comply with its legal and ethical responsibilities.

Il. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(a) Compositionand attendance in meetings

The Board of Directors of the Company has an optimum combination of executive and non-executive directors.
The Board of Directors presently comprises of 9 (nine) members including 2 (two) Whole-Time directors, i.e., the
Vice Chairman—cum-Chief Executive Officer and the Whole Time Director-cum-Chief Financial Officer. The
composition of the Board is in conformity with regulation 17 of Securities & Exchange Board of India( Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015. [SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015]

During the financial year ended on 31st March 2017, 7 (Seven) Board Meetings were held and the gap between
two meetings did not exceed four months. The dates on which the Board Meetings were held are as follows:

2nd May 2016 12th November 2016
30th May 2016 12th December 2016
12th August 2016 14th February 2017

7th October 2016

The following table gives the composition and category of the Directors, their attendance at the Board meetings
held during the year and at the last Annual General meeting, number of other boards or board committees in
which he/she isamember or chairperson:-
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Name of the Business Category of No. of Attendance| No. of *No. of Committee Number of
Director Relationship | Directorship Board atthelast | Directorship | positions held in Shares /
Meetings | AGM held | in other | other companies Convertible
attended | on Public instruments
12.08.2016 | Limi held b
Limited Chairman | Member € y-non
Companies —executive
directors
Mr. R.K. Saboo * Chairman Promoter- 4 Yes - - - -
Executive
Mr. Yashovardhan | Vice-Chairman| Promoter- 7 Yes 8 1 3 -
Saboo -Cum-Chief | Executive
Executive
Officer
Mr. Dinesh Chief Executive Nil NA 3 - - -
Agrawal ** Operating
Officer
(Co0)
Mr. Jagesh Director Independent- 6 Yes 2 - 2 466
Khaitan Non Executive
Mr. Anil Khanna Director Independent- 7 Yes 1 1 1 4283
Non Executive
Mr. Chandra ** Director Independent- 2 No 6 - 3 -
Mohan Non Executive
Ms. Ranjana Director Independent- 5 Yes 3 1 3 -
Agarwal Non Executive
Mr. Praveen Director Independent- 7 Yes 1 - - -
Gupta Non Executive
Mr. Vishal Nominee Non- Executive 2 No 3 - - -
Satinder Sood *** | Director Nominee
Mr. Jai Vardhan Additional Promoter- Non 1 NA - - - -
Saboo#t Director Executive
Mr. Sanjiv Additional Independent- nil NA - - - 1400
Sachar#t Director Non Executive
Mr. Sanjeev Whole Executive 5 Yes - - - -
Kumar Masown” Time
Director-
cum- CFO

(Committee positions includes only the membership of Audit Committee and Stakeholder's Relationship
Committee as per SEBI(LODR) Regulations, 2015)

Except Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo and Mr. Jai Vardhan Saboo, none among other directors have any inter-se
relationships.

Notes on changes in Board of Directors during the year:

*Mr. R.K.Saboo retired as Chairman / Director of the company upon completion of his term w.e.f.1st December
2016;

**Mr. Dinesh Agrawal and Mr. Chandra Mohan resigned from the Board of Directors w.e.f. 30th May 2016 and 7th
October 2016 respectively due to their pre-occupations;
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***Mr. Vishal Satinder Sood was appointed as Non- Executive, Nominee Director by the shareholders at the
Annual General meeting held on 12th August 2016;

##Mr. Jai Vardhan Saboo and Mr. Sanjiv Sachar were appointed as Additional Directors of the company w.e.f. 12th
December 2016 and 7th March 2017 respectively;

AMr. Sanjeev Kumar Masown was appointed as Whole Time Director-cum-Chief Financial Officer of the company
w.e.f. 30th May 2016 by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting held on 12th August 2016.
Familiarisation programme for Independent Directors

Letter of Appointment(s) are issued to Independent Directors setting out in detail, the terms of appointment,
duties, responsibilities and expected time commitments. The web link for the Familiarization Programmes for
Independent Directors is http://www.kddl.com/html/familirisation-programme-for-the-independent-
directors.html

. COMMITTEES OF BOARD

Currently, the Board has four committees: Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee,
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and Stakeholders' Relationship Committee.

1. AUDITCOMMITTEE

The Company has duly constituted Audit Committee and its composition meets the requirements of section 177
of the Companies Act, 2013 and regulation 18 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. The terms of reference of the
Audit Committee are broadly as follows:

1. Oversight of the company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to
ensure that the financial statementis correct, sufficient and credible;

2. Recommendation forappointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the company;
3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors;

4. Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor's report thereon before
submission to the board for approval, with particular reference to:

a) Matters required to be included in the Director's Responsibility Statement to be included in the
Board's reportin terms of clause (c) of sub-section 3 of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013

b) Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same

c) Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management
d) Significantadjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings

e) Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements

f) Disclosure of any related party transactions

g) Modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report

5. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for
approval;

6. Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through and issue
(publicissue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than
those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring
agency, monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a public or rights issue and making appropriate
recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter;

Review and monitor the auditor's independence and performance and effectiveness of audit process;
Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties;

Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;
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10. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever itis necessary;

11. Evaluationofinternal financial controls and risk management systems;

12. Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors and adequacy of the
internal control systems;

13. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit
department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage
andfrequency of internal audit;

14. Discussionwithinternal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on;

15. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is
suspected fraud orirregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the
mattertothe board;

16. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as
well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

17. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders,
shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

18. Toreview the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism;

19. Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-time Finance Director or any other person heading the
finance function or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, experience and
background, etc. of the candidate;

20. Carryingoutany otherfunction asis mentionedin the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.

During the financial year ended on 31st March 2017, 5 (five) meetings of the Audit Committee were held. The
dates on which the meetings of the Audit Committee were held, are as under:

2nd May 2016 12th November 2016
30th May, 2016, 14th February 2017
12th August 2016

The Audit Committee comprises of three independent, non-executive Directors and one promoter Executive
Director having financial and management expertise. The Chairman of Committee is Mr. Jagesh Khaitan, an
independent non-executive Director. The Chairman of the Audit Committee was present at the last annual
general meeting. The composition of the Audit Committee and the details of meetings attended by the Directors
are given below:

Attendance of Members at Meetings of the Audit Committee
Name of the Director Category Designation Meetings attended
Mr. Jagesh Khaitan Independent Non Executive Chairman 4
Mr. R.K. Saboo* Promoter Executive Member 3
Mr. Anil Khanna Independent Non Executive Member 5
Mrs. Ranjana Agarwal Independent Non Executive Member 4
Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo** Promoter Executive Member NA

* Mr. R.K.Saboo has retired as director of the Company w.e.f. 1st December 2016
** Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo was appointed as member of the Audit Committee w.e.f. March 2017
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The Audit Committee invites such Executives as it considers appropriate to be present at its meetings. The
Company Secretary attended all the meetings. The Statutory Auditors are invited to the meetings in which
Quarterly/Annual Accounts are considered. The Internal Auditors are also invited to the meetings in which
Internal Audit Reports are discussed. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Committee.

2. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The role of the Nomination and Remuneration committee as set out in Part-D of Schedule-Il of SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015 and a brief description of terms of reference include the following:

1. Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a
director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of the directors, key
managerial personnel and other employees;

2. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board of Directors;
3. Devisinga policy on diversity of Board of Directors;

4. Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior
management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board their appointment
and removal.

5. Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis of the
report of performance evaluation of independent directors.

During the financial year ended on 31st March, 2017, 2 (two) meetings of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee were held on 30th May 2016 and 12th December 2016. Mr. Jagesh Khaitan, Independent and non
executive director is the chairman of the Committee.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee was re-constituted in March 2017. The composition of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee ason 31st March 2017 is as given below:

Attendance of Members at Meetings of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Name of the Director Category Designation Meetings attended
Mr. Jagesh Khaitan Independent Non Executive Chairman 2

Mr. AnilKhanna Independent Non Executive Member 2

Mr. Chandra Mohan Independent Non Executive Member 1

Mrs. Ranjana Agarwal Independent Non Executive Member NA

Mr. Praveen Gupta Independent Non Executive Member NA

Mr. Sanjiv Sachar Independent Non Executive Member NA

During the year, Mr. Chandra Mohan resigned as Director of the company w.e.f. 7th October 2016. Mr. Anil
Khanna resigned as member of the Committee and Mrs. Ranjana Agarwal, Mr. Praveen Gupta and Mr. Sanjiv
Sachar were appointed as members of the committee w.e.f 10th March 2017.

Performance evaluation criteria for Independent Directors-

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has laid down the criteria for performance evaluation of
Independent Directors which are as under-

Frequency of meetings attended

Timeliness of circulating Agenda for meetings and descriptiveness
Quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information to the Board
Promptness with which Minutes of the meetings are drawn and circulated

Opportunity to discuss matters of criticalimportance, before decisions are made
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Familiarity with the objects, operations and other functions of the company

Importance given to Internal Audit Reports, Management responses and steps towards
improvement

Avoidance of conflict of interest

Exercise of fiscal oversight and monitoring financial performance

Level of monitoring of Corporate Governance Regulations and compliance

Adherence to Code of Conduct and Business ethics by directors individually and collectively
Monitoring of Regulatory compliances and risk assessment

Review of Internal Control Systems

Performance of the Chairperson of the company including leadership qualities
Performance of the Whole time Director

Overall performance of the Board/ Committees

The members of the Board jointly discuss, evaluate and identify the areas for improving the performance and
effectiveness of the Board.

Remuneration of Director

There was no pecuniary relationship or transaction between the Non-Executive Directors and the company
during the financial year 2016-17.

(1) Non-Executive Directors

The remuneration of Non Executive Directors shall be finalised considering the following:

a)

b)

d)

They will be entitled to receive remuneration by way of sitting fees for attending meetings of the
Board or its Committees at rates within the limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and
rules made thereunder.

Non Executive Directors do not participate in Board discussions which relate to their own
remuneration.

They receive reimbursement of reasonable expenses incurred in attending the Board, Committee
and other adhoc meetings.

Remuneration is paid subject to deduction of Income Tax at source and payment of applicable
Service Tax.

During the year under review, the Non Executive Directors of the Company were paid sitting fees as
under (including fees paid for Committee meetings):

Name of the Director Sitting Fees paid (Gross) (Rs.)
Mr. Anil Khanna 150,000
Mr. Chandra Mohan 40,000
Mr. Jagesh Khaitan 135,000
Mr. Praveen Gupta 105,000
Mrs. Ranjana Agarwal 110,000
Total 540,000

(2) Executive Directors

The Company has framed a Remuneration Policy, the brief terms of which are given hereunder:-

a)

At the time of appointment or re-appointment, the Chairman, Vice Chairman, Managing Director
and Whole Time Director shall be paid such remuneration as may be mutually agreed between the
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b)

f)

g)

Company (which includes the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors)
and the respective Director within the overall limits as prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013
and rules made thereunder.

The remuneration shall be subject to the approval of the Members of the Company in General
Meeting.

The remuneration of the above said directors is broadly divided into fixed and variable component
whereas the remuneration of Chairman consists of fixed components only.

The remuneration of the directors may also include Employee Stock Option Plans (ESOPs) as per the
provisions of applicable laws.

The fixed compensation shall comprise salary, allowances, perquisites, amenities and retirement
benefits. The variable component shall comprise of individual and company performance bonus.

In determining the remuneration (including the fixed increment and performance bonus), the
Nomination & Remuneration Committee shall consider the following:

- Therelationship of remuneration and performance benchmarks is clear;

- Balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives
appropriate to the working of the company and its goals;

- Responsibility required to be shouldered by the above said Directors and the industry
benchmarks and the current trends;

- The Company's performance vis-a-vis the annual budget achievement and individual
performance vis- a-vis the Key Responsibility Areas (KRAs) / Key Performance Indicators (KPls).

Executive Directors are not entitled to sitting fees for attending meeting of directors.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee will consider the performance against measurable
parameters and also have subjective assessment of individual while fixation / revisions of remuneration.

Details of remuneration paid to the executive directors during the financial year ended on 31st March,
2017, including disclosures as required under clause-1V, Section-Il, Part-1l of Schedule-V of the Companies
Act, 2013 aregiven asfollows:

(Amounting)

Particulars of the Name of Executive Director
S.No. | Remuneration Mr. R.K. Saboo | Mr. Yashovardhan| Mr. Sanjeev
Saboo Kumar Masown
(i) Salary and Allowances
a. | Salary 2,893,600 4,719,000 3,870,000
b. | Perquisites & allowances 94,916 298,476 33,000
c. | Bonus - - -
d. | Stock options - - -
e. | Pension - - -
(ii) | Details of fixed component and performance - 2,400,000 741,222

linked incentives along with
performance criteria

(iii)| Service Contract, Notice period, Severance fee - - -

(iv)| Stock options details

Whether issued at discount - - R

a
b. | Period over which accrued - - -
and exercisable - - -

Total 2,988,516 7,417,476 4,644,222
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Notes
a. Mr.R.K.Sabooretired as Chairman/ Director w.e.f 1st December, 2016.
b. Exceptabove mentioneddetails, the company has not paid any other remuneration to any director during the year 2016-17.
c. TheCompany has not granted any Stock Options toits Directors or Employees during Financial Year 2016-17.
d. Theperformance criteria of executive directorsis given at point no. 2 (f) above.

3. STAKEHOLDERS' RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE
The Stakeholders' Relationship Committee has been constituted to specifically look into transfer / transmission /

demat/remat of shares, issue of duplicate/split/consolidation of share certificates, notices and to attend
shareholder's complaints on SCORES system of SEBI or otherwise etc.

Mr. Anil Khanna, Independent Non Executive Director is Chairman of the committee. The present composition of
Stakeholders' Relationship Committee is as under:

Name Category Designation
Mr. AnilKhanna Independent Non Executive Director Chairman
Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo Whole time Director Member
Mr. Dinesh Agrawal* Whole time Director Member
Mr. Sanjeev Masown Whole time Director - Cum - Chief Financial Officer Member

* Mr. Dinesh Agarwal resigned as Whole Time Director w.e.f. 30th May 2016

This Committee meets fortnightly or as may be required. The Company Secretary of the Company is authorized to
authenticate the transfers/transmissions/issue of duplicate share certificates etc. All requests for
dematerialization of shares are processed and confirmed by M/s Karvy Computershare Private Limited,
Registrars and Share Transfer Agents of the Company.

Status of Shareholders'/Investors' complaints

Complaints pending as on 1st April, 2016 Nil
Complaints received during 1st April 2016 to 31st March, 2017 16
Complaints disposed off during the year ended 31st March, 2017 16
Complaints unresolved to the satisfaction of shareholders as on 31st March, 2017 Nil

4, CORPORATE SOCIALRESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE:

In order to comply with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made
thereunder, the Board of Directors have constituted a 'Corporate Social Responsibility Committee with the
following directors:

Name Designation
Mr. R.K.Saboo Chairman
Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo Member
Mrs. Ranjana Agarwal Member
Mr. Jagesh Khaitan Member
Mr. Chandra Mohan* Member

*Mr. Chandra Mohan resigned as Director w.e.f. 7th October 2016.

During the year under review, two meetings of Corporate Social Responsibility committee were held on 30th May
2016 and 14th February 2017

The CSR policyisavailable atthe link http://www.kddl.com/html/company_policy.html of the website of the Company.
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SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

The financials of the subsidiary companies viz M/s Ethos Limited, Mahen Distribution Ltd , Pylania S.A, Satva
Jewellery and Design Limited & Kamla International Holdings S.A. have been duly reviewed by the Audit
Committee and Board of Directors of the Company. The KDDL Board is also periodically reviewing all significant
transactions entered into by the subsidiary companies.

The company has formulated a policy for determining the material subsidiaries and the details of such policy is
available in the website of the company at web link http//www.kddl.com/html/companypolicy.html

IV. SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION
General Body Meetings

() Location, date and time where last three Annual General Meetings were held along with the special

resolutions passed, are as follows:

Trail Resorts,
Parwanoo-173

Financial Details of Date Time Special resolutions passed
year Location

2015-16 Hotel Timber 12" August 12.30 p.m. | Appointment of Mr. Sanjeev Kumar Masown as Whole Time
Trail Resorts, 2016 Director-cum-Chief Financial Officer.
Parwanoo-173
220 (HP)

2014-15 Hotel Timber 24" August 12.30 p.m. |lssue and allot 1008400 equity shares on preferential basis to
Trail Resorts, 2015 SAIF India V Holdings Limited.
Parwanoo-173
220 (HP)

2013-14 | Hotel Timber | 6" August, 2014 | 12.30 p.m. Re-appointment of Mr. Rajendra Kumar Saboo as

Chairman of the Company w.e.f. 1st December, 2013, for a
further period of three years, i.e., upto 30th November,

220 (HP) 2016.

b. Re-appointment of Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo as Managing
Director with functional designation of Vice Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company, w.e.f. 1st April,
2014, for a further period of three years, i.e. upto 31st
March, 2017.

c. Approval under section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act,
2013 regarding borrowing limits.

d. Appointment of Mrs. Malvika Saboo as General Manager
of the Company w.e.f. 01.12.2013 under section 314(1)(b)
of the Companies Act, 1956.

e. Approval under section 372A of the Companies Act, 1956
regarding ratification of Corporate Guarantees already
given in favour of our subsidiary company, M/s Ethos
Limited.

(ii)  One Extra —Ordinary General Meeting of the shareholders of the Company was held during the year in
which following resolutions were passed with overwhelming majority:-

Details of Location Date Time Special resolutions passed
PHD House, PHD Chamber | 8™ November [12.30 p.m. | 1. Further issue of equity shares through preferential allotment
of Commerce & Industry, 2016 2. Issue of Zero Coupon Convertible Warrants through

Sector 31, Chandigarh preferential allotment.
’ 3. Approval of material related party transactions

4. Approval of change in share capital of material subsidiary,
Ethos Limited.
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(iii)  One postal ballot was conducted during the year and one special resolution and one ordinary resolution were
passed in the Postal Ballot. Mr. Ajay K. Arora, Practicing Company Secretary was appointed as the Scrutiniser
for the aforesaid Postal Ballot. Details of voting of the Postal Ballot dated 16th April 2016 is as follows:-

Item | Subject No.of No.of Total No. | Assent | Dissent | Result
No. Shares Shares Of Shares | % %
Voted Voted Voted
‘For’ ‘Against’
1 To authorize the 4094294 5 4094299 100 0 Passed as
Board of Directors of Special Resolution
the company to approve

loans, investments and
guarantees up to
Rs. 200 crores

2 To authorize Board of | 120951 405 121356 99.67 0.33 Passed as

Directors of the Ordinary Resolution
company to enter
into contracts or
arrangements or
trasnsactions
including material
related party
contracts or
arrangements upto
Rs. 150 crores

At present, there is no special resolution proposed to be conducted through postal ballot. Procedure for the
Postal Ballot isin compliance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made thereunder.

V. DISCLOSURES

During the year, there were no materially significant transactions with related parties that may have potential
conflict with the interests of the Company in large. The transactions with related parties, as per requirements of
Accounting Standard 18, are disclosed in the Balance Sheet (See Note 33 to the financial statements in the Annual
Report). Also, there has not been any non-compliance by the Company in this regard.

The policy on dealing with related party transactions as approved by the Board is posted on the company's
website www.kddl.com

Except settlement amount of Rs. 2,31,750/- towards delayed compliance of regulation 7(3) of SAST Regulations,
1997, which was paid on October 17,2016, no other penalties or strictures were imposed by the Stock Exchange(s),
SEBIlorany other Statutory Authority on any matter related to Capital Markets during the last three years.

Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) have certified to the Board in accordance with
SEBI(LODR) Regulations, 2015 pertaining to CEO/CFO certification for the financial year ended 31st March, 2017.

The Company follows Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India in the preparation
of financial statements and the Company has not adopted a treatment different from that prescribed in the
Accounting Standards or revised relevant schedule of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made there under.

The Company has framed a Whistle Blower Policy, the details of which are available on the company's website.

: 65 ',




KDDL Limited

The Management affirms that no person has been denied access to the Audit Committee. All details relating to
financial and commercial transactions where Directors may have pecuniary interest are provided to the Board,
and the interested directors neither participate in the discussion, nor do they vote on such matters. In matters
other than those with pecuniary interests, the Directors are considered to be interested to the extent of their
shareholdinginthe Company and following is the status of their shareholding as on the date of this Report:

Name of the Director No. of equity shares held as on 31st March 2017
Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo 1509530

Mr. Jagesh Khaitan 466

Mr. Anil Khanna 4283

Mr. Jai Vardhan Saboo Nil

Mrs. Ranjana Agarwal Nil

Mr. Sanjeev Kumar Masown 2000

Mr. Vishal Satinder Sood Nil

Mr. Sanjiv Sachar 1400

Mr. Praveen Gupta Nil

In compliance to various provisions under SEBI(LODR) Regulations, 2015, the company has also framed various
policesas under:-

a) Policy on Preservation of Documents;
b) Policy for determination of materiality of events or information;
c) Policy for determination of Material subsidiaries;

d) Corporate social responsibility policy;

The above policies are hosted on the website of the company viz. www.kddl.com

VI. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

Quarterly/Half yearly report sent to each shareholder’s The Financial results are communicated to the

residence stock exchanges after these are approved by the
board as well as are published in the newspapers
as required. The results are also displayed at the
website of the company.

Newspapers in which quarterly results are published Financial Express (English)/Jan Satta (Hindi)
Any website where results or official news are displayed Yes, www.kddl.com

Whether it also displays official news releases Yes

The presentations made to institutional investors or to Yes
the analysts
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VIL.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

GENERALSHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Annual General Meeting

Date : 11th August 2017
Venue: Hotel Timber Trail Resorts, Parwanoo (H.P.)-173220
Time : 12:30PM

Financial Year
Financial year : 1st Aprilto 31st March

Forthe financial year ended 31st March, 2017, results were announced on:

° 30thJune, 2016 : 12th August 2016

° 30th September, 2016 : 12th November 2016

° 31st December, 2016 : 14th February 2017

° 31st March, 2017 : 30th May 2017

For the financial year ending 31st March, 2018, the tentative dates for announcement of the results:
° 30thJune, 2017 : 2nd Week of September 2017

° 30th September, 2017 : Second week of November, 2017

° 31st December, 2017 : Second week of February, 2018

° 31st March, 2018 : Fourth week of May, 2018

Date of Book Closure

Book Closure : 6th August 2017 to 11th August 2017
(both days inclusive)

Dividend Payment Date : Subject to approval of shareholders, the dividend
shall be paid after 11th August, 2017

Name of Stock Exchanges where the securities are listed

The equity share capital of the company is listed at National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE), and
Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE). The company has paid Annual Listing Fee for the year 2017-18 to
both exchanges.

Stock Code
National Stock Exchange (NSE) -KDDL
Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) -532054
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(g) MarketPrice Data & performance in comparison with Sensex

Month Quote as BSE (Amount in Rs.) | BSE Sensex |Quote as NSE (Amount in Rs.) | Nifty 50 Sensex
High Low Close High Low Close
April, 2016 202.90 168.00 25606.62 224.40 166.00 7849.80
May, 2016 184.70 162.00 26667.96 182.80 162.00 8160.10
June, 2016 222.40 167.00 26999.72 220.00 167.00 8287.75
July, 2016 254.50 195.00 28051.86 255.00 195.00 8638.50
August, 2016 294.50 215.40 28452.17 297.00 213.60 8786.20
September, 2016  237.50 200.20 27865.96 239.40 197.00 8611.15
October, 2016 253.20 212.10 27930.21 252.90 210.00 8625.70
November, 2016  287.70 196.00 26652.81 286.00 193.00 8224.50
December, 2016|  235.00 179.00 26626.46 234.70 179.00 8185.80
January, 2017 214.00 177.10 27655.96 213.50 190.00 8561.30
February, 2017 199.00 172.50 28743.32 199.70 169.30 8879.60
March, 2017 199.80 171.90 29620.50 209.40 171.55 9173.75

(h) Registrar and Share Transfer Agent
M/s Karvy Computershare Private Limited, Hyderabad are the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the
Company for handling the share transfer work both in physical and electronic form. All correspondences
relating to share transfer, transmission, dematerialization and rematerialisation can be made at the
following address:

Karvy Computershare Private Limited
(CIN-U74140TG2003PTC041636)

UNIT: KDDL LIMITED

'‘Karvy Selenium Tower B', Plot 31-32, Financial District,
Nanakramguda, Gachibowli, Hyderabad — 500 032

Ph : 040-67161516/1518

Fax : 040-23420818

Website: www.karvy.com

Contact Person: Mr. Srikrishna Pemmaraju/Mr. Suresh Babu D.

(i) Share Transfer System

The Company has appointed M/s Karvy Computershare (P) Ltd., Hyderbad as its share transfer agents which
handles all work related to transfer/demat/remat of shares, issue of duplicate/split/consolidation of share
certificates, notices, redressal of Investors' complaints etc. As informed earlier, the Company has constituted
Stakeholders' Relationship Committee which meets on an average once in a fortnight. The list of valid transfers
and objections, requests for split up/consolidation/ duplicate/dematerialization, if any, are placed before the
Committee forits approval and confirmation.
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(j) Distribution of Shareholding ( as on 31st March 2017)

S.No | Category Cases % of Cases Amount (inX) | % Amount
1 uptol -5000 5025 86.18 6149440.00 5.67
2 5001 -10000 362 6.21 2827450.00 2.61
3 10001 -20000 186 3.19 2787830.00 2.57
4 20001 -30000 81 1.39 2102920.00 1.94
5 30001 -40000 31 0.53 1116460.00 1.03
6 40001 -50000 26 0.45 1215910.00 1.12
7 50001 -100000 53 0.91 4045040.00 3.73
8 100001 & ABOVE 67 1.15 88150810.00 81.32

Total: 5831 100.00 108395860.00 100.00

(k) Share Holding Pattern as on 31st March 2017

S. No | Description Cases Shares % Equity
1 ALTERNATIVE INVESTMENT FUND 1 94780 0.87
2 BANKS 1 50 0.00
3 CLEARING MEMBERS 67 47613 0.44
4 DIRECTORS 3 19651 0.18
5 DIRECTORS AND RELATIVES 8 27229 0.25
6 EMPLOYEES 6 8015 0.07
7 FOREIGN BODIES 1 48000 0.44
8 FOREIGN INSTITUTIONAL INVESTOR 1 1008400 9.30
9 FOREIGN PORTFOLIO INVESTORS 5 502532 4.64
10 HUF 1 5987577 0.81
11 INDIAN FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 1 1174 0.01
12 BODIES CORPORATES 191 15041421 3.88
13 MUTUAL FUNDS 1 2900 0.03
14 NBFC 1 1000 0.01
15 NON RESIDENT INDIANS 49 105964 0.98
16 NRI NON-REPATRIATION 23 40788 0.38
17 PROMOTERS BODIES CORPORATE 3 76310 0.70
18 COMPANY PROMOTERS 19 4784781 44.14
19 RESIDENT INDIVIDUALS 5291 2478680 22.87

Total: 5831 10839586 100.00
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U

(m)

Dematerialization of shares and liquidity

As on 31st March, 2017, 10,368,432 equity shares equivalent to about 96% of the Company's paid up
equity capital is held in dematerialized form with NSDL and CDSL. Trading in equity shares of the Company
is permitted only in dematerialized form w.e.f. 24th May, 2001 as per the notification issued by the
Securitiesand Exchange Board of India.

The ISIN (International Securities Identification Number) of the Company is INE291D01011.
Unclaimed dividend

Pursuant to the provisions of section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, the
amount of dividend which remains unclaimed for a period of seven years from the date of transfer to
unclaimed/unpaid dividend account would be transferred to the “Investor Education and Protection
Fund” The unclaimed dividend for the years till 2007-08 has already been transferred to the fund. As such,
shareholders who have not yet encashed their dividend warrants are requested in their own interest to
write to the Company immediately for claiming outstanding dividends declared by the Company during
the years 2010-11 onwards. The investors are also requested to refer to para 5 and 6 of notes to notice of
AGMinthisregard.

The schedule for transfer of dividend / shares for the following years remaining unclaimed for seven years
from the date of declaration and which are required to be transferred by the Company to the said account
istabled below:

Year Dividend No. |Dividend unclamined (X)| Date of declaration | Due date for transfer

as on 31st March, 2017

2010-11 18 375,903 15.09.2011 21.10.2018

2011-12 19

406,305

17.09.2012

23.10.2019

2012-13

20

155,736

09.09.2013

15.10.2020

2013-14

21

234,899

06.08.2014

12.09.2021

2014-15

22

305,746

24.08.2015

30.09.2022

2015-16

23

267,999

11.03.2016

17.04.2023

(n)

(o)

Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any convertible instruments, conversion date and likely impact on

equity

i) Therearenooutstanding GDRs/ADRsissued by the Company during the year.

ii) The company has issued 113,206 Zero coupon convertible warrants of Rs. 265/- each on 12th
December, 2016 and 264,150 Zero coupon convertible warrants of Rs. 265/- each on 21st December,

2016 to promoters / promoters group. These warrants shall be convertible into one equity share of Rs.
10/-each ata premium of Rs. 255/- per share on or before 18 months of theirissue.

Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities

The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risks. The Company continuously evaluates exchange risks
exposures and takes required hedging from time to time to minimize the impact of fluctuations in
exchange rate movement.
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(p) Plant/Business Locations

Dial Units 1. | Plot No. 3, Sector lll, Parwanoo (H.P.) INDIA
. | Haibatpur Road, Saddomajra, Derabassi INDIA
Assembly Units 1. | Village Dhana, Bagbania, P.O Manpura, Tehsil Baddi, Distt. Solan (H.P),
INDIA
Hands Unit 1. | 296-97, 5" Main, 11" Cross, Peenya Industrial Area, Bangalore, INDIA
2. | 408, 2™ Floor, 4 ™ Main, 11 ™ Cross, Peenya Industrial Area, Bangalore,
INDIA
Packaging Unit 1. | 25/1, Industrial Area, Phase-Il, Chandigarh, INDIA
2. | Plot No. 9, Sector V, Parwanoo (Himachal Pradesh)
Precision Stamping Unit - EIGEN 1. | 408, 4" Main, 11" Cross, Peenya Industrial Area, Bangalore, (Karnataka)
2. | Plot No 9-B, Chokkasandra, Peenya Industrial Area, Bangalore , (Karnataka)
3. | Plot No 55-A, Aerospace Industrial Area, Bangalore (Karnataka)

(q) Addressforcorrespondence

Shareholders are requested to contact the following:-
Mr. R.K.Sood

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

KDDL Limited

Corporate Office: 'Kamla Centre', SCO 88-89

Sector 8-C, Chandigarh-160009
Tel:0172-2544378,Fax: 0172- 2548302

Website: www.kddl.com

Email: raman.sood@kddl.com

(r)  OtherDisclosures

0] During the financial year ended 31st March, 2017 there were no materially significant related party
transactions that may have potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large.

(ii)  The Company has established vigil mechanism policy and Whistle Blower policy. All the personnel of
the company have the access to the Audit Committee.

(iii)  The Company has complied with the mandatory requirements of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.
The Company has adopted various non-mandatory requirements as well, as discussed under
relevant headings.

(iv)  The Company has framed a Material Subsidiary Policy and the same is placed on the Company's
website and the web link for the same is www.kddl.com

(v)  The company has framed Related Party Transaction Policy and same is placed on the Company's
website and the web link for the same is www.kddl.com

There has been noinstance of non-compliance of any requirement of Corporate Governance Report.
ADOPTION OF NON-MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS
. The Board

The company does not have a Non Executive Chairman.

Il Shareholder Rights
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The Halfyearly financial results are forwarded to the Stock Exchanges and uploaded on the website of the Company.
lll. Modified opinion(s) in Audit Report

There was no Audit qualification in the Auditors' Report on the Company's financial statements during the
financial year under review.

IV.  Separate posts of Chairman and CEO

As on this date, office of the Chairman of the Company is vacant and Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo is the CEO of
the company.

V. Reporting of Internal Auditor
The Internal Auditor of the Company reports directly to the audit committee.

VI. The Company has fully complied with the applicable requirement specified in Reg. 17 to 27 and clause
(b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46.

VII. The information regarding disclosures with respect to Demat suspense account / unclaimed suspense
account pursuant to Schedule-V(F) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 is Nil

Declaration by the CEO under SEBI(LODR) Regulations, 2015 regarding adherence to the Code of Conduct

In accordance with regulation 34(3) of Securities & Exchange Board of India( Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement)
Regulations, 2015, | hereby confirm that, all Directors and the Senior Management personnel of the Company have affirmed
compliance to the KDDL's respective Code of Conduct, for the financial year ended 31st March, 2017.

For KDDL Limited

Sd/-

Yashovardhan Saboo

Vice Chairman-Cum-Chief Executive Officer

Auditors' Certificate on Corporate Governance under SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015

To the Members of
KDDL Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of corporate governance by KDDL Limited (“the Company”), for
the year ended on 31 March 2017, as stipulated in Chapter IV of Securities & Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015.
The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination
was limited to a review of the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuing the
compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on
the financial statements of the Company.
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the
Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Securities & Exchange
Board of India(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015.
We further state that this certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For M.R. Chechi & Associates

Company Secretaries

Place: Chandigarh Mast Ram FCS, Proprietor
Date: 30th May, 2017 Membership No. FCS 3823
CPNo.:2906
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of KDDL Limited

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

1.

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of KDDL Limited (‘the Company’), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2017, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow
Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

2.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards prescribed
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended). This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that
give atrue and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3.
4.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which
arerequiredto beincludedinthe audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act.
Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whetherthese standalone financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial controls relevant to the Company’s
preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s
Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on these standalone financial statements.

Opinion

8.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give
a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company asat 31 March 2017, and its profitand its cash flows for the year ended on that date.
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Reporton Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

9. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central Government
of Indiain terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure | a statement on the matters specified
in paragraphs 3and 4 of the Order.

10. Furthertoourcommentsin Annexure |, as required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a.

we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

the standalone financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
prescribed underSection 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (asamended);

on the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2017 from being appointed as a
directorinterms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

we have also audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting (IFCoFR) of the Company
as on 31 March 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date and our report dated 30 May 2017 as per Annexure Il
expresses unqualified opinion;

with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. the Company, as detailed in Note 32 (c) to 32 (f) to the standalone financial statements, has
disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position;

ii. the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. there has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company; and

iv. the company, as detailed in Note 45 to the standalone financial statements, has made requisite
disclosures in these standalone financial statements as to holdings as well as dealings in Specified
Bank Notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016. Based on the audit
procedures performed and taking into consideration the information and explanations givento us,
inour opinion, these are in accordance with the books of account maintained by the company.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013
per Lalit Kumar

Partner

Membership No.: 095256

Place: Chandigarh
Date: 30 May 2017
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Annexure | to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of KDDL
Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Annexurel

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the financial
statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and explanations given to us and the
books of account and other records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our
knowledge and belief, we report that:

(1)

(ii)

(a)

(b)

(c)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets.

The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its fixed assets under which fixed
assets are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years, which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. In accordance with
this program, certain fixed assets were verified during the year and no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

The title deeds of all the immovable properties (which are included under the head ‘fixed assets’)
are held in the name of the Company except for the following piece of land situated at Parwanoo
which was transferred to the Company, as a result of amalgamation of Himachal Fine Blanks Limited,
erstwhile wholly owned subsidiary of the company.

Nature of Total Whether Gross block Net block Remarks
property Number | leasehold ason on 31 March
of Cases | /freehold 31 March 2016 (Rs.)
2017 (Rs.)
Land 1 Freehold 566,913 566,913 The management is

completing formalities
for transferring the title
deeds.

In our opinion, the management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals

during the year, except for goods-in-transit and stocks lying with third parties. For stocks lying with third
parties at the year-end, written confirmations have been obtained by the management. No material

discrepancies were noticed on the aforesaid verification.

(iii)  The Company has granted secured loan to a company covered in the register maintained under Section 189
of the Act; and with respect to the same:

(a) in our opinion the terms and conditions of grant of such loans are not, prima facie, prejudicial to the
company’sinterest.

(b) the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated in the contract.
The repayment of the principal amount and payment of interest did not fall due during the year
covered by our audit.

(c) thereisnooverdueamountinrespectofloansgrantedtosuch company.
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Annexure | to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of KDDL
Limited, on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017
(Cont’d)

(iv)  Inouropinion, the Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act in respect
of loans, investments, guarantees and security.

(v)  In our opinion, the Company has complied with the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India, the
provisions of Sections 73 to 76 and other relevant provisions of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of
Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended) as applicable, with regard to the deposits accepted. According to the
information and explanations given to us, no order has been passed by the Company Law Board or
National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any other Tribunal, in this regard.

(vi)  We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the Rules made
by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the
Actinrespect of Company’s products and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and
records have been made and maintained. However, we have not made a detailed examination of the cost
records with aview to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(vii) (a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-
tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory
dues, as applicable, have generally been regularly deposited to the appropriate authorities, though
there has been a slight delay in a few cases. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect
thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

(b) The dues outstanding in respect of income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise
andvalue added tax on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Statement of Disputed Dues

Name of | Nature Amount Amount paid Period to which Forum where
statute of dues (Rs) under protest | the amount dispute is
(Rs.) relates pending

Finance Service tax | 3,230,574 - June 2009 Commissioner

Act, 1994 September (Appeals)
2013

Finance Service tax 623,422 - October 2013 Commissioner

Act, 1994 August (Appeals)
2014

Finance Service tax 491,593 - September 2014 Commissioner

Act, 1994 June (Appeals)
2015

Finance Service tax 448,946 - July 2015 Commissioner

Act, 1994 June 2016 (Appeals)
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Annexure | to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of KDDL
Limited, on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017
(Cont’d)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

Name of | Nature Amount |Amount paid under|Period to which the| Forum where
statute of dues | (Rs)# protest (Rs.) amount relates dispute is pending
Income tax| Income | 4 046,108 4,046,108 EY 2003-04 Income Tax
Act, 1961 tax Appellate
Tribunal, New-Delhi
Income tax| Income |13 203,431 . FY 2004-05 Income Tax
Act, 1961 tax Appellate
Tribunal, New-Delhi
Income tax| Income |10,625,400 9,815,807 FY 2005-06 Income Tax
Act, 1961 tax Appellate
Tribunal, New-Delhi
Income tax | Income | 1,964,000 1,964,000 FY 2010-11 Commissioner of
Act, 1961 tax Income-tax
(Appeals), New- Delhi
Income tax| Income 6,948,302 - FY 2011-12 Commissioner of
Act, 1961 tax Income-tax .
(Appeals), New- Delhi

# amounts as per demand order including interest and penalty, whichever indicated in the order

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to any bank or financial institution or
government during the year. The Company did not have any outstanding debentures during the year.

In our opinion, the Company has applied moneys raised by way of the term loans for the purposes for
which these were raised. The Company did not raise moneys by way of initial public offer/ further public
offer (including debtinstruments) during the year.

No fraud by the Company or on the company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported
during the period covered by our audit.

Managerial remuneration has been paid and provided by the company in accordance with the requisite
approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 of the Act read with Schedule V to the Act.

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(xii) of the Order
are not applicable.

In our opinion all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of Act,
where applicable, and the requisite details have been disclosed in the financial statements etc., as required
by the applicable accounting standards.
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Annexure | to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of KDDL
Limited, on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017
(Cont’d)

(xiv) Duringthe year, the company has made private placement of shares. In respect of the same, in our opinion,
the company has complied with the requirement of Section 42 of the Act and the Rules framed thereunder.
Further, in our opinion, the amounts so raised have been used for the purposes for which the funds were
raised. During the year, the company did not make preferential allotment of shares/ fully or partly
convertible debentures.

(xv) Inouropinion, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with the directors or persons
connected with them covered under Section 192 of the Act.

(xvi) The Companyisnotrequiredto be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

per Lalit Kumar
Partner
Membership No.: 095256

Place: Chandigarh
Date : 30 May 2017
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Annexure Il to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of KDDL
Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Annexurelll

Independent Auditor’s report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause () of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’)

1. In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of KDDL Limited (the ‘Company’) as of and for the
year ended 31 March 2017, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting
(IFCoFR) of the Company of as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the IFCoFR criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal financial controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting (the ‘Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAl’). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s
business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's IFCoFR based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (‘Standards’), issued by the ICAl and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of IFCoFR, and the
Guidance Note issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate IFCoFR were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

4, Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the IFCoFR and
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of IFCoFR included obtaining an understanding of IFCoFR,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion onthe Company’s IFCoFR.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

6. A Company's IFCoFR is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
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Annexure-ll to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of KDDL
Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 (cont’d)

financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. ACompany's IFCoFR includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
ordisposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

7.

Because of the inherent limitations of IFCoFR, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the IFCoFR to future periods are subject to the risk that
IFCoFR may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31
March 2017, based on the IFCoFR criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal financial controls stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
(formerly Walker, Chandiok & Co)
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

per Lalit Kumar
Partner
Membership No.: 095256

Place: Chandigarh
Date: 30 May 2017

g




KDDL Limited

Balance sheet as at 31 March 2017

(All amounts in rupees, unless stated otherwise)

Notes As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders' funds
Share capital 3 109,267,260 101,720,100
Reserves and surplus 4 1,018,776,582 755,911,215
Money received against share warrants 5 25,078,602 -
1,153,122,444 857,631,315
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings 6 218,717,168 185,496,105
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 7 42,728,687 38,002,832
Other long-term liabilities 8 10,050,696 7,403,039
Long-term provisions 9 17,306,439 28,179,874
288,802,990 259,081,850
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings 10 85,024,930 140,978,739
Trade payables 11
-Payable to micro and small enterprises 7,269,656 4,507,070
- Other payables 93,051,372 94,327,550
Other current liabilities 12 174,306,560 175,369,447
Short-term provisions 13 20,097,589 25,348,183
379,750,107 440,530,989
Total 1,821,675,541 1,557,244,154
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Fixed assets 14
Tangible assets 609,347,314 579,565,153
Intangible assets 6,627,829 9,784,484
Capital work-in-progress 45,855,076 25,653,878
Non-current investments 15 480,154,086 323,750,792
Long-term loans and advances 16 78,138,258 61,092,072
1,220,122,563 999,846,379
Current assets
Inventories 17 210,156,069 211,364,624
Trade receivables 18 211,978,905 199,215,694
Cash and bank balances 19 99,331,255 52,197,783
Short-term loans and advances 20 77,902,776 92,563,050
Other current assets 21 2,183,973 2,056,624
601,552,978 557,397,775
Total 1,821,675,541 1,557,244,154

Notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements

Thisisthe balance sheet referred toin our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Per Lalit Kumar
Partner

Place : Chandigarh
Date : 30 May 2017

Yashovardhan Saboo
Chief Executive Officer

and Vice chairman
(DIN: 00012158)

Forand on behalf of the Board of Directors of KDDL Limited

Sanjeev Masown

Chief Financial Office
and Whole time Director
(DIN: 03542390)

Raman Sood

Company Secretary
(Membership No. F3722)
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2017

(All amounts in rupees, unless stated otherwise)

Notes  For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
REVENUE
Revenue from operations (gross) 22 1,308,290,777 1,234,410,447
Less: Excise duty 52,009,939 44,372,944
Revenue from operations (net) 1,256,280,838 1,190,037,503
Other income 23 22,170,184 20,319,246
Total revenue 1,278,451,022 1,210,356,749
EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed 24 292,345,761 266,543,829
Change in inventories of finished goods and 25 (5,346,166) (6,694,215)
work in progress
Employee benefit expenses 26 395,235,130 366,403,159
Finance costs 27 55,156,590 62,167,392
Depreciation and amortisation expense 28 72,514,695 68,882,747
Other expenses 29 357,438,000 355,008,637
Prior period items 30 - 923,071
Total expenses 1,167,344,010 1,113,234,620
Profit before tax 111,107,012 97,122,129
Tax expense:
Current tax 34,390,673 36,590,335
Current tax - earlier years 515,572 (1,995,022)
Deferred tax 4,725,856 (3,247,081)
Profit for the year 71,474,911 65,773,897
Earnings per share 36
(Nominal value of equity share Rs. 10 each)
Basic 6.93 6.86
Diluted 6.93 6.85

Notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements

This is statement of profit & loss refered toin our report of even date. Forand on behalf of the Board of Directors of KDDL Limited

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Per Lalit Kumar
Partner

Place : Chandigarh
Date : 30 May 2017

Yashovardhan Saboo
Chief Executive Officer

and Vice chairman
(DIN: 00012158)

Sanjeev Masown

Chief Financial Office
and Whole time Director
(DIN: 03542390)

Raman Sood
Company Secretary
(Membership No. F3722)
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Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2017

(All amounts in rupees, unless stated otherwise)

Year ended
31 March 2017

Year ended

31 March 2016

A. Cash flow from operating activities:
Net profit before extraordinary items and tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation
(Profit)/Loss on sale of fixed assets (net)
Fixed assets written off
Expense on employee stock option scheme
Finance Cost
Interest income
Prior period item
Provision no longer required written back
Provision for bad and doubtful debts
Operating profit before working capital changes
Adjustments for movement in:
Inventories
Trade receivables
Short-term loans and advances
Long-term loans and advances
Trade payables
Other current liabilities
Other long-term liabilities
Short-term provisions
Long-term provisions
Cash flow from operating activities before taxes
Income tax paid
Net cash flow from operating activities

B. Cash flow from investing activities:
Purchase of fixed assets (including capital advances
and creditors for capital expenditure)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets
Bank balances not considered as cash and cash equivalents
- Deposits
- Matured

111,107,012

72,514,695
(49,648)
385,446
(52,125)

55,156,590
(11,315,624)
(2,156,200)
597,300

226,267,726

1,208,555
(12,783,796)
14,370,905
(2,556,557)
2,061,779
11,829,079
2,647,657
1,70,607
(10,873,435)

232,342,520

(42,635,026)

189,707,494

(135,654,668)

4,165,652

(158,836,665)
115,745,989

97,122,129

68,882,747
1,010,239
875,631
(83,164)
62,167,392
(5,412,551)
923,071
(1,058,971)
959,219

225,385,742

7,617,975
(19,614,740)
14,794,804
(3,412,860)
(9,949,361)
(6,760,199)
2,655,462
7,958,997
1,764,587
220,440,407
(41,211,323)
179,229,084

(133,264,845)

4,206,179

(129,443,970)
123,234,353
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KDDL Limited

Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2017

(All amounts in rupees, unless stated otherwise)

Year ended
31 March 2017

Year ended

31 March 2016

Investment in subsidiaries
- Preference shares
- Equity shares
Loans repayments
Loans granted
Interest received from others
Net cash used in investing activities

C. Cash flow from financing activities:

Proceeds from issue of share capital (inlcuding premium)

Share issue expenses
Proceeds from long-term borrowings
Repayment of long term borrowings

Proceed from long term borrowings from related parties
Repayment from long term borrowings from related parties

Proceeds from short-term borrowings
Repayment of short-term borrowings
Finance Cost paid
Dividend paid
Tax on dividend

Net cash from financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Opening cash and cash equivalents

Closing cash and cash equivalents
Note:

(36,403,600)
(119,999,694)
1,213,203

11,188,275

(318,581,508)

225,100,000
(1,010,000)
157,844,998
(139,656,089)
2,970,000
6,060,425
(62,014,233)
(56,378,589)

132,916,512

4,042,497
11,451,791

15,494,288

(6,403,600)
(130,474,890)
173,733
(4,070,663)
5,455,545
(270,588,158)

299,999,000
(15,083,603)
116,722,839

(109,807,529)

800,000
(25,300,000)
4,057,000
(95,533,193)
(60,255,690)
(33,280,937)
(6,796,321)
~ 75,521,565
(15,837,508)
27,289,299
11,451,791

a) The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in Accounting
Standard 3 (AS-3), on "Cash Flow Statements" as specified under section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 read

withrule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended)

b) Cash and cash equivalents include:

Cash in hand
Balance with banks

In equity dividend accounts

1,655,704
11,869,638
1,968,945

15,494,288

1,380,132
7,551,081
2,520,578
11,451,791
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KDDL Limited

Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2017

(All amounts in rupees, unless stated otherwise)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Excluding the following:
- Pledged in fixed deposit accounts 83,836,968 40,745,992
Balance as per books of account 99,331,255 52,197,783

c) Negative figures have been shown in brackets.
d) Cash and cash equivalentsinclude Rs. 1,968,945 (Previous year Rs.2,520,578) held in dividend accounts - which
isnotavailable for use by the company.

Notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements

Thisis the cash flow statement sheet referred toin ourreportofevendate. Forandonbehalfofthe Board of Directors of KDDL Limited

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP Yashovardhan Saboo Sanjeev Masown

Chartered Accountants Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Office
and Vice chairman and whole Time Director
(DIN: 00012158) (DIN: 03542390)

Per Lalit Kumar Raman Sood

Partner Company Secretary

(Membership No. F3722)
Place : Chandigarh
Date : 30 May 2017
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KDDL Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information for the year ended 31 March 2017

1. Background and nature of operations

KDDL Limited (the “Company”) incorporated in January 1981 is engaged in the business of manufacturing
dials, watch hands and precision components. Currently, the Company has manufacturing facilities, at
Pawanoo (Himachal Pradesh) and Derabassi (Punjab) - dial manufacturing, Bangalore (Karnataka) - hands
and precision components manufacturing.

2. Significant accounting policies
a. Basisof preparation

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on a going concern
basis, on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in
India (Indian GAAP). Indian GAAP comprises mandatory accounting standards as specified under Section 133
of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act'), read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as
amended) and other accounting pronouncements of The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating
cycle and other criteria set out in the Revised Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of
services and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current/
non-current classification of its assets and liabilities.

b. Use of estimates

In preparing the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in India,
management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. Any revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the current and future periods.

¢. Revenuerecognition

a) Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards in respect of ownership
of the goods are transferred to the customer and is stated inclusive of excise duty and net of trade
discounts, sales returns and sales tax wherever applicable.

b) Duty Entitlement Pass Book (DEPB) and any other scheme are recognized in the statement of profit and
loss when the right to receive credit as per the terms of the scheme is established in respect of the
exports made.

c) Revenue in respect of tool development and job charges is recognized as per the terms of the contract
with the customers.

d) Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis, taking into account the amount outstanding
andthe ratesapplicable.

e) Dividendincomeisrecognised whenthe Company'srightto receive the sameis established.
d. Fixedassets

Tangible assets
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KDDL Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information for the year ended 31 March 2017

Fixed assets are stated at cost (gross block) less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost
comprises the purchase price (net of cenvat credit availed) and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to
its working condition forits intended use.

Expenditure on account of modification / alteration in plant and machinery / building, which increases the
future benefit from the existing asset beyond its previous assessed standard of performance, is capitalised.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of fixed assets, which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for theirintended use are capitalised.

Assets acquired on hire purchase are capitalised at the inception of the hire purchase agreement. Interest
costis charged to statement of profitand loss on accrual basis.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost (gross block) less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.
Cost comprises the purchase price (net of cenvat credit availed) and any attributable cost of bringing the asset
toits working condition forits intended use.

e. Depreciationand amortisation

Pursuant to the notification in Part Il of Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, effective from 1 April 2014,
the management has reassessed and changed, wherever necessary the useful lives to compute depreciation,
to conform to the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on
straight line method based on life prescribed as per Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013.

Block of asset Useful life as per Companies Act,
2013 (in years)

Buildings 30-60

Plant and machinery 15

Furniture and fixture 10

Office equipment 5

Computers 3

Vehicles 8-10

® Depreciation on improvements carried out on buildings taken on lease (included under buildings) is
provided over the period of the lease or useful life of the assets, whicheveris lower.

® Depreciation on a particular class of dies and tools manufactured by the Company and put to use after
1 April 2003 is provided over a period of 3 years.

® The cost of leasehold land other than land purchased during the current year at Bangalore for setting up
new plant (amortized over the period of lease) is not amortised as these are perpetual leases.

® Know-howisamortised over a period of four years.
® Softwareisamortised over a period not exceeding six years.
f. Inventories

Inventories are valued as follows:
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1.

Raw materials and components, stores and spares, finished goods and work-in-progress: At lower of cost
and netrealisable value.

Cost of inventories is ascertained on the following basis:

a) Raw materials and components and stores and spares cost includes material cost, custom duty, freight
and related direct expenses incurredin bringing the inventories to present location and condition. Cost is
determined on moving weighted average basis.

b) Work-in-progress is valued at raw material cost plus conversion costs depending upon the stage of
completion.

c) Finished goods are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is determined using moving
weighted average cost basis and includes the raw material cost plus conversion costs, packing cost and
other overheads costs incurred to bring the goods to their present location and condition.

Investments

Investments that are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than a year are classified as
currentinvestments. All other investments are classified as long-term investments.

Long-term investments are stated at cost. Provision is made for diminution in the value of long-term
investmentsto recognise decline, if any, other than temporary in nature.

Foreign currency transactions

Investments in foreign entities are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of making the
investment. Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rates prevailing on the date of the
transaction and monetary items denominated in foreign currency are restated at the rate prevailing on the
balance sheet date.

Differences arising on foreign currency translations of transactions settled during the year are recognised in
the statement of profitand loss.

Forward exchange contracts not covered under Accounting Standard 11 'Effect of change in Foreign Exchange
Rates', that are entered to hedge the foreign currency risk of highly probable forecast transactions and
unrecognized firm commitments are marked to market at the balance sheet date and exchange loss is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss immediately. Any gain is ignored and not recognised in the
financial statements, in accordance with the principles of prudence enunciated in Accounting Standard 1-
Disclosure of Accounting Policies.

The premium or discount arising at the inception of the forward contracts other than those entered into to
hedge the foreign currency risk of firm commitments or highly probable forecast transactions is amortised as
expense orincome over the life of the contract.

Any profit or loss arising on cancellation or renewal of forward exchange contracts is recognised as income or
expense for the year.

Employee benefits
Short term employee benefits

Allemployee benefits payable/available within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short
term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, bonus, etc are recognized in the statement of profit
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andlossinthe periodin which the employee renders the related service.
Post-employment benefits
Defined contribution plan

The company makes specified contribution towards employee provident fund to Employees Provident Fund
administered by the Regional Provident Commissioner. The Company's contribution to provident fund, being
a defined contribution plan, is recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the financial year to which it
relates.

In respect of superannuation, the Company makes contribution to Life Insurance Corporation of India (“LIC”)
of anamount payable by the trusts to LIC, whichis charged to the statement of profitand loss.

Defined benefit plan

Gratuity is a post-employment defined benefit plan. The present value of obligation for gratuity is
determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, less the fair value of plan
assets, together with adjustments for unrecognized actuarial gains or losses and past service costs. Gratuity
and superannuation funds are administered by trustees of independently constituted trusts. Actuarial gains
and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or
credited to the statement of profitand loss in the year in which such gains or losses arise.

Other long term liability

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in
which the employee renders the related services are recognized as a liability determined based on actuarial
valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method at the balance sheet date.

Actuarial Gains/Losses

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
charged or credited to the statement of profitand loss in the year in which such gains or losses arise.

j- Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP)

Stock options granted to the employees under the stock options schemes are accounted at intrinsic value as
per the accounting treatment prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock
Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 (‘Guidelines') and guidance note on
Employee share based payments issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Accordingly, the
excess of market price, determined as per the Guidelines and guidance note, of underlying equity shares
(market value), over the exercise price of the options is recognised as deferred stock compensation expense
and is charged to statement of profit and loss on a straight line basis over the vesting period of the options.
The amortised portion of the cost is shown under shareholders' funds.

k. Taxesonincome
Tax expense comprises current tax and deferred income tax.
Current taxis determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year.

Deferred income taxes reflects the impact of current year timing differences between taxable income and
accounting income for the year and reversal of timing differences of earlier years. Deferred tax is measured
based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Inrespect
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of carry forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent
there is virtual certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such losses can
berealised.

I. Earningspershare

The earnings considered in ascertaining the Company's earnings per share comprise the net profit or loss for
the year attributable to the equity shareholders. Earnings per share are computed using the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earning per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity share holders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted
for the effect of all dilutive potential equity shares.

m. Leases

Leases of assets under which significant risks and rewards of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor
are classified as operating leases. Lease rentals in respect of assets taken under an operating lease are
chargedtothe statement of profitand loss on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Inrespect of assets given on operating lease, income is being recognised on a straight line basis over the lease
term.

n.  Contingentliabilities and provisions

Aprovisionis created when thereis a present obligation as a result of a past event that probably requires an
outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation at the reporting
date. A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present
obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible
obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no
provision or disclosure is made.

The company does not recognize assets which are of contingent nature until there is virtual certainty of
realisability of such assets. However, if it has become virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits
will arise, asset and related income is recognized in the financial statements of the period in which the
change occurs.

o. Impairment of assets

The Company on an annual basis makes an assessment of any indicator that may lead to impairment of
assets. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the assets. If such
recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount, then the carrying amount is reduced to its
recoverable amount by treating the difference as impairment loss and is charged to the statement of profit
andloss.

p. Cashand cashequivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and deposit with banks. The Company considers all highly liquid
investments with a remaining maturity at the date of purchase of three months or less and that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash to be cash equivalents.
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As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
3. Share capital
Number Amount Number Amount
a) Authorised share capital
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 12,480,000 124,800,000 12,480,000 124,800,000
b) Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
(1) Issued 11,013,866 110,138,660 10,259,150 102,591,500
(ii) Subscribed and fully paid up 10,839,586 108,395,860 10,084,870 100,848,700
(iii) Shares forfeited (Rs 10 each, Rs 5 paid up) 174,280 871,400 174,280 871,40
11,013,866 109,267,260 10,259,150 101,720,100

a. The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 each. Each holder of equity
share is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, holders of equity shares
will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential
amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

b. Reconciliation of equity share capital

As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Number Amount Number Amount

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up
Balance at the beginning of the year 10,084,870 100,848,700 9,076,470 90,764,700
Add: Shares issued during the year 754,716 7,547,160 1,008,400 10,084,000
Balance at the end of the year 10,839,586 108,395,860 10,084,870 100,848,700

There is no movement in forfeited equity shares of Rs. 10 each, Rs. 5 paid up during the current and
previous year.

c. Shareholders holding more than 5% of the shares in the Company as at balance sheet date

Number Percentage Number Percentage
R. K. Saboo 2,058,460 18.99% 2,058,460 20.41%
Yashovardhan Saboo 1,509,530 13.93% 1,509,530 14.97%
Saif India V Fll Holdings Limited 1,008,400 9.30% 1,008,400 10.00%
Saif Partners India V Limited 754,716 6.96% - -
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d. Shares reserved for issue under options and other commitments

Ason 31 March 2017, 21,000 (previous year : 24,750) equity shares have been reserved for issue under the
Employee Stock Plan of the company (Refer note 41).
e. Utlisation of proceeds received pursuant to issue of equity shares and shares warrants

During the current year, the Company has issued 754,716 equity shares of Rs 10 each on preferential
allotment of shares issued at the rate of Rs 265 per share (including security premium of Rs 255 each). The
Company has also received Rs. 251 lacs (twenty five percent of issue price) of 377,356 equity shares
warrants of Rs 10 each issued at the rate of Rs 265 per share warrant (including security premium of Rs 255
each). Theamount received has been utilised as follows:

Particulars Amount(Rs.)
Share issue expenses 1,010,000
Repayment of working capital demand loan 79,000,000
Repayment of term loan 8,349,390
Working capital requirements 115,662,268
Fixed deposit 20,000,000
Current account 1,078,342
Total 225,100,000

f. Sharesissued for consideration otherthan cash
The Company has notissued any shares pursuant to a contract without payment being received in cashinthe
current year and preceding five years. The Company has not issued any bonus shares nor has there been any
buy-back of sharesinthe currentyearand preceding five years.

As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
4. Reserves and surplus

Central investment subsidy 2,500,000 2,500,000
State investment subsidy 3,000,000 3,000,000
Profit on re-issue of forfeited shares 9,125 9,125
Forfeiture of zero coupon convertible warrants 1,025 1,025

Securities premium reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year 466,405,572 191,574,175
Add: Additions during the year 192,452,580 289,915,000
Less: Share issue expense (1,010,000) (15,083,603)
Balance at the end of the year m m
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As at
31 March 2017

As at

31 March 2016

Employee stock option

Options outstanding at the beginning of the year 344,238
Less: Options expired during the year (52,124)
Options outstanding at the end of the year () 292,114

Deferred employee stock option expense at the beginning of the year -
Less: Amortisation and other movements during the year * -
At the end of the year (ii) -
Employee stock option reserve(i)-(ii) 292,114

*Employee stock option recognised in statement of profit and loss (52,124)
during the year [Also refer note 22]

General reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year 177,619,619
Add: Transferred from statement of profit and loss 20,000,000
Balance at the end of the year 197,619,619
Surplus in the statement of profit and loss
Balance at the beginning of the year 106,031,636
Add: Transferred from statement of profit and loss 71,474,911
Less: Appropriations -
Interim dividend -
Tax on interim dividend -
Transfer to general reserve (20,000,000)
Balance at the end of the year 157,506,547
1,018,776,582

552,525
(208,287)
344,238
125,123
(125,123)
344,238
(83,164)

157,619,619
20,000,000

177,619,619

78,465,303
65,773,897
(15,127,997)
(3,079,567)

(20,000,000)

106,031,636

755,911,215

During the year the company issued 377,356 shares warrant to be converted in to 377,356. Equity share of
the face value of Rs. 10/- each. There warrant were issued at Rs. 265 per warrant (including security
premium of Rs. 255) Rs. 66.25 per warrant has been paid by the allotte Each share warrantis convertible in to
one equity share of Rs. 10/- each on the payment of remaining consideration or before eighteen fee months

from the date of allotment of warrants.

: 93 ',




KDDL Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information for the year ended 31 March 2017

(Al amounts in rupees, unless stated otherwise)

As at
31 March 2017

As at

31 March 2016

Long-term borrowings

Secured

Term loans

- from banks 48,883,817
- from others 140,082,781
Vehicle loan from banks 2,972,178
Unsecured

Public deposit

- From related parties (refer note 33) 5,259,000
- from others 116,271,000
313,468,776

Less: Current maturities of long term borrowings (refer note 12)

Secured

Term loans

- from banks 29,458,000
- from others 29,339,740
Vehicle loan from banks 1,012,868
Unsecured

Public deposit

- From related party [Also refer note 33] 1,000,000
- From others 33,941,000
94,751,608

218,717,168

Details of security and terms of repayment of term loans from banks

115,427,377
62,673,685
5,390,145

2,900,000

105,897,000

292,288,207

62,112,032
5,342,491
2,019,579

400,000

36,918,000

106,792,102

185,496,105

Term loans from banks amounting to Rs 48,883,817 (previous year Rs 115,427,377) are secured as under:

- Term loans from Bank of India amounting to Rs 18,629,247 (previous year Rs 55,231,759) carrying interest

rate of 2.95% over the bank MCLR are secured by way of first pari passu charge on all the plant and
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machinery and furniture and fixtures of the Company excluding the fixed assets installed at packaging
division at Chandigarh (KPAC), hands division at Bengaluru (KHAN-2), and the plant and machinery and
furniture and fixtures of dials division at Parwanoo (TTPA) acquired before 31 March 2005 and second
charge on all the current assets (save and except the book debts) subject to the first charge in favour of the
Company's bankers for securing the working capital limits. The term loan is further secured by way of first
pari passu mortgage charge on land and building of dials division at Derabassi (KDER). The loan includes
construction loan for dials unit at Parwanoo (TTPA) which is secured by first pari passu charge on land and
building of TTPA. The term loans are also personally guaranteed by the Chairman Emeritus and Chief
Executive Officer (CEQO) of the Company.

- Term loans from IDBI Bank Limited amounting to Rs 10,708,000 (previous year Rs 12,110,411) carrying
interest rate of 2.5% over the bank base rate and Corporate loan amounting to Rs 19,546,570 (previous year
Rs 24,996,000) carrying interest rate of 3% over the bank base rate are secured by way of first pari passu
charge on all the plant and machinery and furniture and fixtures of KDER, tool room division at Bengaluru
(EIGEN) and hands division at Bengaluru (KHAN-1) and second charge on all the current assets (save and
except the book debts) subject to the first charge in favour of the Company's bankers for securing the
working capital limits. The term loan is further secured by way of first pari passu mortgage charge on land
and building of KDER. The term loans are also personally guaranteed by the Chairman Emeritus and Chief
Executive Officer (CEQO) of the Company.

- Term loan from Corporation Bank amounting to Nil (previous year Rs 23,089,207) carrying interest rate of
5.5% over the bank base rate, are secured by way of first exclusive charge on all the plant and machinery and
furniture and fixtures of KHAN-2 and second charge on all the current assets (save and except the book
debts) subject to the first charge in favour of the Company's bankers for securing the working capital limits.
Theloanis further secured by exclusive mortgage charge on land and building of KHAN-1.

Repayment terms of term loans from banks (including the current maturities of long-term debt as
referred toin note 12) are given as under:

-Term loan from Bank of India amounting to Rs 18,629,248 is repayable in 9 equal quarterly instalments of Rs
18,75,000 each and last instalment of Rs 17,54,248 commencing from 30 June 2017. The last instalment
would be due on 30 September 2019.

- Corporate Loan from IDBI Bank Limited amounting to Rs 10,708,000 is repayable in 2 equal quarterly
instalments of Rs 3,572,000 each and last instalment of Rs 35,64,000 commencing from 30 June 2016. The
lastinstalment would be due on 31 December 2017.

- Corporate Loan from IDBI Bank Limited amounting to Rs 19,564,570 is repayable in 6 equal quarterly
instalments of Rs 2,812,500 each and last instalment of Rs. 2,671,570 commencing from 31 May 2017. The
lastinstalment would be due on 30 November 2018.

: 95 ',




KDDL Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information for the year ended 31 March 2017

(Al amounts in rupees, unless stated otherwise)

b. Details of security amounting to Rs. 140,082,781 (previous year Rs 62,673,685) and terms of
repayment of term loans from others
Term loan from Intec Capital limited amounting to Rs. 6,473,378 ( previous year Rs. 8,423,685) carrying fixed
interestrate of 11.75% is secured by way of hypothecation of the specific asset purchased out of proceeds of
theloan. The loanisalso personally guaranteed of Chairman Emeritus and Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the
Company. The loanisto be repaid in 32 monthly intallments as per the repayment schedule in equivated annual
installments commencing from 1 April 2016. The lastinstalment would be repaid on 1 November 2019.

'Term loan from Tata Capital Financial Services Limited amounting to Rs. 50,859,400 ( previous year Rs.
54,250,000) carrying interest rate equal to LTLR less 7% (presently 11.25%) is secured by way of first pari
passu charge over the projectimmovable property and over movable fixed assets of Eigen lll, situated at plot
no. 55-A (Aerospace sector) Hitech, Devanahalli, Banglore. The loanis also personally guaranteed by Chief
Executive Officer (CEO) of the Company. The loan is to be repaid in 45 monthly intallments of Rs. 1,130,200
and last instalment of Rs. 1,130,600 as per the repayment schedule in equivated annual installments
commencing from 25 April 2017. The last instalment would be repaid on 25 November 2020.

"Term loan from Tata Capital Financial Services Limited amounting to Rs. 42,750,000 ( previous year Nil)
carrying interest rate equal to LTLR less 7.25% (presently 11%) is secured by way of exclusive charge by way
of mortgage over the factory land & building of the borrower situated at 296 & 297 (South western Portion)
5th Main, 4th Phase, Peenya Industrial Area, Peenya, Bangalore and exclusive charge by way of
hypothecation over the plant & machineries & other movable assets of KHAN Il, situated at 408, 4th Main,
11th Cross, Peenya Industrial Area, Bangalore 560058 (Karnataka). The loan is also personally guaranteed
by Chief Executive Officer (CEQO) of the Company. The loan is to be repaid in 19 quarterly intallments of Rs.
22,50,000 as per the repayment schedule in equivated annual installments commencing from 8 April 2017.
The lastinstalment would be repaid on 8 October 2021.

"Term loan from Bajaj Finance Limited amounting to Rs. 40,000,000 ( previous year Nil) carrying interest rate
of 10.75% is secured by pari passu charge by way of hypothecation of equipment procured out of the term
loan, Mortgage of Land & buliding at Bengaluru ( Plot No. 55-A, Aerospace Sector) Hitech, Aerospace and
Defence Park, Devanahalli, Bengaluru District. The loan is also personally guaranteed by Chief Executive
Officer (CEO) of the Company. The loan is to be repaid in 50 monthly intallments of Rs. 833,334 and last
instalment of Rs. 6,25,000 as per the repayment schedule in equivated annual installments commencing
from 5 October 2017. The last instalment would be repaid on 5 November 2021.

c. Vehicle loans from banks carrying interest rate in the range of 9.51% per annum to 12.25% per annum are
secured against hypothecation of specific vehicle purchased out of the proceeds of those loans. The loans
areto be repaid as per the respective repayment schedule in equivated annual installments.

d. Publicdeposits carrying interest rates in the range of 8.5% perannumto 12.5% per annum are repayable in 6
months to 3 years from the respective dates of deposit.
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As at
31 March 2017

As at

31 March 2016

7. Deferred tax liabilities (net)

Timing difference on depreciation and amortisation
of tangible and intangible assets

Deferred tax assets
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts
Provision for warranties
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for bonus

Deferred lease rent payable

Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss

8. Other long-term liabilities
Security deposits from related parties (refer note 33)

Deferred lease rent payable [(refer note 29(a) and note 30)]

9. Long-term provisions
Provision for employee benefits [(Also refer note 9 (a))]

Provision for warranty [(Also refer note 9 (b) and note 29)]

9 (a) Provision for employee benefits

(i) Defined Contribution Plan: Expenditure on account of
Superannuation Scheme taken by the Company with LIC of India

(59,271,522)

304,263
558,497
7,779,018
4,987,121
2,913,936

42,728,687

4,725,856

1,630,863
8,419,833

10,050,696

16,051,108
1,255,331

17,306,439

1,810,690

in respect of its employee provided in the statement of profit and loss

(ii) Defined benefit plan/ other long term benefit plans

a. Gratuity
b. Compensated absences

(57,728,272)

314,440
380,500
11,493,777
5,209,057
2,327,666

38,002,831

(3,247,081)

677,235
6,725,804

7,403,039

27,295,133
884,741

28,179,874

1,308,516

The following table set out the status of the plan for gratuity and compensated absences as required under
Accounting Standard (AS) - 15 (R) - Employee benefits and the reconciliation of opening and closing balances

of the present value of the defined benefit obligation:
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As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Compensated Gratuity Compensated Gratuity
absences absences
Particulars
Actuarial Assumptions
Discount rate 8% 8% 8% 8%
Rate of increase in compensation levels 5% 5% 5% 5%
Rate of return of plan assets 8% 8%

Demographic assumptions

Mortality rate Indian assured lives  Indian assured lives Indian assured lives Indian assured lives

mortality (1994-96) mortality (1994-96) mortality mortality (1994-96)
Ultimate (1994-96)

Retirement age 58 58 58 58
Withdrawal rates

- upto 30 years 3% 3% 3% 3%
- upto 44 years 2% 2% 2% 2%
- above 44 years 1% 1% 1% 1%

As at As at

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Change in the present value of obligation:

Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the year 46,177,664 42,077,620
Interest cost 3,689,020 3,358,355
Current service cost 3,384,607 3,278,623
Benefits paid/payable (4,871,619) (5,244,869)
Actuarial loss on obligations 460,741 2,707,935
Present value of obligation as at the end of the year 48,840,413 46,177,664
Change in the fair value of plan assets:

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 28,383,409 22,726,201
Expected return on plan assets 2,315,009 1,929,748
Contributions 18,163,568 8,972,329
Benefits paid (4,871,619) (5,244,869)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 43,990,367 28,383,409
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As at
31 March 2017

As at

31 March 2016

Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation

and the fair value of assets:

Present value of funded obligation as at the end of the year
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the period funded status 43,990,367

Unfunded net liability recognized in balance sheet*

* includes short term provision of Rs.3,384,607
(previous year Rs. 3,278,623)

Expenses recognized in the statement of profit and loss:

Current service cost
Interest cost

Expected return on plan assets
Net actuarial loss recognized in the year

Total expenses recognized in the statement of profit and loss

Notes :

48,840,413

4,850,046

3,384,607
3,689,020
2,315,009

460,741

5,219,359

46,177,664
28,383,409

17,794,255

3,278,623
3,358,355
1,929,748
2,707,935

7,415,165

1) Thediscountrateisbasedonthe prevailing marketyield of Indian Government bonds as at the balance sheet

date for the estimated terms of obligations.

2) The expected return is based on the expectation of the average long term rate of return on investments of
the fund during the estimated terms of obligations.

3) The estimates of future salary increases considered takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion

and other relevant factors.

4) Planassets mainly comprise funds managed by the insureri.e. Life Insurance Corporation of India. ('LIC')

5) ForGratuity, the Company makes annual contributions to the LIC of an amount advised by them.

Amounts for the current and previous four years are as follows:

2016-17
Gratuity
Defined benefit obligation 48,840,413
Plan assets 43,990,367
Net liability 4,850,046
Experience adjustment 460,741

arising on the gratuity benefits

2015-16

46,177,664
28,383,409
17,794,255

2,707,935

2014-15

42,077,620
22,726,201
19,351,419

1,758,902

2012-13

36,061,859 28,070,433
16,329,813 11,241,153
19,732,046 16,829,280

3,248,778
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As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016

9 (b) Reconciliation of provision for warranty
Provision at the beginning of the year 1,099,456 1,106,200
Less: Provision utilised during the year 214,715 533,036
Add: Provision recognised during the year 729,039 526,292
Provision at the end of the year* 1,613,780 1,099,456

10.

* includes short term provision of Rs 358,449 (previous year Rs 214,715)

Short-term borrowings

Secured (refer note 10 (a) below)

Working capital borrowings from banks 24,771,909 109,257,143
Working capital borrowings from others 30,000,000 -
Buyers credit from banks 27,381,021 21,320,596
Unsecured

Public deposits 2,872,000 10,401,000

Details of security of short-term secured loans

- Working capital borrowings from banks carrying interest rate varying from 9.10% p.a. to 13.50% p.a. are
secured by hypothecation of stocks of stores and spares, raw materials and components, finished goods and
stock-in-process and book debts and other assets of the Company (both present and future), on pari passu
basis except packaging unit (KPAC) and are further secured by a second charge on the entire fixed assets of
the Company. These loans are also guaranteed by the Chairman Emeritus and Chief Executive Officer (CEO)
ofthe Company and is repayable on demand.

- Working capital borrowings from others carrying interest rate of 10.75% p.a. are secured by first pari passu
charge on current assets. The loan is also personally guaranteed by the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the
Company andisrepayable on demand.

- Buyers credit from Bank of India amounting to Rs 7,981,221 carrying interest rate 6 month libor plus .75% is
secured against hypothecation of inventory and receivablesis repayable on demand.

- Buyers credit from IDBI amounting to Rs 19,399,800 carrying interest rate varying from 3 month libor plus
.90% to 6 month libor plus 1.00% is secured against hypothecation of inventory and receivables is repayable
ondemand.

- Public deposits carrying interest rates in the range of 8.5% perannum to 12.5% per annum are repayable in
6 monthsto 3 years fromthe respective dates of deposit.
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KDDL Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information for the year ended 31 March 2017

(All amounts in rupees, unless stated otherwise)

As at
31 March 2017

As at
31 March 2016

11. Trade payables

12.

Dues to micro and small enterprises (Also refer note (a) below) 7,269,656

Dues to others 86,917,486
Dues to related parties (refer note 33) 6,133,886
100,321,028

4,507,070
85,823,746
8,503,804
98,834,620

a. Dues to micro and small enterprises pursuant to section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium

Enterprises Development Act (MSMED), 2006

On the basis of confirmation obtained from suppliers who have registered themselves under the Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act, 2006) and based on the information

available with the Company, the following are the details:

Principal amount remaining unpaid 7,200,332
Interest due thereon remaining unpaid 69,324
Interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of MSMED 76,693

Act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment made to the
suppliers and service providers beyond the appointed day during the year

Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment -
(which has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year)

but without adding the interest specified under MSMED Act, 2006

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid as at end of the year 69,324

Further Interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding
years until such date when the interest dues as above are actually
paid to the small enterprises for the purpose of disallowance as
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006

Other current liabilities
Current maturities of long-term debts :

Public deposit

- from related parties (refer note 33) 1,000,000
- from others 33,941,000
Term loan (refer note 6 above)

- from banks 29,458,000

4,430,377
43,574

76,693

400,000
36,918,000

62,112,032
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KDDL Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information for the year ended 31 March 2017

(All amounts in rupees, unless stated otherwise)

As at

31 March 2017

As at

31 March 2016

13.

- from others
Vehicle loan from banks
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings*
Unpaid dividend**
Other payables
Statutory dues
Creditors for capital expenditure
Advances from customers

Employee related payables

* due to related parties (refer note 33)

** Not due for deposit

Short-term provisions

Provision for employees benefits (Also refer note 9(a))
Provision for income tax [Net of advance tax and taxes

deducted at source Rs. Nil (Previous year Rs. 31,873,832) ]

Provision for warranty (refer note 9(b) and note 29)

29,339,740
1,012,868
13,220,225
1,968,945

12,120,185
5,212,539
275,527
46,757,531

174,306,560

83,166

19,739,140

358,449

20,097,589

5,342,491
2,019,579
14,442,224
2,520,578

10,451,812
4,842,011
5,819,324

30,501,396

175,369,447

139,853

19,712,267

5,421,201
214,715

25,348,183
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KDDL Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information for the year ended 31 March 2017

(All amounts in rupees, unless stated otherwise)

As at
31 March 2017

As at

31 March 2016

15. Non current investments

Trade investments
(valued at cost unless stated otherwise, unquoted)

Subsidiaries
7,550 (previous year 7,550) equity shares of Swiss
Franc (CHF) 100 each fully paid up, of Pylania SA, Switzerland

8,503,736 (previous year 7,665,648) equity shares of
Rs. 10 each fully paid up of Ethos Limited

136,363 (previous year Nil) 12% Cummulative Compulsary
Convertible preference shares of Rs. 110 each fully
paid up of Ethos Limited

300,000 (previous year Nil) 12% Preference Shares of
Rs. 100 each fully paid up of Ethos Limited

19,230 (previous year 19230) 14% Cumulative Compulsary
convertible preference shares of Rs.130 each fully paid
up of Ethos Limited

5,700,000 (previous year 5,700,000) equity share of Rs 10 each
fully paid up of Mahen Distribution Limited

6,000 (previous year 3,000) equity shares of Swiss Franc (CHF)
100 each fully paid up of Kamla International Holdings SA.*

2,28,700 ( previou year 114,350) 12% fully convertible
cumulative preference shares of Rs.56 each fully paid of
Mahen Distribution Limited

3,000,000 (previous year 1,500,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each
fully paid up of Satva Jewellery and Design Limited*

Associate
300,000 (previous year 300,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each
fully paid up of Kamla Tesio Dials Limited.

28,123,935

299,040,434

14,999,930

30,000,000

2,499,900

57,000,000

38,351,064

12,807,200

15,000,000

3,000,000

28,123,935

179,040,740

14,999,930

2,499,900

57,000,000

38,351,064

6,403,600

3,000,000
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KDDL Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information for the year ended 31 March 2017

(All amounts in rupees, unless stated otherwise)

As at

31 March 2017

As at

31 March 2016

Joint Venture

3,000,000 (previous year 1,500,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each

fully paid up of Satva Jewellery and Design Limited*

Less:

500,822,463

Provision for diminution in the value of investment, other than temporary in:

- Kamla Tesio Dials Limited
- Satva Jewellery and Design Limited

- Pylania SA, Switzerland

Aggregate value of trade investments
Non-trade investments
(valued at cost unless stated otherwise, unquoted)

500,000 (previous year 500,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each
fully paid up of Karolview Developers Private Limited

17,500 (previous year 17,500) equity shares of Rs. 10 each
fully paid up of Shivalik Waste Management Limited

Aggregate value of non-trade investments

Aggregate amount of quoted investments
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments

Aggregate provision for dimunition in value of investments

1,000,000
15,000,000

9,843,377

474,979,086

5,000,000

175,000

5,175,000

480,154,086

505,997,463
25,843,377

15,000,000

344,419,169

1,000,000
15,000,000

9,843,377

318,575,792

5,000,000

175,000

5,175,000

323,750,792

349,594,169
25,843,377

* w.e.f. 23 December 2016, Satva Jewellery and Design Limited ceased to be a joint venture and became

subsidiary of the Company (also refer note 33).
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KDDL Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information for the year ended 31 March 2017

(All amounts in rupees, unless stated otherwise)

As at

31 March 2017

As at

31 March 2016

16. Long-term loans and advances

(unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)

Capital advances

Security deposits

Prepaid income taxes [net of provision Rs. 122,551,490

(previous year Rs. 119,578,750)]
Prepaid expenses

Loans and advances to employees

17. Inventories

12,625,000
14,472,090
44,827,051

166,133
6,047,984

78,138,258

(valued at lower of cost and net realisable value, unless otherwise stated)

Raw material [including scrap of Rs Nil (previous year Rs 504,412 )] 112,242,289

Raw material (in transit)
Work-in-progress
Finished goods

Stores and spares

a. Details of work-in-progress
Watch dials
Watch hands
Blank components
Press tools

Ornamental packaging boxes

1,293,979
66,763,577
8,332,594
21,523,630

210,156,069

27,190,252
10,451,918
23,735,918
5,019,872
365,617

66,763,577

442,650
13,917,295
42,519,772

367,176
3,845,179

61,092,072

113,786,295
1,607,213
60,082,523
9,344,113
26,544,480

211,364,624

30,670,246
8,758,836
17,288,330
2,784,596
580,515

60,082,523
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KDDL Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information for the year ended 31 March 2017

(All amounts in rupees, unless stated otherwise)

As at

31 March 2017

As at

31 March 2016

18. Trade receivables

19.

Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they are due for payment

Unsecured, Considered good

Unsecured, Considered doubtful

Less : Allowances for bad and doubtful debts

Other debts

Other debts (Unsecured, considered good)*

*due from related parties (refer note 33)

Cash and bank balances

Cash and cash equivalents

- Cash in hand

- Balances with banks in current account
- Unpaid dividend account

Total Cash and cash equivalents

Other bank balances

- Deposits with maturity more than three

months but less than twelve months

1,259,228
879,169
2,138,397

879,169
1,259,228

210,719,677

211,978,905

30,791

1,655,704
11,869,638

1,968,945

15,494,287

83,836,968

99,331,255

2,852,053
908,577
3,760,630

908,577
2,852,053

196,363,641

199,215,694

1,380,132
7,551,081

2,520,578

11,451,791

40,745,992

52,197,783
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KDDL Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information for the year ended 31 March 2017

(All amounts in rupees, unless stated otherwise)

Notes:

a)

Cash and cash equivalents include Rs 1,968,945 (previous year Rs 2,520,578) held in dividend accounts

whichis not available for use by the Company.

b) Rs63,836,968 (previous year Rs.40,745,992) has been placed as fixed deposits with banks for repayment of
deposits as required under section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and margin money for working capital and
termloans.

¢) Rs. 20,000,000 (previous year Nil) has been placed as fixed deposits with banks as security for term loan
facility availed by the subsidiary company Ethos Limited.

As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
20. Short-term loans and advances

(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)

Loans to related parties*

Subsidiaries (secured) 10,394,200
Joint venture (secured) -
Recoverable from related parties*

Subsidiaries 7,609,046
Joint venture -
Entities in which significant influence is exercised -
Director -
Employee loans and advances** 12,537,408
Prepaid expenses 4,983,799
Balances with government and statutory authorities 30,610,843
Advance to suppliers 11,767,480

77,902,776

*Refer note 33

**includes loan to Director amounting to Rs 5,000,000 (previous year Rs 5,175,000)

10,394,200

7,967,189
783,060
72,000
800,000
21,923,765
7,182,835
34,459,555
8,980,446

92,563,050
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KDDL Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information for the year ended 31 March 2017

(All amounts in rupees, unless stated otherwise)

For the year ended
31 March 2017

For the year ended
31 March 2016

21. Other current assets
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 2,183,973 2,056,624
2,183,973 2,056,624
22. Revenue from operations
Sale of products 1,236,486,806 1,172,571,556
Sale of services 19,561,837 15,767,918
Other operating income
Export incentives 25,409,410 21,274,313
Miscellaneous sales 24,676,524 23,654,525
Liabilities and provisions no longer required written back* 2,156,200 1,142,135
1,308,290,777 1,234,410,447

* Includes reversal of excess provision of employee stock options amounting to

Rs 52,124 (previous year Rs 83,164).

a. Details of products sold

- Manufactured goods

Watch dials 410,798,518 456,834,710
Watch hands 533,680,294 485,753,253
Blank components 223,509,943 167,827,928
Press tools 24,301,296 17,300,642
Ornamental packaging boxes 44,196,755 44,855,023

1,236,486,806 1,172,571,556
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KDDL Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information for the year ended 31 March 2017

(All amounts in rupees, unless stated otherwise)

For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2017 31 March 2016
b. Details of services
Job charges 4,888,380 7,608,648
Tool development charges 14,073,457 7,559,270
E-commerce business 600,000 600,000
19,561,837 15,767,918
23. Other income
Interest income from
- Banks 5,137,330 3,948,870
- Related party (refer note 33) 600,000 600,000
- Others 5,578,294 863,681
Other non-operating income
Rent 4,535,719 4,985,890
Foreign exchange fluctuation gain (net) 5,975,817 9,886,453
Miscelleanous income 293,376 34,352
Profit on sale of fixed assets (net) 49,648 -
22,170,184 20,319,246
24. Cost of materials consumed
Opening inventories 113,281,883 122,154,141
Add: Purchases during the year 291,306,167 257,671,571
Less: Closing inventories 112,242,289 113,281,883
292,345,761 266,543,829

|
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KDDL Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information for the year ended 31 March 2017

(All amounts in rupees, unless stated otherwise)

For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2017 31 March 2016
a. Raw material and components consumed
Brass and Metal 69,075,113 115,926,263
Components 98,731,975 51,181,667
Others 124,538,673 99,435,899
292,345,761 266,543,829

25. Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in progress

Opening stock

Finished goods 9,344,113 13,560,992
Work in process 60,082,523 49,914,003
Scrap 504,412 355,790

Closing stock
Finished goods 8,332,594 9,344,113
Work in process 66,763,577 60,082,523
Scrap - 504,412
Impact of excise duty on opening/closing stock 181,043 593,952
(5,346,166) (6,694,215)

26. Employee benefit expenses

Salaries and wages 349,294,653 320,251,302
Contribution to provident and other funds 26,284,264 26,365,836
Staff welfare expenses 19,656,213 19,786,021
395,235,130 366,403,159

J

:




KDDL Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information for the year ended 31 March 2017

(All amounts in rupees, unless stated otherwise)

For the year ended
31 March 2017

For the year ended
31 March 2016

27. Finance costs
Interest expense

Other borrowing cost

28. Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation (Also, refer note 14)

Amortisation (Also, refer note 14)

46,983,587
8,173,003
55,156,590

68,485,484
4,029,211
72,514,695

54,874,586

7,292,806

62,167,392

63,144,980

5,737,767

68,882,747

§
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KDDL Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information for the year ended 31 March 2017

(All amounts in rupees, unless stated otherwise)

For the year ended
31 March 2017

For the year ended
31 March 2016

29. Other expenses
Stores and spares consumed
Power, fuel and water charges
Contractual labour expenses

Insurance

Rent

- Machinery

- Office and factory premises [Also refer note (a) below]
- Others

Rates and taxes

Repair and maintenance

- Plant and machinery

- Buildings

- Others

Legal and professional [Also refer note (b) below]
Travel and conveyance

Job charges

Printing and stationery

Communication expenses

Commission

Events and exhibitions

Loss on sale of fixed assets (net)

Fixed assets written off

Provision for bad and doubtful debts

59,263,767
33,490,321
36,443,150

1,920,827

1,368,000
21,279,591
62,035
2,214,514

14,720,622
2,297,604
11,977,983
36,959,798
36,520,667
37,567,986
3,557,837
6,480,457
19,143,373
6,224,294
385,446
597,300

61,768,294
33,798,003
36,177,378

1,097,553

1,568,000
20,531,742
894,129

1,898,408

16,531,461
4,313,884
11,947,058
30,915,044
33,801,189
36,362,750
3,495,270
6,322,530
23,476,534
8,068,343
1,010,239
875,631

959,219

&
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KDDL Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information for the year ended 31 March 2017

(All amounts in rupees, unless stated otherwise)

For the year ended
31 March 2017

For the year ended
31 March 2016

30.

Donation 385,000
Bad debts and capital advances written off [out of 80,280
provision for bad and doubtful debts, Rs 191,125

debited to bad debts written off (previous year Rs 9,064,304)]

- Provision for warranty (also refer note 9 and note 13) 514,324
- Directors' sitting fees 540,000
Security service charges 7,384,022
Miscellaneous expenses 16,058,802

357,438,000

450,000

725,975

5,696,237
12,323,766

355,008,637

a) Rent - Office and factory premises include Rs 1,694,029 (previous year Rs 2,655,462) recognised on

account of straight lining of lease rent over the lease term in accordance with the provision of Accounting

Standard 19 'Accounting for leases'.

b) Legal and professional includes payment to the auditors (excluding service tax)

As auditor 1,550,000
Others 205,000
Reimbursement of expenses 209,882

1,964,882

Prior period items
Interest income on income tax refund -

Deferred lease rent -

3

2,350,000
790,000
123,370

3,263,370

(561,154)

1,484,225
923,071

114
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KDDL Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information for the year ended 31 March 2017

(All amounts in rupees, unless stated otherwise)

For the year ended
31 March 2017

For the year ended
31 March 2016

31.

32.

a)

c)

d)

e)

f)

g)

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to
be executed on capital account and not provided
for (net of advances)

Contingent liability not provided for exists in respect of:
Bank guarantees issued is favour of subsidiary
Demand raised for service tax against which appeals have been filed

Demand raised by Punjab State Electricity Board for payment of
penalty for usage of additional power against sanctioned load.
Amount paid under protest Rs 372,818 (previous year Rs 372,818)

Demand raised for Income tax
(assessment year 2004-05 to assessment year 2012-13)

Claims against the company filed by employees not acknowledged
as debt (to the extent ascertainable)

Custom duty saved against EPCG Licences, pending redemption

Other items

68,493,034

566,487,987

4,794,535

372,818

36,787,242

2,341,500

15,371,868
6,417,192

369,850

601,247,750

1,834,596

372,818

90,956,969

2,137,500

15,371,868

6,417,192

&
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KDDL Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information for the year ended 31 March 2017

(All amounts in rupees, unless stated otherwise)

33.

Related party disclosures
Relationships

Subsidiary companies

Associates

Entities over which significant
influence is exercised by the
company /key management
personnel (either individually

or with others)

Key management personnel (KMP)
a. Mr. R.K. Saboo (Chairman)
(Director till 30 November 2016)

Pylania SA
Kamla International Holdings SA
Ethos Limited

Mahen Distribution Limited

Satva Jewellery and Design Limited [refer note (I) below]

Kamla Tesio Dials Limited

Jan Seva Trust
Yashovardhan Saboo (HUF)

Smt. Kamla Devi Saboo Charitable Trust

Vardhan Properties & Investments Limited

Saboo Coatings Limited

VBL Innovations Private Limited
Vardhan International Limited

Shri M.K. Saboo Charitable Trust

Tara Chand Mahendra Kumar (HUF)
Saveeka Family Trust; and

Dream Digital Technology Limited
Connexity Technologies Private Limited

KDDL Ethos Foundation

Relatives *
Mrs. Usha Devi Saboo (spouse),

Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo (son),
Mrs. Asha Devi Saboo (Brother spouse)

{116 }
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KDDL Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information for the year ended 31 March 2017

(All amounts in rupees, unless stated otherwise)

b. Mr. Y. Saboo Mr. R.K. Saboo (father),
(Chief Executive Officer & Vice-Chairman) Mrs. Anuradha Saboo (spouse),

Mr. Pranav Shankar Saboo (Son),
Mrs. Malvika Singh (son's spouse)
c.  Mr. Sanjeev Kumar Masown Mrs. Neeraj Masown (wife)
(Chief financial officer and Whole Time Director) Mr Lal Chand Masown (father)
d. Dinesh Agrawal** Mrs. Shashi Agrawal (spouse)

*With respect to the key management personnel, disclosure has been given for those relatives with whom
the Company has made transactions during the year

**Resigned as Chief Operating Officer w.e.f 31 March, 2016

(n SatvaJewellery and Design Limited ('Satva') has ceased to be joint venture of the Company and has become
wholly owned subsidiary of KDDL Limited pursuant to purchase of remaining shares of the other venturer
in the joint venture vide agreement dated 23 December 2016. Accordingly, transactions during the year
with Satva upto 23 December 2016 has been disclosed as transactions with joint venture and transactions
incurred after 23 December 2016 has been disclosed as transaction with subsidiary company.

§
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KDDL Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information for the year ended 31 March 2017

(All amounts in rupees, unless stated otherwise)

33.

for the period ended 31 March 2017

Related Party Disclosure (cont'd)
The following transactions were carried out with related parties in the ordinary course of business

S.

No.

Particulars

Subsidiaries

Associates

Joint
Venture

Entities ever
which significant
influence is
exercised

Key
Management
Personnel

Relatives of
Key
Management
Personnel

Purchase of raw material

and components

Saboo Coatings Private Limited
Pylania SA

Ethos Limited

Sale of goods and services
Pylania SA

Saboo Coatings Limited

Ethos Limited

Purchase of fixed assets

Ethos Limited

Sale of fixed assets

Pylania SA

Saboo Coatings Private Limited
Job work charges paid

Pylania SA

Rent paid by the Company
Saboo Coatings Private Limited
Mr. R.K. Saboo

Mr. Y. Saboo

Ms. A. Saboo

Ms. U. Saboo

Satva Jewellery & Design Limited

Salary of employees recovered
Ethos Limited

Saboo Coatings Limited

Salary of employees Paid
Saboo Coatings Limited
Directors remuneration

Mr. R.K. Saboo

Mr. Y. Saboo

Mr Sanjeev Masown

3,265,373
478,511

5,145,050

611,681

550,908

1,583,514

735,402

150,000

132,600

450,000

2,654,783

35,792

767,528

109,900

400,000
2,084,040

2,988,516
7,417,476
4,644,222

200,000

300,000
120,000

&
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KDDL Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information for the year ended 31 March 2017

(All amounts in rupees, unless stated otherwise)

33.

Related Party Disclosure (cont'd)

The following transactions were carried out with related parties in the ordinary course of business
for the period ended 31 March 2017

Particulars

Subsidiaries

Associates

Joint
Venture

Entities ever
which significant
influence is
exercised

Key
Management
Personnel

Relatives of
Key
Management
Personnel

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

Interest received

Satva Jewellery & Design Limited
Interest paid/ accrued

Vardhan Properties and Investment Limited
Ms. Asha Devi Saboo

Mr S.K. Masown

Ms Neeraj Masown

Mr Lal Chand Masown

Guarantee charges received

Pylania SA

Public deposits accepted

Ms Neeraj Masown

Mr S K Masown

Mr Lal Chand Masown

Vardhan Properties & Investment Ltd.
Repayment of Public deposits

Mr S K Masown

Others including rent received

Ethos Limited

Saboo Coatings Private Limited
Kamla Tesio Dials Limited
Reimbursement of expenses paid by
the Company

Pylania SA

Ethos Limited

Dream Digital Technology Pvt. Limited
Saboo Coatings Private Limited

Satva Jewellery and Design Limited
Management consultancy fees paid
Dream Digital Technology Pvt. Limited
Mr. R.K. Saboo

150,000

205,488

3,092,347

80,254
1,279,796

38,818

600,000

450,000

132,956

292,691

1,000,000

760,000

165,161
228,159

1,980,000

420,000

200,000

125,000

104,826
50,950

1,500,000

200,000

1200,000

g

9




KDDL Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information for the year ended 31 March 2017

(All amounts in rupees, unless stated otherwise)

33. Related Party Disclosure (cont'd)

The following transactions were carried out with related parties in the ordinary course of business

for the period ended 31 March 2017

S. Particulars Subsidiaries Associates Joint Entities ever Key Relatives of
No. Venture |which significant| Management Key
influence is Personnel |Management
exercised Personnel
18.| Expenses recovered
Kamla Tesio Dials Limited - 96,567 - - - -
Ethos Limited 1,281,910 - - - - -
Saboo Coatings Private Limited - - - 571,619 - -
VBL Innovations Private Limited 195,004 - -
Dream Digital Technology Pvt. Limited - - - 2,470,000 - -
19.| Investments made
Mahen Boutiques Limited 6,406,600 - - - - -
Ethos Limited 149,999,964 - - - - -
20.| CSR contribution made
KDDL Ethos Foundation - - - 1,800,000 - -
21.| Security deposit received
Saboo Coatings Private Limited - - - 953,628 - -

g




KDDL Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information for the year ended 31 March 2017

(All amounts in rupees, unless stated otherwise)

33.

Related Party Disclosure (cont'd)

The following transactions were carried out with related parties in the ordinary course of business
for the period ended 31 March 2017

Balance at the end of the year

S.

No.

Particulars

Subsidiaries

Associates

Joint
Venture

Entities ever
which significant
influence is
exercised

Key
Management
Personnel

Relatives of
Key
Management
Personnel

Loan and Advance

Satva Jewellery & Design Limited

Mr Sanjeev Kumar Masown

Ethos Limited

Satva Jewellery and Design Limited
VBL Innovations Pvt. Ltd.

Payables

Kamla Tesio Dials Limited

Saboo Coatings Private Limited
Pylania SA

Dream Digital Technology Pvt. Limited
Mr RK Saboo

Guarantees taken

Mr. R.K. Saboo

Mr Y. Saboo

Security deposit taken

Ethos Limited

Saboo Coatings Private Limited
Guarantees given

Ethos Limited

Pylania SA

Public deposits outstanding

Mr S.K. Masown

Mr Lal Chand Masown

Ms Neeraj Masown

Vardhan Properties and Investment Ltd.
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings
Mr S.K. Masown

Mr Lal Chand Masown

Ms Neeraj Masown

10,394,200

6,616,694
1,260,834

2,947,462

677,235

613,600,000
17,552,500

1,583,876

19,110

984,193

618,354

953,628

2,500,000

5,000,000

122,678,599
256,287,999

420,000

2,267,000

389,000
1,500,000

52,683
148,974




KDDL Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information for the year ended 31 March 2017

(All amounts in rupees, unless stated otherwise)

* Guarantees taken by the Company includes personal guarantees of Mr. R.K. Saboo and Yashovardhan Saboo for working
capital borrowings and term loans. The original sanctioned limits of working capital borrowings and term loans by the
continuing banks has been disclosed above. However, at the reporting date, the sanctioned limits of working capital
borrowings and the balance amount of term loans in respect of which personal guarantees have been given stands at Rs
80,608,074 of Mr. R.K.Saboo and Rs 244,217,474 of Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo.

33.

Related Party Disclosure (cont'd)

The following transactions were carried out with related parties in the ordinary course of business
for the period ended 31 March 2016

Particulars

Subsidiaries

Associates

Joint
Venture

Entities ever
which significant
influence is
exercised

Key
Management
Personnel

Relatives of
Key
Management
Personnel

Purchase of raw material and components
Pylania SA

Ethos Limited

Saboo Coatings Private Limited
Sale of goods and services
Pylania SA

Ethos Limited

Saboo Coatings Private Limited
Rent paid by the Company
Kamla Tesio Dials Limited

Satva Jewellery & Design Limited
Saboo Coatings Private Limited
Mr. R.K. Saboo

Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo

Mrs. Anuradha Saboo

Mrs. Usha Devi Saboo

Salary of employees recovered
Ethos Limited

Vardhan Properties and Investment Limited
Salary of employees paid

Saboo Coatings Private Limited
Salary paid to relatives of KMP
Ms. Malvika Singh

Director remuneration

Mr. R.K. Saboo

Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo

Mr. Dinesh Agrawal

385,539
29,500

3,458,659
681,839

- | 800,000

493,304

600,000

2,725,516

144,000

541,640

336,626
1,805,085

4,158,064
6,416,836
4,432,881

168,479
67,393

736,836
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KDDL Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information for the year ended 31 March 2017

(All amounts in rupees, unless stated otherwise)

33.

Related Party Disclosure (cont'd)

The following transactions were carried out with related parties in the ordinary course of business
for the period ended 31 March 2016

S.
No.

Particulars

Subsidiaries

Associates

Joint
Venture

Entities ever
which significant
influence is
exercised

Key
Management
Personnel

Relatives of
Key
Management
Personnel

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

Interest received

Satva Jewellery & Design Limited

Interest paid/accrued

Vardhan Properties and Investment Limited
VBL Innovations Private Limited

Saveeka Family Trust

Mr. R.K. Saboo

Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo

Mrs. Shashi Agarwal

Guarantee charges received

Pylania SA

Public deposits accepted

Vardhan Properties and Investment Limited
Mr. R.K.Saboo

Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo

Repayment of Public deposits

Saveeka Family Trust

Mr. R.K. Saboo

Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo

Repayment of inter-corporate deposits (ICD)
Vardhan Properties and Investment Limited
VBL Innovations Private Limited

Rent received

Ethos Limited

Dream Digital Technology Private Limited
Saboo Coatings Private Limited

Repayment of loans given by the Company
Pylania SA

Mr. Dinesh Agarwal

Reimbursement of expenses paid by

the Company

Pylania SA

Ethos Limited

Saboo Coatings Private Limited

349,995

4,201,884

2,028,300

16,873,068
45,200

600,000

704,376
923,178
45,890

300,000

1,000,000

9,300,000
15,000,000

12,000
760,000

53,053

340,000
170,000

10,000,00
5,000,000

10,000,000
5,000,000

400,000

: 123 ',




KDDL Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information for the year ended 31 March 2017

(All amounts in rupees, unless stated otherwise)

33.

Related Party Disclosure (cont'd)

The following transactions were carried out with related parties in the ordinary course of business
for the period ended 31 March 2016

S. Particulars Subsidiaries | Associates Joint Entities ever Key Relatives of
No. Venture |which significant| Management Key
influence is Personnel |Management
exercised Personnel
Dream Digital Technology Private Limited - - - 19,033 - -
17| Expenses other than salary recovered by
the Company
Ethos Limited 3,829,038 - - - - -
Pylania SA 347,995 - - - - -
Kamla Tesio Dials Limited -1 37,084 - - - -
Satva Jewellery & Design Limited - - | 175,884 - - -
Saboo Coatings Limited - - - 331,232 - -
VBL Innovations Private Limited - - - 235,947 - -
Dream Digital Technology Private Limited - - - 925,568 - -
18| Investments made
Ethos Limited 109,999,890 - - - - -
Kamla International Holdings AG 20,475,000 - - - - -
Mahen Distribution Limited 6,403,600 - - - - -
19| Management consultancy fees paid
Dream Digital Technology Private Limited - - -1 1,800,000 - -
20| Dividend paid
Shri R.K. Saboo HUF - - -1 1,572,865 - -
Yashovardhan Saboo HUF - - - 171,258 - -
Mr. R.K. Saboo - - - - | 5,354,021 -
Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo - - - - 15,104,296 -
Mrs. Usha Devi Saboo - - - - -1 1,579,130
Mrs. Anuradha Saboo - - - - -1 1,344,095
Mr. Pranav Shankar Saboo - - - - - 752,164

g




KDDL Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information for the year ended 31 March 2017

(All amounts in rupees, unless stated otherwise)

33.

Related Party Disclosure (cont'd)
The following transactions were carried out with related parties in the ordinary course of business
for the period ended 31 March 2016

Balance at the end of the year

S.

No.

Particulars

Subsidiaries

Associates

Joint
Venture

Entities ever
which significant
influence is
exercised

Key
Management
Personnel

Relatives of
Key
Management
Personnel

Loans and advances

Satva Jewellery & Design Limited

Mr. Dinesh Agarawal

Other receivables/advances

Ethos Limited

Satva Jewellery & Design Limited
Vardhan Properties and Investment Limited
Payables

Pylania SA

Kamla Tesio Dials Limited

Saboo Coatings Private Limited

Dream Digital Technology Private Limited
Guarantees taken *

Mr. R.K.Saboo

Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo

Security deposit taken

Ethos Limited

Guarantees given

Ethos Limited [refer note 32(c)

Pylania SA

Public deposits outstanding

Vardhan Properties and Investment Limited
Mrs. Asha Devi Saboo

Mrs. Shashi Agrawal

Interest on outstanding public deposit
Mrs. Shashi Agrawal

7,967,189

6,210,370

677,235

598,587,328
18,870,000

995,873

10,394,200

783,060

461,063
836,498

1,500,000

800,000

402,338,170
483,011,854

1,000,000
400,000

139,853

* Guarantees taken by the Company includes personal guarantees of Mr. R.K.Saboo and Yashovardhan Saboo for working
capital borrowings and term loans. The original sanctioned limits of working capital borrowings and term loans by the
continuing banks has been disclosed above. However, at the reporting date, the sanctioned limits of working capital
borrowings and the balance amount of term loans in respect of which personal guarantees have been given stands at Rs
216,716,562 of Mr. R.K.Saboo and Rs 297,390,248 of Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo.
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KDDL Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information for the year ended 31 March 2017

(All amounts in rupees, unless stated otherwise)

34. Disclosures pursuant to Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013:

As at
31 March 2017

As at

31 March 2016

a) Loans and advances
Loan to subsidiary: Pylania SA
Balance as at the year end -
Maximum amount outstanding at any time during the year -
(Pylania SA has utilised the loan for meeting working capital requirements)

Loan to subsidiary (erstwhile joint venture) :
Satva Jewellery & Design Limited

Balance as at the year end 10,394,200
Maximum amount outstanding at any time during the year 10,394,200
(Satva Jewellery & Design Limited has utilised the
loan for meeting working capital requirements)

b)  Investment *
Investment in subsidiary: Pylania SA
Balance as at the year end 18,280,558
Maximum amount outstanding at any time during the year 18,280,558
Investment in subsidiary: Ethos Limited
Balance as at the year end 346,540,264
Maximum amount outstanding at any time during the year 346,540,264
Investment in subsidiary: Mahen Distribution Limited
Balance as at the year end 69,807,200
Maximum amount outstanding at any time during the year 69,807,200
Investment in subsidiary: Kamla International Holdings SA
Balance as at the year end 38,351,064
Maximum amount outstanding at any time during the year 38,351,064
Investment in associate: Kamla Tesio Dials Limited
Balance as at the year end 2,000,000

2,028,300

10,394,200
10,394,200

18,280,558
18,280,558

196,540,570
196,540,570

63,403,600
63,403,600

38,351,064
38,351,064

2,000,000
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KDDL Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information for the year ended 31 March 2017

(All amounts in rupees, unless stated otherwise)

34. Disclosures pursuant to Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013:

As at

31 March 2017

As at

31 March 2016

Maximum amount outstanding at any time during the year
Investment in Company: Karolview Developers Private Limited
Balance as at the year end

Maximum amount outstanding at any time during the year
Investment in Company: Shivalik Waste Management Limited
Balance as at the year end

Maximum amount outstanding at any time during the year

c) Guarantees given
Guarantees given to subsidiary: Ethos Limited
Balance as at the year end

(Guarantees has been given for the purpose of
borrowings taken by subsidiary company)

Guarantees given to subsidiary: Pylania SA
Balance as at the year end

(Guarantees has been given for the purpose of borrowings
taken by subsidiary company)

2,000,000

5,000,000
5,000,000

175,000
175,000

547,364,168

175,525,00

2,000,000

5,000,000
5,000,000

175,000
175,000

598,587,328

18,870,000

* Investments are net off provision for diminution in the value of investment, other than temporary.
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KDDL Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information for the year ended 31 March 2017

(All amounts in rupees, unless stated otherwise)

35. Theinformation required by paragraph 5 of general instructions for preparation of the statement of profit
andloss as per revised schedule lll of Companies Act, 2013

A. Value of imported and indigenous raw materials and components and stores and spares consumed

For the year ended
31 March 2017

For the year ended
31 March 2016

Raw material and components

Amount Percentage Amount Percentage
Imported 153,179,848 52.40% 145,667,459 54.65%
Indigenous 139,165,913 47.60% 120,876,370 45.35%
292,345,761 100.00% 266,543,829 100.00%
Stores and spares
Imported 21,212,399 35.79% 26,525,267 42.94%
Indigenous 38,051,368 64.21% 35,243,027 57.06%
59,263,767 100.00% 61,768,294 100.00%
Value of imports on CIF basis

a) Capital goods 9,756,720 23,706,114
b) Raw material and components 150,457,242 121,103,609
c) Stores and spares 17,677,346 22,121,743

Expenditure in foreign currency (on accrual basis)
a) Travelling 3,226,611 3,768,526
b) Legal and Professional 18,119,786 6,161,569
c¢) Commission on exports 19,143,373 29,473,696
d) Employee benefit expense 9,567,358 23,070,076
e) Others 5,028,988 7,974,382
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KDDL Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information for the year ended 31 March 2017

(All amounts in rupees, unless stated otherwise)

For the year ended
31 March 2017

For the year ended
31 March 2016

D. Earnings in foreign exchange
FOB value of exports

Others

679,955,102

8,490,748

E. Net dividend remitted in foreign exchange during the year

Period to which it relates
Number of non-resident shareholders
Number of equity shares held on which dividend was due

Amount remitted

36. Earnings per share
Net profit attributable to equity shareholders
Profit after tax
Number of weighted average equity shares
Basic

Diluted

Nominal value of equity share (Rs)
Earnings per share-after tax
Basic

Diluted

71,474,910

10,312,319
10,321,209

10

6.93
6.93

730,154,371

6,002,071

2015-16
94
1,610,034
2,415,067

65,773,897

9,583,425
9,597,779

10

6.86
6.85

The calculation of Earning Per Share (EPS) as disclosed in the statement of profit and loss has been made in
accordance with Accounting Standard (AS)-20 on "Earning Per Share" as specified under section 133 of

Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (asamended).
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KDDL Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information for the year ended 31 March 2017

(All amounts in rupees, unless stated otherwise)

37. Leases

Operatingleases

The Company has leased some of its premises and some of its fixed assets to a third party under a lease
agreement that qualifies as an operating lease. Rental income for operating leases for the years ended 31
March 2017 and 31 March 2016 aggregate to Rs 4,535,719 and Rs 4,985,890 respectively.
The Company is a lessee under various cancellable and non-cancellable operating leases. Rental expense
for operating leases for the years ended 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016 was Rs 22,709,626 and Rs
22,993,871 respectively. The Company has executed non-cancelable operating leases. Expected future
minimum lease paymentsin respect of such leases are as follows:

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Year ending after balance sheet date:
Upto one year 18,720,757 5,676,707
One to five years 81,105,830 23,089,625
More than five years 18,155,192 443,372

38. Disclosure as per clause 32 of the listing agreement with stock exchanges

Loans and advances given to subsidiaries and associates:

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Maximum Balance Maximum Balance
Outstanding Outstanding Outstanding Outstanding

during the year  during the year during the year during the year

Satva Jewellery and Design Limited* 10,394,200 10,394,200 10,394,200 10,394,200
Pylania SA - - 2,028,300 -

* Loans are re-payable on maturity or demand, whichever is earlier.
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information for the year ended 31 March 2017

(All amounts in rupees, unless stated otherwise)

39. Disclosure as per Accounting Standard (AS) 27, 'Financial Reporting of Interests in Joint
Ventures’
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Total Assets - 13,335,486
50% share of the Company in Joint Venture - 6,667,743
Total Liabilities - 13,335,486
50% share of the Company in Joint Venture - 6,667,743
Income* 562,425 749,901
50% share of the Company in Joint Venture 281,213 374,951
Expenses* 2,638,855 3,533,466
50% share of the Company in Joint Venture 1,319,428 1,766,733
* Satva Jewellery and Design Limited ('Satva') has ceased to be joint venture of the Company and has
become wholly owned subsidiary of KDDL Limited pursuant to purchase of remaining shares of the other
venturer in the joint venture vide agreement dated 23 December 2016. Accordingly, transactions upto 23
December 2016 has been disclosed in note above.
40 In accordance with the provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act 2013, the Board of
Directors of the Company had constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility(CSR) Committee.
(a) Interms with the provisions of the said Act, the Company had to spend a sum of Rs 1,767,293 towards
CSR activitiesduring the year ended 31 March 2017.
(b) The details of amount actually spent by the Company are:
S.No. Particulars Amount Amount yet to Total
paid in Cash paid in Cash
(n Contibution to KDDL Ethos Foundation* 1,800,000 - 1,800,000
Total 1,800,000 - 1,800,000

* Qut of contribution made, Rs 945,000 has been spent by the KDDL Ethos Foundation on activities prescribed under
section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.
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41.
(a)

(c)

KDDL Employee Stock Option Plan- 2011 (‘ESOP 2011')

The Company has established an Employee Stock Option Plan (‘ESOP’) in accordance with the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme)
Guidelines, 1999 (‘Guidelines’) which has been approved by the Board of Directors and the shareholders.
A compensation committee comprising promoter executive and independent non-executive members
of the Board of Directors administer the ESOP. All options under the ESOP are exercisable for equity
shares. The Company planned to grant upto 110,000 options to eligible employees and directors of the
Company and subsidiaries of the Company. The outstanding options as on 31 March 2017 are 21,000.

Fifty percent of the options which have been granted under ESOP 2011 were vested on 1 April 2014 (“first
tranche’). These options were exercised by the employees and accordingly 39,750 shares were issued
during the previous years to the eligible employees. The balance options shall vest on the date when the
turnover (excluding excise duty thereon) of the Company would exceed Rs 1,500,000,000 (‘second
tranche’). The exercise period for the options is within six months from the date of vesting of the options.
Each option is exercisable for one equity share of Rs 10 each fully paid up on payment of exercise price of
share determined with respect to the date of grant.

The movementinthe schemeis set outasunder:

Particulars

ESOP 2011
Year Ended March 31, 2017

Weighted Aver-
age Excise Price

ESOP 2011
Year Ended March 31, 2016

Weighted Aver-
age Excise Price

Options Options

Number Amount Number Amount

Outstanding at the beginning of the year
Forfeited during the year

Expired during the year - -
Outstanding at the end of year

Number of equity shares of Rs 10 each
fully paid to be issued on exercise of option

Weighted average price remaining
contractual life (years)

24,750
3,750

120 39,750 120
120 - -
15,000 120
24,750 120
24,750 120

21,000
21,000

120
120

- First Tranche

- Second Tranche*

Not Applicable
Not Applicable

Not Applicable
Not Applicable

Not Applicable
Not Applicable

Not Applicable
Not Applicable

* The options under second tranche shall vest on the date when the turnover (excluding excise duty thereon) of the
Company would exceed Rs 1,500,000,000. Accordingly, the weighted average remaining contractual life (years) has been

considered to be not applicable.
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(d) Proforma Accounting for Stock option Grants

The company applies the intrinsic value based method of accounting for determining compensation cost
for its stock based compensation plans. Had the compensation cost been determined using fair value
approach, the company's net income and basic/diluted earnings per share as reported would have
reduced to the performaamounts asindicated :

For the year ended
31 March 2016

Particulars For the year ended
31 March 2017

1. Profit after tax as reported 71,474,910 65,773,893
2. Add: Stock based employee compensation (52,125) (83,164)
expense debited to statement of profit and loss
3. Less: Stock based employee compensation (291,900) (280,615)
expense based on fair value
4. Difference between (2) and (3) (344,025) (363,779)
5. Adjusted to proforma profit 71,130,885 65,410,117
6. Difference between (1) and (5) 344,025 363,779
7. Basic earnings per share as reported 6.93 6.86
8. Proforma basic earnings per share 6.90 6.83
9. Diluted earnings per share as per reported 6.93 6.85
10. Proforma diluted earnings per share 6.89 6.82

(e) The fair value of options, calculated by an external valuer for first and second tranche, was
estimated on the date of grant using Black and Scholes model using following significant

assumptions:
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Risk Free interest rate (in %) 8.50% 8.50%
Expected life (in months)* 88 88
Volatility (in %) 66.49% 66.49%
Dividend Yield (in %) 1.58% 1.58%

*The volatility of the options is based on historical volatility of share prices since the company's share are publicly
traded, which may be shorter than the terms of the options.
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(f)

Details of the weighted average exercise price and fair value of the stock options granted at price
below market price:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Total options granted outstanding 21,000 24,750
Weighted average exercise price (in Rs) 120 120
Weighted average fair value (in Rs) 87.13 87.13

42

The year end foreign currency exposures that have not been hedged by a derivative instrument
orotherwise are given below:

Amount outstanding Amount outstanding
31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Particulars  Units of foreign currency Amount (in FC) Amount (in INR) Amount (in FC) Amount (in INR)

Receivables
HKD 65,220 538,066 47,440 400,391
usb 231,340 15,112,025 182,797 12,024,406
EUR 22,418 1,576,566 21,547 1,597,513
CHF 1,482,432 96,802,813 1,368,817 92,614,158
GBP - - 528 49,665
Payables
HKD 281,204 2,364,922 367,613 3,161,472
usb 50,288 3,270,877 46,339 3,078,732
EUR 13,501 942,505 13,269 1,001,540
CHF 95,121 6,211,369 183,262 12,648,732
JPY 252,796 858,370 126,715 75,281
Commission payable
CHF 152,181 9,937,419 316,382 21,836,657
Buyer's credit
usb 420,600 27,381,060 320,900 21,320,596

Advances from customers

CHF 1,865 121,225 53,422 3,687,153
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Amount outstanding Amount outstanding
31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Particulars  Units of foreign currency Amount (in FC) Amount (inINR) Amount (in FC) Amount (in INR)

usD - - 27,592 1,839,333
Advances to suppliers
usD 8,666 577,672 17,730 1,166,310
SGD - - 12,236 591,986
EURO 15,459 1,100,320 31,116 2,306,919
JPY 206 12,484 64,950 38,587
CHF - - 4,358 294,895
SEK 3,679 28,700 - -
HKD 289,598 2,455,791 - -

Following are the forward contracts entered into by the Company, which are outstanding as at the year end, in respect of
unrecognised firm commitments:

Amount outstanding Amount outstanding

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Units of foreign currency No. of Contracts (in Foreign currency) (in Rupees) No. of Contracts (in Foreign currency) (in Rupees)
CHF - - - 6 600,000 42,475,000

43. Segment information, as required under AS-17 “Segment Reporting”, has been provided in the
consolidated financial statements of the Company and therefore no separate disclosure on segment
informationis given in these standalone financial statements.

44. As per the transfer pricing legislation under sections 92-92F of the Income Tax Act, 1961, the Company is
required to use certain specific methods in computing arm's length prices of transactions with associated
enterprises and maintain adequate documentation in this respect. Since law requires existence of such
information and documentation to be contemporaneous in nature, the Company is in the process of
appointing independent consultants for conducting a Transfer Pricing Study (the 'Study') to confirm that
the transaction with associate enterprises undertaken during the financial year are on "arms length basis".
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Management is of the opinion that the company's transactions are at arm's length and that the results of
the proposed study will not have any impact on the financial statments and that they do not expect any
transfer pricing adjustments.

45, Disclosure of details of Specified Bank Notes (SBN) held and transacted during the period from 8 November

2016 to 30 December 2016:
SBNS Other denomination Total
notes

Closing cash in hand as on 8 November 2016* 7,734,500 316,371 8,050,871
(+) Permitted receipts [refer note (ii) below] - 2,012,915 2,012,915
(-) Permitted payments - 1,699,927 1,699,927
(-) Amount deposited in banks 7,734,500 - 7,734,500
Closing cash in hand as on 30 December 2016 - 629,359 629,359

*Closing balance as on 8 November 2017 includes cash balance held with certain employees of the
Company

These are the notes to the financial statements referred to in our report of even date

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of KDDL Limited

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP Yashovardhan Saboo Sanjeev Masown

Chartered Accountants Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
and Vice-Chairman and Whole Time Director
(DIN: 00012158) (DIN: 03542390)

Per Lalit Kumar Raman Sood

Partner Company Secretary

(Membership No. F3722)
Place : Chandigarh
Date : 30 May 2017
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of KDDL Limited
Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

1.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of KDDL Limited (‘'the Holding
Company') and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as 'the Group')
and its associate company, which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2017, the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then
ended, and asummary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') that give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows of the
Group including its associate company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended). The Holding Company's Board of Directors and the
respective Board of Directors/management of the subsidiaries included in the Group, and its associate
company are responsible for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. Further, in terms of the provisions of the Act, the
respective Board of Directors/management of the companies included in the Group, and its associate
company covered under the Act are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assetsand for preventing and detecting frauds
and otherirregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. These financial
statements have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the
Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

Auditor's Responsibility

3.
4.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.

While conducting the audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and
auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of
the Actand the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the
Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the seconsolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial controls relevant
to the Holding Company's preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting
estimates made by the Holding Company's Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
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of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in
terms of their reports referred to in paragraph 9 of the Other Matter paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on these consolidated financial statements.

Opinion

8.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on
the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other
financial information of the subsidiaries and its associate company the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of
the Group and its associate company as at 31 March 2017, and their consolidated profit and their
consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Other Matter

9.

We did not audit the financial statements of three subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflect total
assets of Rs 2,214,770,176 and net assets of Rs711,823,176 as at 31 March 2017, total revenues of Rs
3,280,387,200 and net cash inflows amounting to Rs42,357,952 for the year ended on that date, as
considered in the consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial statements also include the
Group's share of net profit of Rs91,452 for the year ended 31 March 2017, as considered in the consolidated
financial statements, in respect of one associate, whose financial statements have not been audited by us.
These financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by
the management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the
amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and associate, and our report in terms of
sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries and associate, is
based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Further, we did not audit the financial statements of two foreign subsidiaries, whose financial statements
total assets of Rs 180,793,518 and net assets of Rs 108,054,865 as at 31 March 2017, and total revenues of Rs
119,176,237 and net cash inflows amounting to Rs6,752,292 for the year ended on that date, as considered in
the consolidated financial statements. These financial statements have been examined by other auditors
whose examination reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the
consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of
these subsidiaries, is based solely on such examination reports examined by other auditors. In our opinion
and according to the information and explanations given to us by the Management, these financial
statements are not material to the Group.

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements and our report on other legal and regulatory
requirements below are not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the
work done by and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements certified by the
management.

Reporton Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

10. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the reports of the

other auditors on separate financial statements and other financial information of the subsidiaries and
associates, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtainedall the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those
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c)

d)

books and the reports of the other auditors;
The consolidated financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the relevant books
of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements;

in our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014(as
amended);

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company and taken

f)

g)

on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the other statutory
auditors of its subsidiary companies and associate companycovered under the Act, none of the directors
of the Groupcompanies and its associatecompany covered under the Act,are disqualified as on 31 March
2017 from being appointed as adirector in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Holding
Company, and its subsidiary companies and associate company covered under the Act and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate reportin Annexure I; and

With respect to the other mattersto be included in the Auditor's Reportin accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the report of
the other auditors on separate financial statements as also the other financial information of the
subsidiaries and associates:

(i) The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated
financial position of the Group and its associatescompany as detailed in Note 34 (c) to 34 (e)to the
consolidated financial statements;

(i) The Group andits associatecompany did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

(iii) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company, and its subsidiary companies and associate
company and jointly controlled companiescovered under the Act; and

(iv) These consolidated financial statements have made requisite disclosures as to holdings as well as
dealings in specified bank notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 by
the Holding Company, and its subsidiary companies and its associate companycovered under the
Act. Based on the audit procedures performed and taking into consideration the information and
explanations given to us and on consideration of the reports of the other auditors on separate
financial statements and other financial information, in our opinion, these disclosures are in
accordance with the books of account maintained by the respective companies.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

per Lalit Kumar

Partner

Membership No.:095256

Place: Chandigarh
Date:30May 2017
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Annexure | to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of KDDL Limited, on the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Annexurel

Independent Auditor's report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

1.

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of theKDDL Limited(“the Holding
Company”) and its subsidiaries, (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the
Group”), and its associate as of and for the year ended 31 March 2017, we have audited the internal financial
controls over financial reporting (IFCoFR) of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and its associate
company, which are companiesincorporated in India, as of that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2.

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companiesand its associate
company, which are companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on IFCoFR criteria established by the Group considering the essential
components of internal financial controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting (the 'Guidance Note') issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the
company's business, including adherence to the company's policies, the safeguarding of the company's
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors' Responsibility

3.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the IFCoFR of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies
and its associate company as aforesaid, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India(ICAl) and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of IFCoFRand the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”), issued by the
ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate IFCoFR were established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the IFCoFRand
their operating effectiveness.Our audit of IFCoFR included obtaining an understanding of IFCoFR, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud orerror.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors
in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the IFCoFR of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and its
associate company as aforesaid.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

6.

A company's IFCoFR is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's IFCoFR includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
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Annexure | to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of KDDL Limited, on the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

7.

Because of the inherent limitations of IFCoFR, including the possibility of collusion orimproper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the IFCoFR to future periods are subject to the risk that the IFCoFR may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8.

In our opinion, the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies andits associate company, which are
companies incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as
at 31 March 2017, based on IFCoFR criteria established by the Group considering the essential components
of internal financial controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting (the 'Guidance Note') issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'").

Other Matters

9.

We did not audit the IFCoFR insofar as it relates to three subsidiary companies, which are companies
incorporated in India, whose financial statements reflect total assets of Rs 2,214,770,176 and net assets of
Rs711,823,176 as at 31 March 2017, total revenues of Rs 3,280,387,200 and net cash inflowsamounting to
Rs42,357,952 for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements.; and
one associate company incorporated in India, in respect of which, the Group's share of net profit of
Rs91,452for the year ended 31 March 2017 has been considered in the consolidated financial statements.
Ourreportonthe adequacy and operating effectiveness of the IFCoFR for the Holding Company, its subsidiary
companies andits associate company, which are companies incorporated in India, under Section 143(3)(i) of
the Act insofar as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, associate and jointly controlled company, which are
companies incorporated in India, is solely based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such
companies. Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter with respect to our reliance on the
work done by and the reports of the other auditors.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

per Lalit Kumar
Partner
Membership No.:095256

Place: Chandigarh
Date: 30May2017
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Consolidated Balance sheet as at 31 March 2017

(All amounts in rupees, unless stated otherwise)

Notes As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders' funds
Share capital 2 109,267,260 101,720,100
Reserves and surplus 3 875,357,922 717,251,532
Money received against share warrants 4 25,078,602 -
1,009,703,784 818,971,632
Minority interest 361,332,963 337,943,549
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings 5 363,693,353 330,489,059
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 6 35,243,714 30,604,664
Other long term liabilities 7 31,001,337 28,102,850
Long-term provisions 8 29,324,244 35,949,580
459,262,648 425,146,153
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings 9 591,351,373 681,588,671
Trade payables 10
- Payable to micro enterprises and small enterprises 7,269,656 4,507,070
-Other payables 708,819,573 773,229,141
Other current liabilities 11 401,126,120 340,094,748
Short-term provisions 12 30,026,584 34,629,971
1,738,593,306 1,834,049,601
Total 3,568,892,701 3,416,110,935
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Fixed assets 13
Tangible assets 779,664,758 775,535,835
Intangible assets 10,733,657 15,223,404
Capital work-in-progress 48,125,459 29,524,034
Non-current investments 14 7,980,747 7,889,295
Long-term loans and advances 15 224,025,940 207,035,863
Other non-current assets 16 481,150 8,172,994
1,071,011,711 1,043,381,425
Current assets
Inventories 17 1,879,706,812 1,849,672,274
Trade receivables 18 296,216,363 258,586,869
Cash and bank balances 19 210,501,944 122,818,553
Short-term loans and advances 20 107,418,687 138,276,461
Other current assets 21 4,037,184 3,375,353
2,497,880,990 2,372,729,510
Total 3,568,892,701 3,416,110,935

Notes 1 to 50 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

Thisisthe consolidated balance sheet referred toin our report of even date.

Forand on behalf of the Board of Directors of KDDL Limited

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
(DIN: 00012158)

Per Lalit Kumar

Partner

Place : Chandigarh
Date : 30 May 2017

Yashovardhan Saboo
Chief Executive Officer and Vice chairman

Sanjeev Masown
Chief Financial Officer and Whole Time Director
(DIN: 03542390)

Raman Sood
Company Secretary
(Membership No. F3722)

U142




KDDL Limited (Consolidated)

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended on 31 March 2017

(All amounts in rupees, unless stated otherwise)

Notes For the year ended
31 March 2017

For the year ended
31 March 2016

REVENUE
Revenue from operations (gross) 22 4,605,719,796
Less: Excise duty 52,009,939
Revenue from operations (net) 4,553,709,857
Other income 23 32,340,106
Total revenue 4,586,049,963
EXPENDITURE
Cost of materials consumed 24 299,543,500
Purchase of traded goods 25 2,565,532,767
Change in inventories of finished goods and work in progress 26 (35,017,125)
Employee benefit expenses 27 605,398,228
Finance costs 28 143,728,978
Depreciation and amortisation expense 29 116,668,612
Other expenses 30 849,359,017
Prior period items 31 -
Total expenses 4,545,213,977
Profit before tax 40,835,986
Tax expense:
Current tax 34,883,715
Current tax - earlier years 515,572
Deferred tax 4,639,050
Deferred tax adjustment - earlier years -
Profit after tax before minority interest / share of profit in associate 797,649
Share in profit of associates 91,452
Adjustment for minority interest 5,634,487
Net profit for the year 6,523,588
Earnings per share(Nominal value of equity share Rs 10 each) 38

(1) Basic 0.63

(2) Diluted 0.63

Notes 1 to 50 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

4,542,164,570
44,372,944

4,497,791,626

46,262,797

4,544,054,423

266,158,290
2,680,182,189
(178,269,451)

570,292,165

150,150,076

112,270,662

863,305,833

923,071

4,465,012,835
79,041,588

36,590,335
(1,989,603)
8,004,555

(5,471,790)
41,908,091

128,872
11,017,271

53,054,234

5.54
5.53

Thisisthe consolidated statement of profit & loss referredtoin ourreportof evendate.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Per Lalit Kumar
Partner

Place : Chandigarh
Date : 30 May 2017

Yashovardhan Saboo

Sanjeev Masown

Forand on behalf of the Board of Directors of KDDL Limited

Chief Executive Officer and Vice chairman Chief Financial Officer and Whole Time Director

(DIN: 00012158)

Raman Sood

Company Secretary
(Membership No. F3722)

(DIN: 03542390)
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KDDL Limited (Consolidated)

Consolidated Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2017

(All amounts in rupees, unless stated otherwise)

For the year ended
31 March 2017

For the year ended

31 March 2016

A. Cash flow from operating activities:

Net profit before tax 40,835,986
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation expense 116,668,612
(Profit)/Loss on sale of fixed assets (net) -
Fixed assets written off 7,136,020
Expense on employee stock option scheme (52,124)
Finance costs 143,728,978
Interest income (11,738,615)
Provision no longer required, written back (7,823,851)
Bad debts and capital advances written off 226,155
Provision for bad and doubtful debts 597,300
Foreign exchange translation reserve arising on consolidation (3,719,782)
Operating profit before working capital changes 285,858,679
Adjustments for movement in:
Inventories (30,034,538)
Trade receivables (38,452,949)
Short-term loans and advances 30,857,777
Long-term loans and advances 7,559,919
Other current assets (69,904)
Other non-current assets 6,850,980
Trade payables (53,823,131)
Other current liabilities 57,519,564
Other long-term liabilities 2,898,487
Short-term provisions 817,814
Long-term provisions (6,625,336)
Cash flow from operating activities before taxes 263,357,362
Less: Income-tax paid (46,141,599)
Net cash flow from operating activities (A) 217,215,763

B. Cash flow from investing activities:

Purchase of fixed assets (including capital advances and (161,551,949)
creditors for capital expenditure)

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 4,165,651
Interest received 11,146,688

79,041,588

112,270,662
1,010,239
3,946,371
(83,164)
150,150,076
(6,245,673)
(13,831,004)
1,838,370
959,219
(1,303,041)

327,753,643

(162,709,630)
(13,009,762)
25,804,855
(17,563,426)
143,456
(6,878,189)
(57,284,355)
5,362,627
9,705,965
8,593,285
2,721,845
122,640,314
(63,456,324)
59,183,990

(165,513,125)

4,068,129
5,684,186

g




KDDL Limited (Consolidated)

Consolidated Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2017

(All amounts in rupees, unless stated otherwise)

For the year ended
31 March 2017

For the year ended
31 March 2016

Bank balances not considered as cash and cash equivalents

-Deposits (158,836,665) (147,713,643)
-Matured 125,280,917 132,991,896
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (179,795,358) (179,126,218)

C. Cash flow from financing activities:

Proceeds from issue of share capital (inlcuding premium) 199,999,740 299,999,000
Proceeds from issue of share warrants (including premium) 25,078,602 -
Share issue expenses (1,010,000) (15,083,603)
Proceeds to/from issue of shares to minority

- Equity shares (7,064,204) 33,437,566
- Preference shares - -
Proceeds from long-term borrowings (including current maturities) 157,348,690 286,803,841
Repayment of long-term borrowings (including current maturities) (121,523,282) (292,583,009)
Proceeds from short-term borrowings 44,287,494 44,057,000
Repayment of short-term borrowings (134,524,791) (70,933,549)
Finance costs paid (146,725,875) (147,165,400)
Dividend paid - (33,280,937)
Tax on dividend - (6,796,322)
Net cash flow from financing activities © 15,866,374 98,454,587

D. Netincrease/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 53,286,779 (21,487,641)

E. Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 64,317,667 85,805,308

F. Closing cash and cash equivalents (D+E) 117,604,446 64,317,667

Notes:

a) The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in Accounting
Standard 3 (AS-3) on "Cash flow statements" as specified under section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended).

b) Cash and cash equivalents include:

Cash in hand 10,321,042
Cheques and drafts in hand 4,377,331
Credit cards receivable 6,249,003
Balances with banks 94,688,125
Unpaid dividend accounts 1,968,945

117,604,446

24,591,744
2,631,078
10,207,511
24,366,756
2,520,578
64,317,667
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KDDL Limited (Consolidated)

Consolidated Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2017

(All amounts in rupees, unless stated otherwise)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Excluding the following:

- Deposits with maturity more than three months but 92,897,498 58,500,886

less than twelve months *
- Deposits with more than twelve months maturity 453,941 1,294,805
210,955,885 124,113,358
Less : Amounts disclosed as other non-current assets (refer note 15)  (453,941) (1,294,805)
Cash and bank balances 210,501,944 122,818,553

* placed as fixed deposits with banks for repayment of deposits as required under section 73 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (corresponding to section 58A of the Companies Act, 1956) and margin money for working capital and
termloans.

c) Negativefigures have beenshownin brackets.

d) Cash and cash equivalents include Rs 1,968,945 (previous year Rs 2,520,578) held in dividend accounts
whichis not available for use by the Company.

Notes 1to 50 form anintegral part of these consolidated financial statements

This is the consolidated cash flow statement referred For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of KDDL Limited
to in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP  Yashovardhan Saboo Sanjeev Masown

Chartered Accountants Chief Executive Officer and Vice-Chairman Chief Financial Officer and Whole Time Director
(DIN: 00012158) (DIN: 03542390)

Per Lalit Kumar Raman Sood

Partner Company Secretary

(Membership No. F3722)
Place : Chandigarh
Date : 30 May 2017
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KDDL Limited (Consolidated)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information for the year ended 31 March 2017

Significant accounting policies
Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of KDDL Limited (“KDDL” or the
“Parent Company” or the “Company”), its subsidiaries, associate and joint venture(till the date of
acquisition of remaining shares from joint venturer) (collectively referred to as “Group”).

The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary companies are combined on aline-by-line

basis by adding together the book values of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after
fullyeliminating intra-group balances and intra-group transactions in accordance with Accounting Standard
(AS)21 - “Consolidated Financial Statements”

Interest in Joint Ventures (till the date of acquisition of remaining shares from joint venturer) have been
accounted by using the proportionate consolidation method as perAccounting Standard (AS) 27 - “Financial
Reporting of Interestin Joint Ventures”.

In case of foreign subsidiaries, being non-integral foreign operations, revenue items are consolidated at
theaverage rate prevailing at the balance sheet date. All assets and liabilities are converted at rates
prevailing at the balance sheet date. Any exchange difference arising on consolidation is recognised in the
Exchange FluctuationReserve.

The difference between the cost of investment in the subsidiaries, over the net assets at the time of
acquisition of shares in the subsidiaries is recognised in the financial statements as Goodwill or Capital
Reserve, as thecase may be.

The difference between the proceeds from disposal of investment in subsidiaries if any and the carrying
amount ofits assets less liabilities as of the date of disposal is recognised in the consolidated Profit and Loss
Statementbeing the profit or loss on disposal of investment in subsidiary.

Minority Interest's share of net profit of consolidated subsidiaries for the year is identified and
adjustedagainst the income of the group in order to arrive at the net income attributable to shareholders of
theCompany.

Minority Interest's share of net assets of consolidated subsidiaries is identified and presented in
theconsolidated balance sheet separate from liabilities and the equity of the Company's shareholders.

Investment in Associate Companies has been accounted under the equity method as per
AccountingStandard (AS) 23 - “Accounting for Investments in Associates in Consolidated Financial
Statements”.

The difference between the cost of investment in the associates and the share of net assets at the time
ofacquisition of shares in the associates is identified in the financial statements as Goodwill or
CapitalReserveas the case may be.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies forlike transactions
and other eventsin similar circumstances and are presented in the same manner as theCompany's separate
financial statements.
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KDDL Limited (Consolidated)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information for the year ended 31 March 2017

b)

d)

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on a going concern
basis, on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principlesin
India (Indian GAAP). Indian GAAP comprises mandatory accounting standards as specified under Section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act'), read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014(as
amended) and other accounting pronouncements of The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Revised Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on
the nature of services and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in
cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the
purpose of current/ non-current classification of its assets and liabilities.

Use of estimates

In preparing the Group's financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in India, the management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised in the period the same is
determined.

Revenuerecognition

a) Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards in respect of
ownership of the goods are transferred to the customer and is stated inclusive of excise duty, net of
trade discounts, sales return and sales tax wherever applicable.

b) Commissionfrom sale of goods, received on consignment basis, is recognised on accrual basis.

c) Exportentitlements under the Duty Entitlement Pass Book scheme are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss when the right to receive credit as per the terms of the scheme is established in respect
of the exports made.

d) Revenueinrespect of tool development and job charges is recognised as per the terms of the contract
with the customers.

e) Interestincome is recognized on a time proportion basis, taking into account the amount outstanding
and the rates applicable.

f)  Dividendincomeisrecognized whenthe Company's right to receive the same is established.

e) Fixedassets

Tangible assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost (gross block) less accumulated depreciation and adjusted for impairment
losses. Cost comprises the purchase price (net of Cenvat credit availed) and any attributable cost of bringing
the asset toits working condition forits intended use.
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KDDL Limited (Consolidated)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information for the year ended 31 March 2017

Expenditure on account of modification / alteration in plant and machinery / building, which increases the
future benefit from the existing asset beyond its previous assessed standard of performance, is capitalized.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of fixed assets which necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalized.

Assets acquired on hire purchase are capitalised at the inception of the hire purchase agreement. Interest
costis charged to statement of profitand loss on accrual basis.

Intangible assets

f)

Intangible assets are stated at cost (gross block) less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if
any. Cost comprises the purchase price (net of cenvat credit availed) and any attributable cost of bringing
the asset toits working condition for its intended use.

Depreciation and amortization

Pursuant to the notification in Part Il of Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, effective from 1 April 2014,
the management has reassessed and changed, wherever necessary the useful lives to compute
depreciation, to conform to the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on fixed assets for
year ended 31March 2017 is provided on straight line method based on life prescribed as per Schedule Il of
the CompaniesAct, 2013.

Block of asset Useful life as per Companies Act,
2013 (in years)

Buildings 30-60

Plant and machinery 15

Furniture and fixture 10

Office equipment 5

Computers 3

Vehicles 8-10

Depreciation on improvements carried out on buildings taken on lease (included under buildings) is
provided over the period of the lease or useful life of the assets, whichever is lower.

Depreciation on a particular class of dies and tools manufactured by the Parent Company and put to use
after 1 April 2003 is provided over a period of 3 years.

The above rates of depreciation are indicative of the useful lives of the assets.
® Thecostofleaseholdlandis notamortised asthese are perpetualleases.
® Goodwillisamortised over a period of 5 years.

® Know-howisamortised over a period of four years.

Software isamortised over a period not exceeding six years.
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KDDL Limited (Consolidated)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information for the year ended 31 March 2017

g)

For Pylania SA(foreign subsidiary) depreciation charge is provided on straight line method based on the
estimated economic useful life of the assets using the rates stated below:

Description Rate
Buildings — factory 1.5% to 8.5%
Plant and machinery 10% to 15%
Office equipment 8.5% to 15%
Motor vehicles 48%

Inventories

Inventories are valued as follows:

1.

h)

Raw materials and components, stores and spares, finished goods and stock in process: At lower of cost or
netrealisable value.

Cost of inventoriesis ascertained on the following basis:

a) Raw materials and components and stores and spares cost includes material cost, custom duty, freight
and related direct expensesincurredin bringing the inventories to present location and condition. Cost
is determined on moving weighted average basis.

b) Goods purchased for re-sale—moving weighted average basis.

c¢) Work in progress is valued at raw material cost plus conversion costs depending upon the stage of
completion.

d) Finished goods are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is determined using moving
weighted average cost basis and includes the raw material cost plus conversion costs, packing cost and
other overheads costs incurred to bring the goods to their present location and condition.

Investments

Long-term investments (other than those accounted for using the equity method of accounting) are stated
at cost. Provision is made for diminution in the value of long-term investments to recognise decline, if any,
otherthantemporaryin nature.

Investments that are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than a year are classified as
currentinvestments. All other investments are classified as long term investment.

Employee Stock Option Scheme (ESOS)

Stock options granted to the employees under the stock options schemes are accounted atintrinsic value as
per the accounting treatment prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock
Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 ('Guidelines') and guidance note
on Employee share based payments issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Accordingly,
the excess of market price, determined as per the Guidelines and guidance note, of underlying equity
shares (market value), over the exercise price of the options is recognised as deferred stock compensation
expense and is charged to statement of profit and loss on a straight line basis over the vesting period of the
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KDDL Limited (Consolidated)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information for the year ended 31 March 2017

i)

k)

options. The amortised portion of the cost is shown under shareholders' funds
Foreign currency transactions

Investments in foreign entities are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of making the
investment. Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rates prevailing on the date of the
transaction. Monetary items denominated in foreign currency are restated at the rate prevailing on the
balance sheet date. Differences arising on foreign currency translations of transactions settled during the
year are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The foreign subsidiary has been identified as non-integral operations in accordance with requirement of
Accounting Standard 11 ('AS 11') 'Effect of change in Foreign Exchange Rates'. In accordance with AS 11, the
Financial statement of non-integral foreign operations are translated to Indian rupees as follows:

a) Allassetsandliabilities, both monetary and non-monetary are translated using the closing rate.
b) Revenueitemsaretranslated atthe respective monthly average rates.
c) Theresulting net exchange differenceis credited or debited to a foreign currency translation reserve.

Indian Rupeeisthe reporting currency of the Group. However, the local currencies of the overseas associate
and a foreign subsidiary (having operations integral to that of the Parent Company) are different from the
reporting currency of the Group. The translation of the results of the overseas associate and the foreign
subsidiary is performed as if the transactions of such entities had been those of the Parent Company itself.

Forward exchange contracts not covered under AS 11, that are entered to hedge the foreign currency risk of
highly probable forecast transactions and unrecognized firm commitments are marked to market at the
balance sheet date and exchange loss is recognised in the statement of profit and lossimmediately. Any gain
is ignored and not recognised in the financial statements, in accordance with the principles of prudence
enunciated in Accounting Standard 1- Disclosure of Accounting Policies.

The premium or discount arising at the inception of the forward contracts other than those entered into to
hedge the foreign currency risk of firm commitments or highly probable forecast transactions is amortised
as expense orincome over the life of the contract.

Any profit or loss arising on cancellation or renewal of forward exchange contracts is recognised as income
orexpense for the year.

Employee benefits
Short term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable/available within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as
short term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, bonus, etc are recognized in the statement
of profitand lossinthe period in which the employee renders the related service.

Post-employmentbenefits
a) Defined contribution plan

The company makes specified contribution towards employee provident fund to Employees Provident
Fund administered by the Regional Provident Commissioner. The Company's contribution to provident
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KDDL Limited (Consolidated)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information for the year ended 31 March 2017

m)

fund, being a defined contribution plan, is recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the financial year
towhichitrelates.

In respect of superannuation, the Company makes contribution to Life Insurance Corporation of India
(“LIC”) of an amount payable by the trusts to LIC, which is charged to the statement of profit and loss.

b) Defined benefit plan

Gratuity is a post-employment defined benefit plan. The present value of obligation for gratuity is
determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, less the fair value of plan
assets, together with adjustments for unrecognized actuarial gains or losses and past service costs. Gratuity
and superannuation funds are administered by trustees of independently constituted trusts.

Other long term liability

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the periodin
which the employee renders the related services are recognized as a liability determined based on actuarial
valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method at the balance sheet date.

Actuarial gains/losses

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
charged or credited to the statement of profit and loss in the year in which such gains or losses arise.

Taxes onincome
Tax expense comprises current tax and deferred income tax.
Current taxis determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year.

Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of current year timing differences between taxable income and
accounting income for the year and reversal of timing differences of earlier years. Deferred tax is measured
based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. In
respect of carry forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the
extent there is virtual certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such
losses can be realized.

Minimum Alternate tax ('"MAT') credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is
convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. In the yearin
which MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognised as an asset in accordance with the recommendations
contained in guidance note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the said asset is
created by way of a credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as MAT credit entitlement. The
Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT credit
entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay
normalincome tax during the specified period.

Earnings per share

The earnings considered in ascertaining the Group's earnings per share comprise the net profit or loss for
the year attributable to the equity shareholders. Earnings per share are computed using the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the year.
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KDDL Limited (Consolidated)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information for the year ended 31 March 2017

0)

p)

q)

For the purpose of calculating diluted earning per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity share holders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are
adjusted for the effect of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Club Echo points

Club echo points accrued to the customer as a part of the loyalty programme, is provided for based on
management's past experience.

Leases

Lease rentals in respect of assets taken under an operating lease are charged to the statement of profit and
loss on accrual basis.

In respect of assets given on operating lease, income is being recognised on a straight line basis over the
lease term.

Contingent liabilities and provisions

A provisionis created when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event that probably requires an
outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation at the reporting
date. A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present
obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible
obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no
provision or disclosure is made.

The Group does not recognize assets which are of contingent nature until there is virtual certainty of
realisability of such assets. However, if it has become virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits
will arise, asset and related income is recognized in the financial statements of the period in which the
change occurs.

Impairment of assets

The carrying values of assets / cash generating units are reviewed for impairment at each Balance Sheet
date in accordance with Accounting Standard— As 28 'Impairment of Assets' to determine whether there is
any indication of impairment by the management of the Group. If any indication of impairment exists, the
recoverable amount of such assets is estimated and impairment is recognised, if the carrying amount of
these assets exceeds their recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling
price and their value in use. Value in use is arrived at by discounting the future cash flows to their present
value based on an appropriate discount factor. When there is indication that an impairment loss recognised
for an asset in earlier accounting periods no longer exists or may have decreased, such reversal of
impairmentlossis recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, exceptin case of revalued assets.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and deposit with banks. The Company considers all highly liquid
investments with a remaining maturity at the date of purchase of three months or less and that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash to be cash equivalents.
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KDDL Limited (Consolidated)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information for the year ended 31 March 2017

s) Segmentreporting policies

The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with those of the Group with the
following additional policies for segment reporting:

a) Inter segment revenues have been accounted for based on the transaction price agreed to between
segments at estimated cost of the transferor segment.

b) Revenues and expenses have been identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the
operating activities of the segment.

c) Revenues and expenses, which relate to the group as a whole and are not allocable to segments on a
reasonable basis, have been included under “Unallocated corporate expenses”. Unallocated
corporate expense alsoincludes taxes and finance charges and other unallocable corporate expenses.

d) Assets and liabilities, which relate to the group as a whole and are not allocable to segments on a
reasonable basis, are shown as unallocated corporate assets and liabilities respectively.
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KDDL Limited (Consolidated)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information for the year ended 31 March 2017

(All amounts in rupees, unless stated otherwise)

As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
2. Share capital
Number Amount Number Amount
a) Authorised share capital
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 12,480,000 124,800,000 12,480,000 124,800,000
b) Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
() Issued 11,013,866 110,138,660 10,259,150 102,591,500
(ii) Subscribed and fully paid up 10,839,586 108,395,860 10,084,870 100,848,700
(iii) Shares forfeited 174,280 871,400 174,280 871,40
Total 11,013,866 109,267,260 10,259,150 101,720,100

a. The Parent Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 each. Each holder of
equity share is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Parent Company, holders of
equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the Parent Company, after distribution
of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the
shareholders.

b. Reconciliation of equity share capital

As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Number Amount Number Amount

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up
Balance at the beginning of the year 10,084,870 100,848,700 9,076,470 90,764,700
Add: Shares issued during the year 754,716 7,547,160 1,008,400 10,084,000
Balance at the end of the year 10,839,586 108,395,860 10,084,870 100,848,700

There is no movement in forfeited equity shares of Rs. 10 each, Rs. 5 paid up during the current and
previous year.

c. Shareholders holding more than 5% of equity share capital

Number Percentage Number Percentage
R. K. Saboo 2,058,460 18.99% 2,058,460 20.41%
Yashovardhan Saboo 1,509,530 13.93% 1,509,530 14.97%
Saif India V Fll Holdings Limited 1,008,400 9.30% 1,008,400 10.00%
Saif Partners India V Limited 754,716 6.96% - -
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KDDL Limited (Consolidated)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information for the year ended 31 March 2017

(All amounts in rupees, unless stated otherwise)

d. Shares reserved for issue under options and other commitments

Ason 31 March 2017, 21,000 (previous year : 24,750) equity shares have been reserved for issue under the
Employee Stock Plan of the company (Refer note 42).
e. Utlisation of proceeds received pursuant toissue of shares

During the current year, the Company has issued 754,716 equity shares of Rs 10 each on preferential
allotment of shares issued at the rate of Rs 265 per share (including security premium of Rs 255 each). The
Company has also received Rs. 2,5100,000 (twenty five percent of issue price) of 377,356 equity shares
warrants of Rs 10 each issued at the rate of Rs 265 per share warrant (including security premium of Rs 255
each). Theamount received has been utilised as follows:

Particulars Amount(Rs.)
Share issue expenses 1,010,000
Repayment of working capital demand loan 79,000,000
Repayment of term loan 8,349,390
Working capital requirements 115,662,268
Fixed deposit 20,000,000
Current account 1,078,342
Total 225,100,000

f. Sharesissued for consideration other than cash and buy-back of shares
The Company has notissued any shares pursuant to a contract without payment being received in cashinthe
current year and preceding five years. The Company has not issued any bonus shares nor has there been any
buy-back of sharesinthe current year and preceding five years.

As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
3. Reserves and surplus
Central investment subsidy 2,500,000 2,500,000
State investment subsidy 3,000,000 3,000,000
Profit on re-issue of forfeited shares 9,125 9,125
Forfeiture of zero coupon convertible warrants 1,025 1,025
Capital reserve
Capital reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year 2,656,334 7,073,451
Add: Additions made during the year - 2,805,030
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KDDL Limited (Consolidated)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information for the year ended 31 March 2017

(All amounts in rupees, unless stated otherwise)

As at

31 March 2017

As at

31 March 2016

Add: Amount transferred from minority interest

Balance at the end of the year

Securities premium reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year

Add: Additions during the year

Less: Share issue expense

Less: Amount transferred to minority interest

Balance at the end of the year

Employee stock options outstanding
At the commencement of the year
Less: Options expired during the year*

Employee stock option at the end of the year (l)

2,083

2,658,417

584,348,245
192,452,580

(1,010,000)
(16,482,415)

759,308,410

344,238
(52,124)

292,114

Deferred employee stock option expense at the beginning of the year -

Less: Amortisation and other movements during the year*

At the end of the year (ii)

Employee stock option reserve (i)-(ii)

*Employee stock option recognised in statement of
profit and loss during the year (also refer note 22)

Foreign currency translation reserve
As per last balance sheet
Add: Adjustment during the year (also refer note 37)

Balance at the end of the year

General reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year

Add: Transferred from statement of profit and loss
Add: Adjustment for earlier years

Balance at the end of the year

292,114

(52,124)

(15,848,898)
(3,719,782)

(19,568,680)

177,619,619
20,000,000

197,619,619

(7,222,147)
2,656,334

301,510,261
320,649,600
(15,083,603)
(22,728,013)

584,348,245

552,525
(208,287)
344,238
125,123
(125,123)

344,238

(83,164)

(10,321,165)
(5,527,733)
(15,848,898)

154,952,889
20,000,000
2,666,730
177,619,619
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As at

31 March 2017

As at

31 March 2016

Deficit in the statement of profit and loss
Balance at the beginning of the year
Add: Transferred from statement of profit and loss

Less: Transfer to minority interest out of reserves

(49,105,681)
6,523,588
3,863,213

Add: Excess provision for dividend on cumulative preference shares reversed -

Add: Adjustment for earlier years

Less: Appropriations

Dividend on cumulative preference shares (refer note 45)
Interim dividend on equity shares

Tax on interim dividend on equity shares

Transfer to general reserve

Balance at the end of the year

Revaluation reserve
As per last balance sheet
Less: Transferred to minority interest

Balance at the end of the year

(23,470,753)

(20,000,000)

(82,189,633)

11,727,525

11,727,525

875,357,922

(49,172,393)
53,054,234
3,863,213
8,262,740
(2,666,727)

(24,239,185)
(15,127,997)

(3,079,567)
(20,000,000)

(49,105,681)

13,705,812
(1,978,287)

11,727,525

717,251,532

4. During the year, the Company issued 377,356 share warrants to be converted into 377,356 equity shares of
the face value of Rs. 10 each. These warrants were issued at Rs 265 per warrant (including securities
premium of Rs 255). Rs 66.25 per warrant has been paid by the allotte. Each share warrant is convertible into
one equity share of Rs 10 each on payment of remaining consideration on or before eighteen months from

the date of allotment of warrants.

As at

31 March 2017

As at

31 March 2016

5. Long term borrowings

Secured

Term loans

- from banks
- from others

71,990,276
177,446,946

155,506,303
104,944,032
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As at

31 March 2017

As at

31 March 2016

Vehicle loan
- from banks

Unsecured

Public deposit

- from related parties (refer Note 41)
- from others

Inter corporate deposits

- from related party (refer Note 41)

- from others

Loans

- from related parties (refer Note 41)
- from others

Secured

Term loans

- from banks
- from others
Vehicle loan

- from banks

Unsecured

Public deposit

- from related parties (refer Note 41)
- from others

Inter corporate deposits

- from related party (refer Note 41)

- from others

Loans

- from related parties (refer Note 41)
- from others

3,268,086

4,809,000
177,137,000

14,999,940
30,000,000

28,580,803
34,396,971

542,629,022
Less: Current maturities of long term borrowings (refer note 11)

29,458,000
32,961,497

1,241,458

1,000,000
41,297,000

14,999,940
10,000,000

13,580,803
34,396,971

178,935,669
363,693,353

a. Details of security and terms of repayment of term loans from banks

6,275,341

2,900,000
143,178,000

29,999,940
50,000,000

7,000,000

499,803,616

74,929,013
10,248,673

2,608,871

400,000
41,128,000

40,000,000

169,314,557
330,489,059

Term loans from banks amounting to Rs 71,990,276 (previous year Rs 155,506,303) are secured as under:

- Term loans from Bank of India taken by parent company amounting to Rs 18,629,248 (previous year
Rs 55,231,759) carrying interest rate of 2.95% over the bank MCLR are secured by way of first pari passu
charge on all the plant and machinery and furniture and fixtures of the Company excluding the fixed assets
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installed at packaging division at Chandigarh (KPAC), hands division at Bengaluru (KHAN-2), and the plant
and machinery and furniture and fixtures of dials division at Parwanoo (TTPA) acquired before 31 March
2005 and second charge on all the current assets (save and except the book debts) subject to the first charge
in favour of the Company's bankers for securing the working capital limits. The term loan is further secured
by way of first pari passu mortgage charge on land and building of dials division at Derabassi (KDER). The loan
includes construction loan for dials unit at Parwanoo (TTPA) which is secured by first pari passu charge on
land and building of TTPA. The term loans are also personally guaranteed by the Chairman Emeritus and
Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the Company.

- Term loans from IDBI Bank Limited taken by parent company amounting to Rs 10,708,000 (previous year Rs
12,110,411) carrying interest rate of 2.5% over the bank base rate and Corporate loan amounting to Rs
19,546,570 (previous year Rs 24,996,000) carrying interest rate of 3% over the bank base rate are secured by
way of first pari passu charge on all the plant and machinery and furniture and fixtures of KDER, tool room
division at Bengaluru (EIGEN) and hands division at Bengaluru (KHAN-1) and second charge on all the
current assets (save and except the book debts) subject to the first charge in favour of the Company's
bankers for securing the working capital limits. The term loan is further secured by way of first pari passu
mortgage charge on land and building of KDER. The term loans are also personally guaranteed by the
Chairman Emeritus and Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the Company.

- Term loan from Corporation Bank taken by parent company amounting to Nil (previous year Rs 23,089,207)
carrying interest rate of 5.5% over the bank base rate, was secured by way of first exclusive charge on all the
plant and machinery and furniture and fixtures of KHAN-2 and second charge on all the current assets (save
and except the book debts) subject to the first charge in favour of the Company's bankers for securing the
working capital limits. The loan is further secured by exclusive mortgage charge on land and building of
KHAN-1.

-Term loans from The Jammu & Kashmir Bank Limited taken by subsidiary, Ethos Limited amounting to Nil
(previous year Rs 12,816,981), carrying interest rate of 12.25% p.a. was secured by first charge on entire
fixed assets, both present and future, of the subsidiary. These limits are also secured by first charge on fixed
assets of KPAC unit at Chandigarh of Parent Company. Thisis further secured by the first and exclusive charge
over land and building, plant and machinery and office equipment of the Parwanoo unit of Parent Company,
excluding the assets purchased after 1 April 2005. These loans are also guaranteed by the Parent Company
andthe director of the subsidiary.

-Termloan taken by subsidiary, Pylania SA include loan taken from Bank of India amountingto Rs 17,882,459
(previous year Rs 18,306,000) is carrying interest rate of 12 months Euribor plus 3.45%. The loan is secured
against bank guarantee given by the Parent Company.

-Bank mortage taken by subsidiary, Pylania SA amounting to Rs 5,224,000 (previous year Rs 8,955,345)
carrying interest rate of 5.00% is secured against land and building situated in Pylania.

Repayment terms of term loans from banks (including the current maturities of long-term debt) are given as
under:

-Termloan from Bank of Indiaamounting to Rs 18,629,248 is repayable in 9 equal quarterly instalments of Rs
18,75,000 each and last instalment of Rs 17,54,248 commencing from 30 June 2017. The last instalment
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would be due on 30 September 2019.

- Corporate Loan from IDBI Bank Limited amounting to Rs 10,708,000 is repayable in 2 equal quarterly
instalments of Rs 3,572,000 each and last instalment of Rs 35,64,000 commencing from 30 June 2016. The
lastinstalment would be due on 31 December 2017.

- Corporate Loan from IDBI Bank Limited amounting to Rs 19,546,570 is repayable in 6 equal quarterly
instalments of Rs 2,812,500 each and last instalment of Rs. 2,671,570 commencing from 31 May 2017. The
lastinstalment would be due on 30 Nov 2018.

- Term Loan taken from Bank of India amounting to Rs 17,882,459 is to be repaid in a bullet repayment after
the bank guarantee is withdrawn by the Parent Company.

- Bank mortgage taken by subsidiary, Pylania SA amounting to Rs 5,224,000 is repayable in 4 quarterly
instalments of Rs. 1,306,000 each.

b. Details of security and terms of repayment of term loans from others
Termloans from others amounting to Rs 177,446,946 (previous year Rs 104,944,032) are secured as under:

-Term loan of parent company from Intec Capital limited amounting to Rs. 6,473,378 ( previous year Rs.
8,423,685) carrying fixed interest rate of 11.75% is secured by way of hypothecation of the specific asset
purchased out of proceeds of the loan. The loan is also personally guaranteed of Chairman Emeritus and
Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the parent company. The loan is to be repaid in 32 monthly installments as
per the repayment schedule in equivated annual installments commencing from 1 April 2016. The last
instalment would be repaid on 1 November 2019.

- Term loan of parent company from Tata Capital Financial Services Limited amounting to Rs. 50,859,400 (
previous year Rs. 54,250,000) carrying interest rate equal to LTLR less 7% (presently 11.25%) is secured by
way of first peri passu charge over the projectimmovable property and over movable fixed assets of Eigen 11,
situated at plot no. 55-A (Aerospace sector) Hitech, Devanahalli, Bangalore. The loan is also personally
guaranteed by Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the parent company. The loan is to be repaid in 45 monthly
installments of Rs. 1,130,200 and last instalment of Rs. 1,130,600 as per the repayment schedule in
equivated annual installments commencing from 25 April 2017. The last instalment would be repaid on 25
November 2020.

-Term loan of parent company from Tata Capital Financial Services Limited amounting to Rs. 42,750,000 (
previous year Nil) carrying interest rate equal to LTLR less 7.25% (presently 11%) is secured by way of
exclusive charge by way of mortgage over the factory Land & building of the borrower situated at 296 & 297
(South western Portion) 5th Main, 4th Phase, Peenya Industrial Area, Peenya, Bangalore and exclusive
charge by way of Hypothecation over the plant & machineries & other movable assets of KHAN Il situated at
408, 4th Main, 11th Cross, peenya Industrial Area, Bangalore 560058 ( Karnataka). The loan is also
personally guaranteed by Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the parent company. The loan is to be repaid in 19
quarterly installments of Rs. 22,50,000 as per the repayment schedule in equivated annual installments
commencing from 8 April 2017. The last instalment would be repaid on 8 October 2021.

-Term loan of parent company from Bajaj Finance Limited amounting to Rs. 40,000,000 ( previous year Nil)
carrying interest rate of 10.75% is secured by pari passu charge by way of hypothecation of equipment
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procured out of the term loan, Mortgage of Land & buliding at Bengaluru ( Plot No. 55-A, Aerospace Sector)
Hitech, Aerospace and Defence Park, Devanahalli, Bengaluru District. The loan is also personally
guaranteed by Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the parent company. The loan is to be repaid in 50 monthly
installments of Rs. 833,334 and last instalment of Rs. 6,25,000 as per the repayment schedule in equivated
annual installments commencing from 5 October 2017. The last instalment would be repaid on 5 November
2021.

- Secured loans from others (Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited) taken by subsidiary, Ethos Limited
amountingtoRs 37,364,168 (previous year Rs42,270,347), carrying interest rate of 12.75% p.a. are secured
by exclusive mortgage and charge on personal property of the director and relatives of the director of the
subsidiary. These limits are also guaranteed by the Parent Company, director of the subsidiary and relatives
of the director. The loan is repayable in 98 monthly installments of Rs 375,000 each, 10 monthly installments
of Rs 138,890 each and and lastinstalment of Rs 450,000 and Rs 211,111 as per the repayment schedule.

c. Details of security and terms of repayment of vehicle loans:

-Vehicle loans of parent from banks carrying interest rate in the range of 9.51% per annum to 12.25% per
annum are secured against hypothecation of specific vehicle purchased out of the proceeds of those loans.
Theloans are to be repaid as per the respective repayment schedule in equated monthly installments.

-Vehicle loans of subsidiary are secured against hypothecation of the specified vehicle purchased from
proceeds of the said loan. The rate of interest on vehicle loans varies from 11.5% to 12.7% per annum. The
above loans are repayable in monthly installments within a period of next two years (previous year three
years) as per repayment schedule.

d. Details of public deposits, ICDs and other unsecured loans:

-Inter corporate deposits taken by subsidiary, Ethos Limited from related parties amounting to Rs 14,999,940
(previous year Rs 14,999,940) carry an interest rate ranging between 14% to 16% per annum and are
repayable within 12 months.

-Inter corporate deposits taken by subsidiary, Ethos Limited from others amounting to Rs 30,000,000
(previous year Rs 50,000,000) carry an interest rate ranging between 12% to 14% per annum and the same
are repayable as per the repayment schedule within next two years.

-Unsecured loans taken by subsidiary, Ethos Limited from related parties amounting to Rs 7,000,000
(previous year Rs 7,000,000) carry an interest rate of 12.5% per annum and is repayable within 12 months.

- Unsecured loan from others taken by subsidiary Pylania SA, amounting to Rs. 34,396,971 (previous year Nil)
is repayable in full not later than 31 May 2017, subject to additional one year renewal after written consent
of the parties. Thisagreementis secured by the movable and immovable assets of the borrower.

- Unsecured loan from related party taken by subsidiary Pylania SA, amounting to Rs. 6,580,803 (previous
year Nil) is repayable before or on the expiry of the loan, i.e. 15 Jan 2018 subject to additional one year
renewal after written consent of the parties

-Public deposits of parent company carrying interest rates in the range of 8.5% per annum to 12.5% per
annum (previous year 8.5% per annum to 12.5% per annum) are repayable in 6 months to 3 years from the
respective dates of deposit.
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-Deposits from Shareholders carry interest rate ranging between 10.5% to 12.5% (previous year 11% to
12.5%) per annum and carries a maturity period from 12 to 36 months from the respective date of deposits

-Loan taken by subsidiary, Mahen Distribution Limited from related parties amounting to Rs 15,000,000
(previousyear Nil) carrying interest rate of 16% p.a. is repayable within two years.

As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016

6. Deferred tax liabilities (net)

Deferred tax liabilities

Timing difference on depreciation and (59,271,522) (57,728,272)
amortisation of tangible and intangible assets

Deferred tax assets*

Provision for bad and doubtful debts 304,263 314,440
Provision for warranties 558,497 380,500
Provision for employee benefits 7,779,018 11,493,777
Provision for bonus 4,987,121 5,209,057
Deferred lease rent payable 10,398,909 9,725,834
Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss 4,639,050 2,532,765

*In view of brought forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation, deferred tax asset of Rs 53,849,976
(previous yearRs 27,029,367) has not been recognised in the case of subsidiary company, Ethos Limited.

7. Otherlongtermliabilities

Security deposits from related parties (refer Note 41) 953,628 -
Deferred lease rent payable [Also refer note 30 (a) and note 31] 30,047,709 28,102,850
31,001,337 28,102,850

8. Long term provisions
Provision for employee benefits [Also refer note 8 (a)] 28,068,913 35,064,839
Provision for warranty [Also refer note 8 (b) and note 30] 1,255,331 884,741
29,324,244 35,949,580
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As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016

8 (a) Provision for employee benefits
(i) Defined contribution plan: Expenditure on account of 9,312,373 8,935,100

Superannuation Scheme with LIC of India in respect of its
employee provided in the statement of profit and loss

(ii) Defined benefit plan/ other long term benefit plans

a. Gratuity

b. Compensated absences

The following table set out the status of the plan for gratuity and compensated absences as required under
Accounting Standard (AS) - 15 (R) - Employee benefits and the reconciliation of opening and closing balances
of the present value of the defined benefit obligation:

As at
31 March 2017

As at
31 March 2016

Particulars Compensated Gratuity Compensated Gratuity
absences absences

Actuarial assumptions
Discount rate 8% 7% - 8% 8% 8%
Rate of increase in compensation levels 5% 5% 5% 5%
Rate of return of plan assets
-Holding company - 8% - 8%
-Subsidiary company - 7.55% - 9%
Demographic assumptions
Mortality rate
-Holding company Indian assured lives  Indian assured lives Indian assured lives Indian assured lives

mortality (1994-96) mortality (1994-96)

Ultimate

- Subsidiary company Indian assured lives  Indian assured lives
mortality (2006-08) mortality (2006-08)

Retirement age
Withdrawal rates

- upto 30 years
- upto 44 years
- above 44 years

58

3%
2%
1%

58

3%
2%
1%

mortality (1994-96) mortality (1994-96)
Ultimate

Indian assured lives Indian assured lives
mortality (2006-08) mortality (2006-08)

58 58
3% 3%
2% 2%
1% 1%

g




KDDL Limited (Consolidated)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information for the year ended 31 March 2017

(All amounts in rupees, unless stated otherwise)

As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Gratuity Gratuity
Change in the present value of obligation :
Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the year 52,887,209 47,663,632
Interest cost 4,158,688 3,805,236
Current service cost 5,033,587 4,691,387
Benefits paid/ payable (6,063,715) (5,691,817)
Actuarial loss/(gain) on obligations 2,663,534 2,418,771
Present value of obligation as at the end of the year W m
Change in the fair value of plan assets :
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 33,744,923 27,107,776
Expected return on plan assets 2,667,108 2,307,818
Contributions 18,681,037 10,121,388
Benefits paid (6,063,715) (5,691,817)
Actuarial gain on plan assets (45,146) (100,242)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 48,984,207 33,744,923
Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation and the fair value of assets
Present value of funded obligation as at the end of the year 58,679,303 52,887,209
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the period funded status 48,984,207 33,744,923
Unfunded net liability recognized in balance sheet* W m
* includes short term provision of Rs 3,384,607 (previous year Rs 3,278,623)
Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss:
Current service cost 5,033,587 4,691,387
Interest cost 4,158,688 3,805,236
Expected return on plan assets 1,962,910 1,551,678
Net actuarial loss recognized in the year 2,708,680 2,519,013
Total expenses recognized in the statement of profit and loss W m
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Notes:

1) Thediscountrateisbasedonthe prevailing marketyield of Indian Government bonds as at the balance sheet

date for the estimated terms of obligations.

2) The expected return is based on the expectation of the average long term rate of return on investments of

the fund during the estimated terms of obligations.

3) The estimates of future salary increases considered takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion

and other relevant factors.

4) Planassets mainly comprise funds managed by the insureri.e. Life Insurance Corporation of India ('LIC').

5) For Gratuity, the Company makes annual contributions to the Life insurance corporation of India ('LIC') of an

amountadvised by the LIC.

Amounts for the current and previous years are as follows:

Gratuity 2016-17 2015-16 2014-15 2013-14 2012-13
Defined benefit obligation 58,679,303 52,887,209 47,663,632 40,373,446 31,750,793
Plan assets 48,984,207 33,744,923 27,107,776 19,830,621 13,174,064
Net liability 9,695,096 19,142,286 20,555,856 20,542,825 18,576,729
Experience adjustment arising 2,663,534 2,418,771 1,563,011 4,906,345 3,396,074
on the gratuity benefits

As at As at

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

8 (b) Reconciliation of provision for warranty

Provision at the beginning of the year
Less: Provision utilised during the year
Add: Provision recognised during the year
Provision at the end of the year*

1,099,456
214,715
729,039

1,613,780

*includes short term provision of Rs 358,449 (previous year Rs 214,715)

8 (c) Movement in provision for points accrued under Club Echo Loyality Programme is as under:

Provision at the beginning of the year

Add: amount provided during current year

Less: amount utilised/reversed during current year
Closing provision

9,059,868
8,800,289
8,227,800

9,632,357

1,106,200
533,036
526,292

1,099,456

8,264,277
8,170,686
7,375,095

9,059,868
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As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
9. Short term borrowings

Secured [Also refer note 9 (a) below]
Working capital borrowings from banks 484,366,722 571,362,513
Working capital borrowings from others 30,000,000 -
Buyers credit 74,112,651 59,825,158

Unsecured

Public deposits 2,872,000 10,401,000
Loan from others - 40,000,000
591,351,373 681,588,671

a. Details of security of short term secured loans

Working capital borrowings of Parent Company amounting to Rs 24,771,909 (previous year Rs 109,257,143)
carrying interest rate varying from 9.10% p.a. to 13.50% p.a (previous year 11.10% to 14.35% p.a.) are
secured by hypothecation of stocks of stores and spares, raw materials and components, finished goods and
stock-in-process and book debts and other assets of the Parent Company (both present and future), on pari
passu basis except packaging unit (KPAC) and are further secured by a second charge on the entire fixed
assets of the Parent Company. These loans are also guaranteed by the Chairman Emeritus and Chief
Executive Officer (CEQ) of the Parent Company (except Corporation Bank) and are repayable on demand.

- Working capital borrowings of Parent Compamy amoutning to Rs. 30,000,000(previous year Rs. Nil) from
others carrying interest rate of 10.75% per annum are secured by first pari passu charge on current assets.
The loan is also personally guaranteed by the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the Parent Company and is
repayable on demand.

The cash credit overdraft facilities taken by subsidiary company, Ethos Limited amounting to Rs 190,978,951
(previous year Rs 168,095,724) and buyers' credit amounting to Rs 46,731,630 (previous year Rs
38,504,562) from IDBI Bank Limited are repayable on demand and are secured by first parri passu charge on
all the current assets of the subsidiary both present and future and second parri passu charge on the fixed
assets of the subsidiary both present and future. These limits are also secured by exclusive mortgage and
charge on all the immovable fixed assets of the tool room unit (Eigen) at Bangalore of the Parent Company.
These limits are guaranteed by the Parent Company and personal guarantees of director of the subsidiary
and hisrelative. The rate of interestason 31 March 2017is 11.85% perannum.

The cash credit and overdraft facilities taken by subsidiary company, Ethos Limited amounting to Rs
73,997,087 (previous year Rs 87,614,275) from The Jammu & Kashmir Bank Limited are repayable on
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demand and are secured by first pari passu charge on the stock and receivables of the subsidiary. These
limits are also secured by exclusive first charge on assets of KPAC unit at Chandigarh of the Parent Company.
This is further secured by the first and exclusive charge over land and building, plant and machinery and
office equipment of the Parwanoo unit of the Parent Company. These loans are also guaranteed by the
Parent Company and personal guarantees of the director of the subsidiary and his relative. The rate of
Interestason 31 March 2017is12.20% perannum.

The cash credit and overdraft facilities taken by subsidiary company, Ethos Limited amounting to Rs
194,618,975 (previous year Rs 206,395,371) from Bank of Maharashtra are repayable on demand and are
secured by first parri passu charge by way of hypothecation on entire current assets of the subsidiary. These
limits are also secured by 360,000 shares of KDDL Limited held in the name of Sh. Yashovardhan Saboo and
second parri passu charge on entire fixed assets of the subsidiary. Further, these limits are also guaranteed
by the Parent Company and director of the subsidiary and his relative. The rate of interest as on 31 March
2017is11.50% per annum.

- Buyers credit taken by parent company from Bank of Indiaamounting to Rs 7,981,222 (previous year Rs. Nil)
carrying interest rate 6 month libor plus .75% is secured against hypothecation of inventory and receivables
is repayable on demand.

- Buyers credit taken by parent company from IDBI Bank amounting to Rs 19,399,800 (previous year Rs.
7,707,040) carrying interest rate varying from 3 month libor plus .90% to 6 month libor plus 1.00% is secured
against hypothecation of inventory and receivablesis repayable on demand.

- Buyers credit taken by parent company from Corporation Bank amounting to Rs Nil (previous year Rs.
13,613,556) carrying interest rate varying 6 month libor plus 1.17% to 6 month libor plus 1.59% is secured
against hypothecation of inventory and receivablesis repayable on demand.

- Public deposits carrying interest rates in the range of 8.5% per annum to 12.5% per annum are repayable in
6 monthsto 3 years from the respective dates of deposit.

As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016

10. Trade payables
Dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises [Also refer note (a) below] 7,269,656 4,507,070
Due to related parties (refer Note 41) 34,141,163 13,909,585
Dues to others 674,678,410 759,319,556
716,089,229 777,736,211

Dues to micro and small enterprises pursuant to section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act (MSMED), 2006

On the basis of confirmation obtained from suppliers who have registered themselves under the Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act, 2006) and based on the information
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As at

31 March 2017

As at

31 March 2016

11.

available with the Company, the following are the details:
Principal amount remaining unpaid
Interest due thereon

Interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of
MSMED Act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment
made to the suppliers and service providers beyond the
appointed day during the year

Interest due and payable for the period of delay in
making payment (which has been paid but beyond the
appointed day during the year) but without adding the
interest specified under MSMED Act, 2006

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid as at end of the year

Further interest remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as
above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose
of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23
of the MSMED Act, 2006.

Other current liabilities
Current maturities of long-term debts

Public deposits

from related party (refer Note 5 and 41)

- from others

Inter corporate deposits

- from related party (refer Note 5 and 41)
- from others

Term loan (refer note 5)

- from banks

- from others

Vehicle loan from banks

Loans

- from related parties (refer Note 5 and 41)
- from others (refer note 5)

External commercial borrowings* (includes Nil (previous year
Rs 926,750) on account of exchange rate fluctuation)

{169 }

7,200,332
69,324
76,693

69,324

1,000,000
41,297,000

14,999,940
10,000,000

29,458,000
32,961,497
1,241,458

13,580,803
34,396,971
2,950,760

4,430,377
43,574

76,693

400,000
41,128,000

40,000,000

74,929,013
10,248,673
2,608,871

2,401,930
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KDDL Limited (Consolidated)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information for the year ended 31 March 2017

(All amounts in rupees, unless stated otherwise)

As at
31 March 2017

As at
31 March 2016

12,

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings** 13,220,225
Interest accrued and due on borrowings 4,755,469
Unpaid dividend
Unpaid dividend*** 1,968,945
Other payables
Statutory dues 48,555,367
Creditors for capital expenditure 7,420,094
Advances from customers 56,453,260
Forward contract payable 2,821,710
Employee related payables 84,044,621
401,126,120

16,217,122

2,520,578

46,059,154
7,486,981
25,706,602
1,656,455
68,731,369

340,094,748

*External commercial borrowing taken by subsidiary company Satva Jewellery & Design Limited amounting

toRs 2,950,760 (previous year Rs 2,401,930) is carrying interest rate of 2% above LIBOR.

**due torelated parties (Also refer note 41) 206,384

*** Not due for deposit

Short-term provisions
Provision for employees benefits [Also refer note 8(a)] 20,035,778

Provision for income tax [Net of advance tax and taxes -
deducted at source Rs. Nil (previous year Rs. 31,873,832 )]

Echo club provision [refer note 8 (c)] 9,632,357
Provision for warranty [Also refer note 8 (b) and note 30] 358,449
30,026,584

139,853

19,934,187
5,421,201

9,059,868
214,715
34,629,971
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KDDL Limited (Consolidated)
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KDDL Limited (Consolidated)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information for the year ended 31 March 2017

(All amounts in rupees, unless stated otherwise)

As at
31 March 2017

As at

31 March 2016

14.

15.

Non current investments

Trade investments

(valued at cost unless stated otherwise, unquoted)
Associates

300,000 (previous year 300,000) equity shares of
Rs. 10 each fully paid up of Kamla Tesio Dials Limited

Add : Share in opening reserves

Add : Share in current year profit

Aggregate value of trade investments (A)
Non trade investments

(valued at cost unless stated otherwise, unquoted)
500,000 (previous year 500,000 ) equity shares of

3,000,000
(285,705)
91,452

2,805,747

Rs. 10 each fully paid up of Karolview Developers Private Limited 5,000,000

17,500 (previous year 17,500) equity shares of Rs. 10 each

fully paid up of Shivalik Waste Management Limited

Aggregate value of non trade investments (B)

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments

Long term loans and advances

(unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)
Capital advances

Security deposits and other deposit

Prepaid income taxes [net of provision Rs. 122,551,490
(previous year Rs. 119,578,750)]

Other loans and advances

- Employee loans and advances

- Claim receivable (refer note 35)

Balances with government and statutory authorities

Prepaid expenses

175,000

5,175,000
7,980,747

7,980,747

22,218,689
101,974,680

65,812,997

6,640,154
17,000,000
9,920,023
459,397

224,025,940

3,000,000
(414,577)
128,872

2,714,295

5,000,000
175,000

5,175,000
7,889,295

7,889,295

2,989,804
113,460,828

60,491,886

4,638,633
17,000,000
7,705,489
749,223

207,035,863
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KDDL Limited (Consolidated)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information for the year ended 31 March 2017

(All amounts in rupees, unless stated otherwise)

As at
31 March 2017

As at
31 March 2016

16.

17.

18.

Other non current assets
Non-current bank balances (refer note 19)*
Insurance claim recoverable (refer note 49)

*pledged as security for bank guarantees

Inventories

(valued at lower of cost and net realisable value, unless otherwise stated)

Raw material [including scrap of Rs Nil (previous year Rs 504,412)]

Raw material (in transit)
Work-in-progress
Finished goods

Finished goods (in transit)

Stores and spares

Trade receivables

Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from
the date they are due for payment

- Unsecured, Considered good
- Unsecured, Considered doubtful

Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

Other debts

- Unsecured, considered good*

*includes due from related parties (Also refer note 41)

453,941 1,294,805
27,209 6,878,189
112,242,289 114,075,281
1,293,979 1,607,213
66,763,577 60,082,523
1,675,871,934 1,641,496,570
- 5,715,924

23,535,033 26,694,763
1,879,706,812 1,849,672,274
36,285,291 8,672,328
879,169 908,577
37,164,460 9,580,905
879,169 908,577
36,285,291 8,672,328
259,931,072 249,914,541
296,216,363 258,586,869
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KDDL Limited (Consolidated)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information for the year ended 31 March 2017

(All amounts in rupees, unless stated otherwise)

As at
31 March 2017

As at

31 March 2016

19. Cash and bank balances

Cash and cash equivalents

- Cash in hand 10,321,042
- Cheques and drafts in hand 4,377,331
- Credit cards receivable 6,249,003
- Balances with banks in current account [refer note (a) below] 94,688,125
- Unpaid dividend account [refer note (b) below] 1,968,945
Total cash and cash equivalents 117,604,446
Other bank balances
- Deposits with maturity more than three months but less 92,897,498
than twelve months [refer note (c) and (d) below]
- Deposits with more than twelve months maturity 453,941
[refer note © below]
210,955,885
Less : Amounts dislcosed as other non-current assets (refer note 16) 453,941
210,501,944

Notes:

24,591,744
2,631,078
10,207,511
24,366,756
2,520,578

64,317,667

58,500,886

1,294,805

124,113,358

1,294,805

122,818,553

a) includes Rs. 29,999,865 (previous year Rs. Nil) of the subsidiary company, Ethos Limited being the amount
unutilised out of equity shares issued on 31 March 2017 for Rs. 29,999,865 and will be utilised in the year

ending 31 March 2018.

b) Cash and cash equivalents of parent company include Rs 1,968,945 (previous year Rs 2,520,578) held in
dividend accounts which is not available for use by the Company.

¢) Rs 73,351,439 (previous year Rs 59,795,691) has been placed as fixed deposits by the parent company with
banks for repayment of deposits as required under section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 (corresponding to
section 58A of the Companies Act, 1956), margin money for working capital and term loans. Also Rs.
7,912,261 (previous year Rs. 95,11,244) has been pledged as security for bank guarantees by the subsidiary

company Ethos Limited.

d) Rs. 20,000,000 (previous year Nil) has been placed as fixed deposits with banks by the parent company as
security for term loan facility availed by the subsidiary company, Ethos Limited.
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KDDL Limited (Consolidated)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information for the year ended 31 March 2017

(All amounts in rupees, unless stated otherwise)

As at

31 March 2017

As at

31 March 2016

20. Short-term loans and advances

21.

(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)
Loans and advances to related parties

- Joint venture (secured) (refer note 41)
Recoverable from related parties

- Joint venture (refer note 41)

Entities in which signification influence is exercised (refer note 41)
Director of holding company (refer note 41)

Others

- Employees loans and advances*

- Security deposits

Advances recoverable

Prepaid expenses

Minimum alternate tax credit entitlement

Balances with government and statutory authorities

Advances to suppliers

*includes loan to Director amounting to Rs 5,000,000 (previous year Rs 5,175,000)

Other current assets
Interest accrued on deposits

Unamortised premium on forward contracts

13,227,272
36,485,685
10,094,773

188,846
30,479,308
16,942,803

107,418,687

3,170,134
867,050

4,037,184

5,197,100

391,530
72,000
800,000

24,419,124
41,957,973
2,175,886
12,564,736
188,846
34,459,554
16,049,712

138,276,461

2,578,207
797,146

3,375,353
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KDDL Limited (Consolidated)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information for the year ended 31 March 2017

(All amounts in rupees, unless stated otherwise)

As at
31 March 2017

As at

31 March 2016

22. Revenue from operations
Sale of products
Sale of services

Other operating income

- Provisions no longer required, written back*

- Export incentives
- Micellaneous receipt

- Commission income

* Includes reversal of excess provision of employee stock
options amounting to Rs 52,124 (previous year Rs. 83,164).

23. Other income
Interest income from
- Banks
- Related party (refer note 41)
- Others
Other non operating income
- Rent
- Profit on purchase of loan (refer note 37)
- Foreign exchange fluctuation gain (net)
- Miscelleanous income

- Profit on sale of fixed assets (net)

24. Cost of material consumed
Opening inventories
Add: Purchases during the year

Less: Closing inventories

4,493,155,912 4,433,251,888
52,907,008 46,420,519
7,875,975 13,914,168
25,409,410 21,274,313
26,255,573 26,090,806
115,918 1,212,876
4,605,719,796 4,542,164,570
6,137,241 5,058,848

- 300,000

5,601,374 886,825
1,646,766 784,006

- 32,991,656

16,716,787 6,088,478
2,219,009 152,984
18,929 -
32,340,106 46,262,797
114,075,281 123,841,048
297,710,508 256,392,523
112,242,289 114,075,281
299,543,500 266,158,290
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KDDL Limited (Consolidated)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information for the year ended 31 March 2017

(All amounts in rupees, unless stated otherwise)

As at
31 March 2017

As at

31 March 2016

25.

26.

27.

28.

Purchases of traded goods
Watches

Change in inventories
Opening stock

Finished goods

-own manufactured
-traded

Work in process

Scrap

Closing stock
Finished goods
-own manufactured
-traded

Work in process

Scrap

Impact of excise duty on opening/closing stock

Employment benefit expenses
Salaries and wages
Contribution to provident and other funds

Staff welfare expenses

Finance costs
Interest expense

Other borrowing cost

2,565,532,767 2,680,182,189
2,565,532,767 2,680,182,189
9,344,113 13,560,992
1,637,868,381 1,466,293,145
60,082,523 49,914,003
504,412 355,790
8,332,594 9,344,113
1,667,539,340 1,637,868,381
66,763,577 60,082,523

- 504,412

181,043 593,952
(35,017,125) (178,269,451)
538,747,816 506,380,764
38,080,633 35,409,087
28,569,779 28,502,314
605,398,228 570,292,165
135,555,975 142,828,411
8,173,003 7,321,665
143,728,978 150,150,076
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KDDL Limited (Consolidated)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information for the year ended 31 March 2017

(All amounts in rupees, unless stated otherwise)

As at

31 March 2017

As at

31 March 2016

29. Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation (Also, refer note 13)

Amortisation (Also, refer note 13)

30. Other expenses
Stores and spares consumed
Power, fuel and water charges
Contractual labour expenses
Insurance

Rent

- Office and factory premises [Also refer note (a) below]

- Machinery

- Others

Rates and taxes

Repair and maintenance
- Plant and machinery
- Buildings

- Others

Legal and professional [Also refer note (b) below]

Travel and conveyance

Job charges

Printing and stationery

Postage, telephone and telex
Subscription and annual fees
Selling and distribution expenses (Net)
Commission

Events and exhibitions

Publicity and advertisement
Loss on sale of fixed assets (net)
Fixed assets written off

Service tax expenses

Development charges

111,116,857 104,874,179
5,551,755 7,396,483
116,668,612 112,270,662
59,263,767 61,768,294
44,684,814 45,354,373
36,443,150 36,177,378
6,809,800 5,295,858
284,714,234 301,352,588
768,000 1,268,000
62,035 894,129
4,199,956 3,563,433
14,720,622 16,531,461
3,260,723 5,207,462
27,723,289 21,908,852
49,259,775 49,692,861
51,666,827 50,599,649
36,832,584 36,362,750
4,925,950 4,880,209
26,223,858 24,148,610
19,143,373 23,297,236
5,134,102 7,438,843
86,161,694 87,397,453
- 1,010,239
7,136,020 3,946,371
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KDDL Limited (Consolidated)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information for the year ended 31 March 2017

(All amounts in rupees, unless stated otherwise)

Provision for bad and doubtful debts
Donation
Bad debts written off

Bad debts and advances written off [out of provision for bad
and doubtful debts and provision for bad and doubtful capital
advances, Rs 191,125 debited to bad debts and advances written

off (previous year Rs 9,064,304)]

Amortisation of premium on forward exchange contracts

Provision for warranty (refer note 7 and note 8)
Bank charges
Directors' sitting fees

Loss on permanent dimunition in investments

Corporate social responsibility expense (refer note 46)

Net Foreign Exchanges Loss
Security service charges
Cost of service rendered

Miscellaneous expenses

Notes:

a)

As at As at

31 March 2017 31 March 2016
597,300 959,219
385,000 450,000
226,155 1,838,370
5,032,604 5,794,193
514,324 -
29,951,812 28,667,187
2,000,936 2,386,887
7,384,022 5,696,237
4,164,177 4,185,943
29,968,114 25,231,748
849,359,017 863,305,833

Rent - Office and factory premises include Rs 1,944,859 (previous year Rs 8,221,741) recognised on account
of straight lining of lease rent over the lease term in accordance with the provision of Accounting Standard

19'Accounting for leases'.

Legal and professional includes;

Payment to the auditors of Parent Company (excluding service tax)

As auditor
Others

Reimbursement of expenses

Payment to auditors of other group companies

1,550,000 2,350,000
205,000 790,000
209,882 123,370

1,964,882 3,263,370

2,573,772 3,014,871
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KDDL Limited (Consolidated)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information for the year ended 31 March 2017

(All amounts in rupees, unless stated otherwise)

As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
31. Prior period expenses
Interest income on income tax refund - (561,154)
Deferred lease rent [Also refer note 7 and note 30 (a)] - 1,484,225
- 923,071

32. Incompliance with Accounting Standard - 21 "Consolidated Financial Statements", Accounting Standard - 23
"Accounting for Investments in Associates in Consolidated Financial Statements" and Accounting Standard -
27 "Financial Reporting of Interests in Joint Ventures" (followed in previous year) referred to in the
Companies (Accounting Standard) Rule 2006 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 in
respect of Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the 'Act'), KDDL Limited ('KDDL') has prepared the
accompanying consolidated financial statements, which include the financial statements of KDDL, its
subsidiary, joint venture and the results of operations of its associates listed below:

a) Detail of the subsidiaries are as under:

Name of subsidiary Country of incorporation Percentage of ownership
Current year Previous year
Ethos Limited * India 81.77% 80.52%
Mahen Distribution Limited India 100% 100%
Pylania SA** Switzerland 85.00% 85.00%
Kamla International Holdings SA Switzerland 100% 100%
Satva Jewellary and Designs Limited*** India 100% 50%

* Include 18.56%(previous year 18.56%) held through Mahen Distribution Limited
** Include 47.25%(previous year 47.25%) held through Kamla International Holdings SA

*** Satva Jewellery and Design Limited ('Satva') has ceased to be joint venture of the Company and has
become wholly owned subsidiary of KDDL Limited pursuant to purchase of remaining shares of the other
venturer in the joint venture vide agreement dated 23 December 2016. Accordingly, transactions during the
year with Satva upto 23 December 2016 has been disclosed as transactions with joint venture and
transactionsincurred after 23 December 2016 has been disclosed as transaction with subsidiary company.

b) Detailsof associatesare asunder:

Name of associate Country of incorporation Percentage of ownership
Current year Previous year
Kamla Tesio Dials Limited India 30% 30%
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As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been based on a line by line consolidation of
statement of profit and loss and balance sheet of KDDL and its subsidiaries. The effects of inter-company
transactions between consolidated companies are eliminated on consolidation. Unrealised profit on unsold
stock, if any, is eliminated while valuing inventories. These eliminations have been considered in the
consolidated financial statement on the basis of figures provided and certified by the management and the
auditors have relied on the same.

d) Inaccordance with the applicable provisions of Accounting Standard - 23 on "Accounting for Investments in
Associates in Consolidated Financial Statements", equity method of accounting has been followed to
incorporate the results of the operations of the associates in the consolidated financial statements.

As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016

33. Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on 74,211,556 2,696,260
capital account and not provided for (net of advances)

34. Contingent liability not provided for exists in respect of :

a) Bank guarantees outstanding 663,477,528 51,295,028
b) Bonds in favour of central excise and customs authorities - 1,425,000
c) Demand raised for Service Tax against which appeals have been filed 4,794,535 1,834,596
d) Demand raised by Punjab State Electricity Board 372,818 372,818
for payment of penalty for usage of additional power
against sanctioned load. Amount paid under protest
Rs 372,818 (previous year Rs 372,818)
e) Demand raised for Income tax 41,174,274 94,594,389
(assessment year 2004-05 to assessment year 2012-13)
g) Surety bonds in favour of sales tax department - 100,000
h) Custom duty saved against EPCG licences, pending redemption 17,543,672 16,457,770
i) Claims against the Parent Company not acknowledged as 2,341,500 2,137,500
debt (to the extent ascertainable)
j) Otheritems 10,218,771 10,272,471
35. During the year 2011-2012, pursuant to the visit of the officers of Directorate general of Central excise

intelligence (DGCEI) in the premises of the Company on 18 August 2011, the company had reversed the
input service tax credit of Rs 17,000,000 availed by the Company in previous years. The above amount was
reversed as per the opinion of the officials of DGCEI. The Company, on the basis of legal opinion obtained, is
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36.

37.

of the view that the Company is entitled to this input service tax credit. Since, the amount was reversed
under protest and without prejudice to the legal rights of the Company, the Company has shown the above
amount of Rs 17,000,000 reversed as claim receivable under the head "Long term loans and advances".
During the financial year 2012-13, the Company had received a notice from DGCEIl whereby, the Company
had been called upon to show cause as to why service tax amounting to Rs 663,452 which had been short
paid and CENVAT credit amounting to Rs 24,276,671 wrongly availed should not be demanded and
recovered. The Company had filed the reply to the show cause notice with the Commissioner-Central Excise
and Service Tax, Chandigarh. The authority has confirmed the demand except Rs 663,452. Further , the
authority has imposed a penalty of Rs 24,276,671. Being aggrieved against the order of Commisioner-
Central Excise and Service Tax, the Company has prefered appeal with CESTAT and the matter is sub-judice
with CESTAT, New Delhi. Due to the pending adjudication of the appeal, liability on this account has not been
providedin the accounts.

The Parent Company is a lessee under various cancellable and non-cancellable operating leases. Rental
expense for operating leases for the years ended 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016 was Rs 22,709,626 and
Rs 22,993,871 respectively. The Company has executed non-cancelable operating leases.
Ethos Limited, a subsidiary company has taken showrooms under operating lease arrangements, with an
option of renewal at the end of the lease term and escalation clauses in some of the cases. Lease payments
(net of reimbursements) charged during the year to the statement of profit and loss aggregate Rs
254,809,069 (previous year Rs 260,701,564) [including Rs 72,154,926 towards cancellable lease (previous
year Rs 65,558,040)].

The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

Future minium lease payments due As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Within one year 149,331,547 160,991,298
Later than one year and not later than five years 304,161,125 393,186,116
More than five years 26,520,010 30,718,114
480,012,682 584,895,528

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the equity share capital of Rs.15,000,000 of the co-venturer Pascal
Vincent Vaucher SA in the Joint venture arrangement Satva Jewellery and Design Limited has been acquired
by the parent company at Nil value. On consolidation, such arrangement, led to generation of capital reserve
of Rs. 15,000,000 which have been disclosed under note 3.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, Heinz Kohler, one of the shareholders of Pylania SA (“Pylania”), a
subsidiary, who held 655 equity shares of the face value of CHF 100 each and had advanced loans of CHF
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38.

70,131.25to Pylania, entered into an agreement with KDDL Limited ("KDDL") to transfer entire shareholding
and loans so advanced to Pylania, at a total consideration of CHF 25,000. In terms with such agreement,
KDDL Limited, through its another subsidiary, Kamla International Holding SA (“KIH”) acquired such shares
and loans from Heinz Kohler. On consolidation, such arrangement, led to generation of capital reserve of Rs.
2,805,030, foreign currency translation reserve of Rs. 1,597,466 and gain on remission of liability towards
borrowings of Rs. 4,857,290 which have been disclosed under note 3 and note 22 respectively.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, RC Tritec, one of the shareholders of Pylania SA (“Pylania”), a
subsidiary, who held 1,475 equity shares of the face value of CHF 100 each and had advanced loans of CHF
489,785.55 to Pylania, entered into an agreement with KDDL Limited ("KDDL") to transfer entire
shareholding and loans so advanced to Pylania, at a total consideration of CHF 225,000. In terms with such
agreement, KDDL Limited, through its another subsidiary, Kamla International Holding SA (“KIH”) acquired
such shares and loans from RC Tritec. On consolidation, such arrangement, led to generation of foreign
currency translation reserve of Rs. 279,178 and gain on remission of liability towards borrowings of Rs.
28,134,366 which have been disclosed under note 3 and note 22 respectively.

As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Earnings per share

Net profit attributable to equity shareholders

Profit after tax and minority interests (Rs.) 6,523,588 53,054,234
Number of equity shares at the beginning of the year 10,084,870 9,076,470
Shares issued during the year 754,716 1,008,400
Total equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 10,839,586 10,084,870
No. of weighted average equity shares

Basic 10,312,319 9,583,425
Diluted 10,321,209 9,597,779
Nominal value of equity share (Rs.) 10 10
Earnings per share-after exceptional items and tax

Basic (Rs.) 0.63 5.54
Diluted (Rs.) 0.63 5.53

4




KDDL Limited (Consolidated)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information for the year ended 31 March 2017

(All amounts in rupees, unless stated otherwise)

39.

40.

During the year, following shares were issued outside the group:

- Ethos Limited issued Nil (previous year 200) equity shares of Rs. 10 each at a price of Rs Nil (previous
year Rs. 143).

- Ethos Limited issued Nil (previous year 56,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each at a price of Rs Nil
(previous year Rs. 100) and subsequently bought back by wholly owned subsidiary Mahen Distribution
Limited at a price of Rs Nil (previous year Rs. 229).

- Pylania S.A., issued Nil (previous year 3,000) shares of Swiss Franc (CHF) 100 each at a price of Rs Nil
(previous year Swiss Franc (CHF) 250).

Accordingly adjustments have been carried out to take the effect of minority interest in the consolidated
financial statements.

Segment information
Identification of segments:

The Group has disclosed business segment as primary segment. The Group’s operations predominantly
relate to manufacture of precision watch components and trading of watches and accessories. Other
business segments primarily comprising of ornament packaging are very small and are reported under
‘others' category. The segments have been identified taking into account:

-the nature and use of the products,
-the differing risks and returns,
-the organisation structure, and

-the internal financing reporting systems.

The secondary segments considered for disclosure are as follows:
- Sales within India include sales to customers located within India.

- Sales outside India include sales to customers located outside India.
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
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(All amounts in rupees, unless stated otherwise)
Note- 40 (cont'd)

Segment information - Primary segment (Business segment)
(Figures in parentheses are for the previous year)

Particulars Precision and watch components Watch and accessories Others Total
Revenue
Gross operating and other income* 1,300,744,163 3,274,860,159 46,200,938 4,621,805,260
(1,211,629,289) (3,286,341,037)  (46,703,685)  (4,544,674,011)
Results
Segment result 208,481,611 41,184,532 (2,153,355) 247,512,789
(269,467,540) (34,453,421) (5,552,561) (298,368,401)
Unallocated corporate expenses (net) (74,686,442)
(74,499,339)
Operating profit 172,826,347
(223,869,062)
Interest income 11,738,615
(6,245,673)
Interest expenses 143,728,978

(150,150,076)

Prior period expenses -

(923,071)

Current income tax 34,883,715
(36,590,335)

Current tax - earlier years 515,572
(1,989,603)

Deferred tax 4,639,050
(2,532,765)

Net profit 797,646

(41,908,091)

Other information

Segment assets 744,077,182 2,116,713,838 23,571,021 2,884,362,041
(813,459,559) (2,087,051,525)  (31,571,780) (2,932,082,864)

Unallocated corporate assets 684,530,661
(484,028,071)

Total assets 3,568,892,702

(3,416,110,935)
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
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Note- 40 (cont'd)

Segment information - Primary segment (Business segment)

(Figures in parentheses are for the previous year)

Particulars Precision and watch components Watch and accessories  Others Total
Segment liabilities 234,629,513  1,461,110,715 6,880,410 1,702,620,639
(195,126,175) (1,533,490,164) (13,480,918) 1,742,097,257
Unallocated corporate liabilities and loans 498,280,835
(517,098,497)
Total liabilities** 2,200,901,474
(2,259,195,754)
Capital expenditure 110,731,601 18,879,369 - 129,610,969
(135,590,477) (35,229,786) (246,853) (171,067,116)
Unallocated capital expenditure 13,385,624
(2,752,918)
Depreciation and amortisation 71,134,654 37,904,319 1,209,098 110,248,071
(66,349,778) (37,187,066)  (1,355,611) (105,522,455)
Unallocated depreciation and amortisation 6,420,541
(6,748,207)
Other non cash expenses 754,383 6,896,449 597,300 8,248,132
(914,121) (4,725,073) (959,219) (6,598,412)
Unallocated non cash expenses 451,822
(1,155,786)

*Excluding unallocated corporateincome Rs 4,516,027 (previous year Rs 37,507,683) and interestincome Rs
11,738,615 (previous year Rs 6,245,673). Segment revenues are gross of excise duty.

** Total liabilities do not include minority interest.
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Segment Information - Secondary Segment (Geographical)

The following tables present revenue and profit information regarding industry segments for the year ended
31 March 2017 and asset and liability information regarding industry segments at 31 March 2017.

(Figures in parentheses are for the previous year)

Secondary Segment information :

Particulars India Outside India Total
Segment revenue 3,885,586,620 736,218,640 4,621,805,260
(3,791,417,224) (753,256,787) (4,544,674,011)
Segment assets 2,778,695,678 105,666,363 2,884,362,041
(2,843,698,479) (88,384,385) (2,932,082,864)
Capital expenditure 127,790,530 1,820,439 129,610,969

(171,067,116) -

(171,067,116)

The segment revenue is net of discount, sales returns and price variations, gross of excise duty

41. Related party disclosures
A Relationships
I. Associates

Il. Joint venture

lll. Entities over which significant
influence is exercised by the
company /key management
personnel (either individually or with others)
Tarachand Mahendra Kumar (HUF)

Kamla Tesio Dials Limited

Satva Jewellery and Design Limited (till 23 December
2017)**

Saboo Coatings Private Limited

Vardhan International Limited

Vardhan Properties & Investments Limited
Smt. Kamla Devi Saboo Charitability Trust with others)
Saveeka Family Trust

Dream Digital Technology Private Limited
VBL Innovations Private Limited

Shri M.K. Saboo Charitable Trust
Yashovardhan Saboo (HUF)

Jan Seva Trust

Connexity Technologies Private Limited
Swades Capital LLC

KDDL Ethos Foundation
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IV. Key Management Personnel Relatives *
a. Mr. R.K. Saboo (Chairman) Mrs. Usha Devi Saboo (spouse),

Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo (son),

b. Mr.Y. Saboo Mr. R.K. Saboo (father),
(Chief Executive Officer) Mrs. Anuradha Saboo (spouse),
Mr. Pranav Shankar Saboo (son),

Mrs. Malvika Singh (son's spouse)

c. Dinesh Agrawal Mrs. Shashi Agrawal (spouse)
(Chief Operating Officer)

d. Mr. Sanjeev Kumar Masown Mrs. Neeraj Masown (spouse)

(Chief financial officer and Director) Mr Lal Chand Masown (father)

With respect to the key management personnel, disclosure has been given for those relatives with
whom the Company has made transactions during the year

** Satva Jewellery and Design Limited ('Satva') has ceased to be joint venture of the Company and has

become wholly owned subsidiary of KDDL Limited pursuant to purchase of remaining shares of the other
venturer in the joint venture vide agreement dated 23 December 2016. Accordingly, transactions during
the year with Satva upto 23 December 2016 has been disclosed as transactions with joint venture and
transactions incurred after 23 December 2016 has been disclosed as transaction with Subsidiary
Company.
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41. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

The following transactions were carried out with related parties in the ordinary course of business for the
yearended 31 March 2017

S.No. Particulars Associates Joint I_Entities ov_erwhich Key Relatives
Venture Significantinfluence Management of Key

is exercised Personnel  Management
Personnel

1 Purchase of raw material and components
Saboo Coatings Private Limited - - 2,654,783 - -
2 Sale of goods and services
Vardhan International Limited - - 13,715 - -
Saboo Coatings Private Limited - - 600,620 - -

Dream Digital Technology Private Limited 47,550 - -

3 Rent paid by the Company
Kamla Tesio Dials Limited 600,000 - - - -
Satva Jewellery & Design Limited 225,000 - - -
Saboo Coatings Private Limited - - 50,000 - -
Mr. R.K. Saboo - - - 600,000 -

Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo - - 2,054,040 -
Mrs. Anuradha Saboo - - - 300,000

Mrs. Usha Devi Saboo - - - - 120,000
4 Salary of employees paid
Saboo Coatings Private Limited - - 105,700 - -

5 Salary paid to relatives of KMP

Ms. Anuradha Saboo - - -
6 Director remuneration

Mr. R.K. Saboo - - - 2,988,516 -

Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo - - - 7,417,476 -
Mr. Sanjeev Masown - - - 4,644,222 -

605,054

7 Interest received

Satva Jewellery & Design Limited 225,000 - - -
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S.No. Particulars Associates Joint

Venture

Entities over which Key
significant influence Management

is exercised

Personnel

Relatives
of Key
Management
Personnel

10

11

12

13

14

Interest paid/accrued

Vardhan Properties and Investment Limited

VBL Innovations Private Limited - -
Saveeka Family Trust - -

Dream Digital Technology Private Limited - -
Mr. R.K. Saboo - -
Ms Neeraj Masown - -
Mr S.K. Masown - -
Mrs. Asha Devi Saboo - -
Public deposits accepted

Ms Neeraj Masown - -
Mr S.K. Masown - -
Rent received

Saboo Coatings Private Limited - -
Reimbursement of expenses paid by the Company

Satva Jewellery & Design Limited - 66,478
Expenses other than salary recovered by the Company
Kamla Tesio Dials Limited 96,567 -
Saboo Coatings Private Limited - -
VBL Innovations Private Limited - -
Dream Digital Technology Private Limited - -
Guarantee given

Mr. R.K. Saboo - -
Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo - -
Loans taken

Swades Capital LLC - -

Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo - -

1,692,688
2,399,999

799,989

1,477,536

343,469
192,038
845,494

34,396,971
6,580,803

875,000

42,677

220,000

20,000,000
20,000,000

105,127

125,000

120,000
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41. Related Party Disclosure (Continued)

The following transactions were carried out with related parties in the ordinary course of business for the
year ended 31 March 2017

S.No. Particulars Associates Joint Entities over which Key Relatives
Venture significant influence Management of Key
is exercised Personnel  Management
Personnel

15 Management consultancy fees paid

Dream Digital Technology Private Limited* - - 1,980,000 - -

16 CSR contribution made
KDDL Ethos Foundation - - 1,800,000 - -

* This figure includes an amount of Rs. 27,970,327 which has been reimbursed by brands.

S.No. Particulars Associates Joint Entities over which Key Relatives
Venture significant influence Management of Key
is exercised Personnel  Management
Personnel

Balances at the end of the year

1 Loans taken

Dream Digital Technology Private Limited - - 4,999,940 - -
Vardhan Properties and Investment Limited - - 10,000,000 - -
VBL Innovations Private Limited - - 15,000,000 - -
Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo - - - 6,580,803 -
Mr. R.K. Saboo - - - 7,000,000 -
2 Other receivables/advances
Saboo Coatings Private Limited - - 96,462 - -
VBL Innovations Private Limited - - 19,110 - -
3  Payables
Kamla Tesio Dials Limited 1,583,876 - - - -
Saboo Coatings Private Limited - - 984,193 - -
Dream Digital Technology Private Limited - - 30,496,055 - -
VBL Innovations Private Limited - - 1,077,039 - -
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S.No. Particulars Associates Joint Entities over which Key Relatives
Venture significant influence Management of Key
is exercised Personnel Management
Personnel

4  Security deposit taken

Saboo Coatings Private Limited - - 953,628 - -
5 Guarantees taken

Mr. R.K. Saboo - - - 695,347,467 -

Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo - - -790,347,467 -

Mrs. U. Saboo - - - - 37,364,168
6  Public deposits outstanding

Vardhan Properties and Investment Limited - - - 2,500,000 -

Mr. S.K. Masown - - - 420,000 -

Mr. Lal Chand Masown - - - - 389,000

Mrs. Neeraj Masown - - - - 1,500,000
7 Interest on outstanding public deposit

Mr Sanjeev Kumar Masown - - - 24,857 -

Mr Lal Chand Masown - - - - 47,415

Mrs. Neeraj Masown - - - - 134,076
8 12% Cumulative Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares

Mr. R.K.Saboo - - - 10,000,100 -

Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo - - - 9,999,000 -

Mrs. A.Saboo - - - - 2,500,080
9  14% Cumulative Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares

VBL Innovations Private Limited - - 2,600,000 - -

Dream Digital Technology Private Limited - - 5,000,060 - -

Mr. R.K.Saboo - - - 6,000,150 -

Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo - - - 2,500,030 -

Mrs. A.Saboo - - - - 1,500,070
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41. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

The following transactions were carried out with related parties in the ordinary course of business for
the year ended 31 March 2016

S.No. Particulars Associates Joint Entities over which Key Relatives
Venture significant influence Management of Key
is exercised Personnel  Management
Personnel

1 Purchase of raw material and components
Saboo Coatings Private Limited - - 2,725,516 - -
2 Sale of goods and services
VBL Innovations Private Limited - - 3,150,000 - -
Saboo Coatings Private Limited - - 101,727 - -
3  Rent paid by the Company
Kamla Tesio Dials Limited 800,000 - - - -
Satva Jewellery & Design Limited - 300,000 - - -
Saboo Coatings Private Limited - - 50,000 - -
Mr. R.K. Saboo - - 336,626 -
Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo - - - 1,805,085 -
Mrs. Anuradha Saboo - - - - 168,479
Mrs. Usha Devi Saboo - - - - 67,393
4  Salary of employees recovered

Vardhan Properties and Investment Limited - - 144,000 - -

5 Salary of employees paid
Saboo Coatings Private Limited - - 541,640 - -
6 Salary paid to relatives of KMP
Ms. Malvika Singh - - - 736,836
Ms. Anuradha Saboo - - - - 290,327
7 Director remuneration
Mr. R.K. Saboo - - - 4,158,064 -
Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo - - - 6,416,836 -
Mr. Dinesh Agrawal - - - 4,432,881 -

8 Interest received

Satva Jewellery & Design Limited 300,000 - - -
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S.No. Particulars Associates Joint Entities over which Key Relatives
Venture significant influence Management of Key
is exercised Personnel  Management
Personnel

9 Interest paid/accrued

Vardhan Properties and Investment Limited - - 1,483,005 - -

VBL Innovations Private Limited - - 2,231,673 - -

Saveeka Family Trust - - 45,890 - -

Dream Digital Technology Private Limited - - 802,181 - -

Mr. R.K. Saboo - - - 1,172,398 -

Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo - - - 170,000 -

Mrs. Shashi Agarwal - - - - 62,522

Mrs. Asha Devi Saboo - - - - 125,000
10 Public deposits accepted

Vardhan Properties and Investment Ltd. - - 300,000 - -

Mr. R.K.Saboo - - - 10,000,000 -

Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo - - - 5,000,000 -
11 Repayment of Public deposits

Saveeka family Trust - - 1,000,000 - -

Mr. R.K. Saboo - - - 10,000,000 -

Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo - - - 5,000,000 -
12 Repayment of inter-corporate deposits (ICD)

Vardhan Properties and Investment Limited - - 9,300,000 - -

VBL Innovations Private Limited - - 15,000,000 - -
13 Rent received

Dream Digital Technology Private Limited - - 12,000 - -

Saboo Coatings Private Limited - - 760,000 - -
14 Repayment of loans given by the Company

Mr. Dinesh Agarwal - - - 400,000 -
15 Reimbursement of expenses paid by the Company

Saboo Coatings Private Limited - 53,053 - -

Dream Digital Technology Private Limited - 19,033 - -
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S.No. Particulars Associates Joint Entities over which Key Relatives
Venture significant influence Management of Key
is exercised Personnel  Management
Personnel

16 Expenses other than salary recovered by the Company

Kamla Tesio Dials Limited 37,084 - - - -
Satva Jewellery & Design Limited - 87,942 - - -
Saboo Coatings Private Limited - - 331,232 - -
VBL Innovations Private Limited - - 235,947 - -
Dream Digital Technology Private Limited - - 925,568 - -

17 Guarantee given

Mr. R.K. Saboo - - - 27,500,000 -

Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo - - - 67,500,000 -
18 Loans taken

Vardhan Properties and Investment Limited - - 10,000,000 - -

VBL Innovations Private Limited - - 15,000,000 - -

Mr. R.K.Saboo - - - 7,000,000 -

19 Management consultancy fees paid
Dream Digital Technology Private Limited* - - 30,070,364 - -

20 CSR contribution made
KDDL Ethos Foundation - - 945,000 - -
21 Dividend paid
Shri R.K. Saboo HUF - - 1,572,865 -
Yashovardhan Saboo HUF - - 171,258 - -
Mr. R.K. Saboo - - 5,354,021 -
Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo - - - 5,104,296 -

Mrs. Usha Devi Saboo - - - - 1,579,130
Mrs. Anuradha Saboo - - - - 1,344,095

752,164

Mr. Pranav Shankar Saboo - - -

* This figure includes an amount of Rs. 24,489,434 which has been reimbursed by brands
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Balance at the end of the year

S.No. Particulars Associates Joint Entities over which Key Relatives
Venture significant influence Management of Key
is exercised Personnel  Management
Personnel

1 Loans and advances given
Satva Jewellery and Design Limited 5,197,100 - - -
Mr. Dinesh Agarwal - - - 800,000 -

2 Loans taken

Dream Digital Technology Private Limited - - 4,999,940 - -
Vardhan Properties and Investment Limited - - 10,000,000 - -
VBL Innovations Private Limited - - 15,000,000 - -
Mr. R.K. Saboo - - - 7,000,000 -
3  Other receivables/advances
Satva Jewellery and Design Limited - 391,530 - - -
Vardhan Properties and Investment Limited - - 72,000 - -
VBL Innovations Private Limited - - 2,757,694 - -
4  Payables
Kamla Tesio Dials Limited 995,873 - - - -
Saboo Coatings Private Limited - - 461,063 - -
Dream Digital Technology Private Limited - - 11,599,811 - -
Vardhan Properties and Investment Limited - - 314,316 - -
VBL Innovations Private Limited - - 538,521 - -

5 Guarantees taken
Mr. R.K. Saboo - - - 893,108,516 -
Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo - - -1,121,599,182 -
Mrs. U. Saboo - - - 42,270,347

6  Public deposits outstanding
Vardhan Properties and Investment Limited - - 1,500,000 - -
Mrs. Asha Devi Saboo - - 1,000,000 - -
400,000

Mrs. Shashi Agrawal - - -
7 Interest on outstanding public deposit
Mrs. Shashi Agrawal - - - - 139,853

&
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Balance at the end of the year

S.No. Particulars Associates Joint Entities over which Key Relatives
Venture significant influence Management of Key
is exercised Personnel  Management
Personnel
8 12% Cumulative Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares

42,

Mr. R.K.Saboo - - - 10,000,100 -

Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo - - - 9,999,000 -
Mrs. A.Saboo - - - - 2,500,080

14% Cumulative Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares

VBL Innovations Private Limited - - 2,600,000 - -
Dream Digital Technology Private Limited - - 5,000,060 - -
Mr. R.K.Saboo - - - 6,000,150 -
Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo - - - 2,500,030 -
Mrs. A.Saboo - - - - 1,500,070

Employee Stock Option Plans

I.
(a)

(b)

(c)

KDDL Employee Stock Option Plan- 2011 (‘"ESOP 2011')

The Company has established an Employee Stock Option Plan (‘ESOP’) in accordance with the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme)
Guidelines, 1999 (‘Guidelines’) which has been approved by the Board of Directors and the
shareholders. A compensation committee comprising promoter executive and independent non-
executive members of the Board of Directors administer the ESOP. All options under the ESOP are
exercisable for equity shares. The Company planed to grant upto 110,000 options to eligible employees
and directors of the Company and subsidiaries of the Company. The outstanding options as on 31 March
2017 are 21,000.

Fifty percent of the options which have been granted under ESOP 2011 were vested on 1 April 2014
(“first tranche’). These options were exercised by the employees and accordingly 39,750 shares were
issued during the previous year to the eligible employees. The balance options shall vest on the date
when the turnover (excluding excise duty thereon) of the Company would exceed Rs 1,500,000,000
(‘second tranche’). The exercise period for the options is within six months from the date of vesting of
the options. Each option is exercisable for one equity share of Rs 10 each fully paid up on payment of
exercise price of share determined with respect to the date of grant.

The movement in the scheme is set out as under :
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ESOP 2011 ESOP 2011
Particulars Year Ended March 31, 2017 Year Ended March 31, 2016
Options |Weight Average Options | Weight Average
excise price excise price
Number Amount Number Amount
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 24,750 120 39,750 120
Exercise during the year - - - 120
Forfeited during the year 3,750 - - -
Expired during the year - - 15,000 120
Outstanding at the end of year 21,000 120 24,750 120
Number of equity shares of Rs 10 each fully 21,000 120 24,750 120
paid to be issued on exercise of option
Weighted average price remaining
contractual life (years)
- First Tranche Not Applicable| Not Applicable | Not Applicable] Not Applicable
- Second Tranche* Not Applicable| Not Applicable | Not Applicable] Not Applicable

*The options under second tranche shall vest on the date when the turnover (excluding excise duty thereon) of
the Company would exceed Rs. 1,500,000,000. Accordingly, the weighted average remaining contractual life
(years) has been considered to be notapplicable.

(d) The fair value of options, calculated by an external valuer for first and second tranche, was estimated on the
date of grant using Black and Scholes model using following significant assumptions:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Risk Free interest rate (in %) 8.50% 8.50%
Expected life (in months) 88 88
Volatility (in %) * 66.49% 66.49%
Dividend Yield (in %) 1.58% 1.58%

* The volatility of the options is based on historical volatility of share prices since the company's share are
publicly traded, which may be shorter than the terms of the options.
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(e) Details of the weighted average exercise price and fair value of the stock options granted at price below
market price :

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Total options granted outstanding 21,000 24,750
Weighted average exercise price (in Rs) 120 120
Weighted average fair value (in Rs) 87.13 87.13

Il. KRL employees Stock Option Plan- 2011 ('KRL ESOP')

(a) In the annual general meeting held on 15 September 2011, the shareholders of the subsidiary company
Ethos Limited approved the issues of options not exceeding 84,000 options under the scheme titled "KRL
Employee Stock Option Plan-2011" ('KRLESOP').

The ESOP allows the issue of the options to eligible employees of the subsidiary. Each option comprises one
underlying equity share.

As per the scheme, the Compensation Committee grants the options to the employees deemed eligible.
The exercise price of each option shall be equal to the "Market Price" as defined in the Scheme. The options
granted vest as follows. Options may be exercised within two years of vesting.

1. 50 % of the options granted to the selected employee shall vest on 1 April 2014 in case there is
continuation of his service till the date of vesting

2.50 % on the first day of the financial year subsequent to the achievement of billing of Rs. 300 croresin any
financial year by the subsidiary, subject to the continuation of service till the date of vesting. However there
shall remain a gap of minimum one year between the date of grant and the date of vesting under this
clause. The compensation committee shall declare such date asand whenitis triggered.

The subsidiary company has in its Compensation Committee meeting on 4 January 2013 granted
outstanding 2,500 options to employee of the subsidiary company. The above options have been issued by
the Compensation Committee in accordance with the terms & conditions of the "KRL Employee Stock
Option Plan-2011" (ESOP).

In the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 10 March 2014 of the subsidiary company, the shareholders
approved the issue of options not exceeding 3,50,000 options under the Scheme titled "Ethos Employee
Stock Option Plan—2013"

The ESOP allows the issue of options to eligible employees of the subsidiary company. Each option
comprises one underlying equity share.

As per the Scheme, the Compensation Committee grants the options to the employees deemed eligible.
The exercise price of each option shall be equal to the “Market Price” as defined in the Scheme. The options
granted vest as follows. Options may be exercised within 3 years of vesting.

1. 50% of the options granted to the selected employee shall vest on 1st October,2017 in case there is
continuation of his service till the date of vesting.
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2. 50% on the first day of the financial year subsequent to the achievement of billing of Rs. 500 crores in
any financial year by the Company, subject to the continuation of service till the date of vesting. However
there shall remain a gap of minimum one year between the date of grant and the date of vesting under
this clause. The compensation committee shall declare such date asand whenitis triggered.

The subsidiary company has in its Compensation Committee meeting on 4 August 2014 granted
outstanding 3,500 options to employee of the Parent Company. The above options have been issued by
the Compensation Committee in accordance with the terms & conditions of the "Ethos Employee Stock

Option Plan—2013"
(b) The movementinthe schemeis set outasunder:

KRL ESOP 2011 KRL ESOP 2011

Particulars Year Ended March 31, 2017 Year Ended March 31, 2016

Options |Weight Average Options | Weight Average

excise price excise price

Number Number Number Number

Outstanding at the beginning of year - - 54,750 100

Granted during the year - - - -

Vested during the year - - 54,750 100

Exercised during the year - - 54,750 100

Lapsed during the year - - - -

Forfeited during the year - - - -

Expired during the year - - - -

Outstanding at the end of the year - - - -
KRL ESOP 2011 KRL ESOP 2011

Particulars Year Ended March 31, 2017 Year Ended March 31, 2016

Options |Weight Average Options | Weight Average

excise price excise price

Number Number Number Number

Outstanding at the beginning of year - - 1,250 110

Vested during the year - - 1,250 110

Exercised during the year - - 1,250 110

Forfeited during the year - - - -

Expired during the year - - - -

Outstanding at the end of the year - - - -
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KRL ESOP 2013 KRL ESOP 2013
Particulars Year Ended March 31, 2017 Year Ended March 31, 2016
Options |Weight Average Options | Weight Average
excise price excise price
Number Number Number Number
Outstanding at the beginning of year 231,500 120 261,500 120
Granted during the year - - - -
Exercised during the year - - - -
Forfeited during the year - - - -
Lapsed during the year - - 30,000 120
Outstanding at the end of the year 231,500 120 231,500 120

(c)

this model for calculating fair value are as below:

The fair value of the option has been determined under the Black-Scholes

model. The assumptions used in

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2017

Year ended
31 March 2016

Risk free interest rates (in %)
Expected life (in years)
Volatility (in %)

Dividend yield (in %)

8.50%/8.00%/7.60%/7.60%
3.55/2.24/4.56/4.16

8.50%/8.00%/7.60%/7.60%
3.55/2.24/4.56/4.16

lll. Proforma accounting for Stock Option Grants

The Parent company and the subsidiary applies the intrinsic value-based method of accounting for determining
compensation cost for its stock-based compensation plan. Had the compensation cost been determined using fair
value approach, the subsidiary’s net income and basic/diluted earnings per share as reported would have reduced to

the pro formaamountsasindicated:

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2017 31 March 2016
1. Net Profit as reported 6,523,588 53,054,234
2. Add: Stock based employee compensation expense (52,124) (83,164)

(credited)/debited to statement of profit and loss

3. Less: Stock based employee compensation expense based on fair value (291,900) 280,615
4. Difference between (2) and (3) (344,024) (363,779)
5. Adjusted to proforma profit 6,179,564 52,690,455
6. Difference between (1) and (5) 344,024 363,779
7. Basic earnings per share as reported 0.63 5.54
8. Proforma basic earnings per share 0.60 5.50
9. Diluted earnings per share as per reported 0.63 5.53
10. Proforma diluted earnings per share 0.60 5.49

*The effect of cumulative optionally convertible preference shares being anti dilutive in nature, dilutive EPS has not been

computed.
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43. Additionalinformation, as required under Schedule-Ill to the Companies Act, 2013 of entities consolidated as
Subsidiaries, Joint venture and Associate

Net Assets Share in profit/loss
As a percentage of As a percentage of
consolidated net Amount (Rs.) consolidated profit Amount (Rs.)
S.No. Name of the entity assets or (loss)
Parent Company

1. KDDL Limited 112% 1,128,043,841 1096% 71,474,908
Indian subsidiaries:

2. Ethos Limited 64% 646,561,622 -1147% (74,835,963)

3. Mahen Distributions Limited 7% 70,740,371 -35% (2,287,692)

4. Satva Jewellery and Design Limited -1% (5,478,817) 9% 612,225
Foreign subsidiaries

5. Kamla International Holdings SA 4% 41,568,362 12% 773,026

6. Pylania SA 7% 66,486,504 818% 53,385,090

7. Minority interest in all subsidiaries 36% 361,332,963 86% 5,634,487
Associate (as per equity method)

8. Kamla Tesio Dials Limited 0.08% 805,746 1% 91,452
Subtotal 229% 2,310,060,591 841% 54,847,533
Less: Effects of intercompany
eliminations/adjustments 129% 1,300,356,808 741% 48,323,945
Total 100% 1,009,703,784 100% 6,523,588

i
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44. The year end foreign currency exposures that have not been hedged by a derivative instrument or otherwise
are given below:

Amount outstanding as at Amount outstanding as at
31 march 2017 31 march 2016

Particulars  Units of foreign currency  Amount (in FC)  Amount (in INR) Amount (in FC)  Amount (in INR)

Receivables
HKD 65,220 538,066 47,440 400,391
usD 231,340 15,112,025 182,797 12,024,406
EUR 22,418 1,576,566 21,547 1,597,513
CHF 1,482,432 96,802,813 1,368,817 92,614,158
GBP - - 528 49,665

Payables
HKD 281,204 2,364,922 367,613 3,161,472
usD 50,288 3,270,877 73,419 4,870,903
EUR 13,501 942,505 13,412 1,012,289
CHF 2,514,042 163,102,607 1,146,936 79,219,347
JPY 252,796 858,370 126,715 75,281
SGD 43,962 2,041,164 70,959 3,487,641

Commission payable
CHF 152,181 9,937,419 316,382 21,836,657

Buyer's credit
uUsD 420,600 27,381,060 320,900 21,320,596

Advances from customers
CHF 1,865 121,225 53,422 3,687,153
usD - - 27,592 1,839,333

Advance to suppliers

usb 8,666 577,672 17,730 1,166,310
SGD - - 12,236 591,986
EURO 15,459 100,320 31,116 2,306,919
JPY 206 12,484 64,950 38,587
CHF - - 4,358 294,895
SEK 3,679 28,700 - -
HKD 289,598 2,455,791 - -
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Following are the forward contracts entered into by the Company, which are outstanding as at the year end, in
respect of unrecognised firm commitments:

Amount outstanding as at Amount outstanding as at

31 march 2017 31 march 2016

Units of foreign currency (in Foreign currency) (in Rupees) (in Foreign currency) (in Rupees)
CHF - - 600,000 42,475,000
usb 726,927 49,970,198 584,688 40,351,086

45. In terms with the provisions of Accounting Standard — 21 “ Consolidated Financial Statements ”, the Parent
Company has computed its share of losses after adjusting for the cumulative dividends on preference share
capital issued by the subsidiary companies, though, dividends have not been declared by such subsidiaries.
The details of the dividend adjusted during the yearis as follows :

Year Ended 31 March 2017 Year Ended 31 March 2016
Particulars Amount of divided  Divided per share Amount of divided Divided per share
12% cumulative compulsory convertible 12,720,140 13.20 13,488,572 12.51
preference shares
12% cumulative optionally convertible preference shares 600,600 7.80 600,600 7.80
14% cumulative compulsory convertible preference shares 10,150,013 18.20 10,150,013 18.20
23,470,753 24,239,185

- Arrears of fixed cumulative preference shareholders amounts to Rs 54,686,369 (previous year Rs 67,580,754)
has beenincluded in minority interest.

46. In accordance with the provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act 2013, the Board of Directors of the
Parent Company had constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee.

(a) In terms with the provisions of the said Act, the Parent Company had to spend a sum of Rs 1,767,293
towards CSR activities during the year ended 31 March 2017.

(b) The details of amount actually spent by the Parent Company are:

S.No.| Particulars Amount paid in Cash | Amount yet to be Total
paid in Cash

(i) Contribution to KDDL Ethos Foundation (refer note 41)* 1,800,000 - 1,800,000

Total 1,800,000 - 1,800,000

* Qut of contribution made, Rs 945,000 has been spent by the KDDL Ethos Foundation on activities prescribed under section
135 of the Companies Act, 2013.
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47.

Disclosures pursuant to Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013:

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016

48.

49.

50.

a) Loans and advances

Loan to joint venture: Satva Jewellery & Design Limited

Balance as at the year end - 5,197,100
Maximum amount outstanding at any time during the year - 5,197,100

(Satva Jewellery & Design Limited has utilised the loan for meeting
working capital requirements)

b) Investment *

Investment in associate: Kamla Tesio Dials Limited

Balance as at the year end 2,805,747 2,714,295
Maximum amount outstanding at any time during the year 2,805,747 2,714,295
Investment in Company: Karolview Developers Private Limited

Balance as at the year end 5,000,000 5,000,000
Maximum amount outstanding at any time during the year 5,000,000 5,000,000
Investment in Company: Shivalik Waste Management Limited

Balance as at the year end 175,000 175,000
Maximum amount outstanding at any time during the year 175,000 175,000

* Investments are net off provision for diminution in the value of
investment, other than temporary.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in compliance with clause 32 of the listing
agreement with stock exchange.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, a fire broke out in one of the stores of the subsidiary company (Ethos
Limited) located at Ambience Mall, Gurgaon, thereby resulting in a loss of Rs 2,781,525 on account of
damage to fixed assets (furniture and leasehold improvements) and Rs 4,096,664 on account of damage to
inventory. Consequently, the subsidiary company has filed an insurance claim with the insurance company.
Pending final acceptance of the amount by the insurance Company as at 31 March 2016, the subsidiary
company has recognised an amount of Rs 6,878,189 as receivable in the financials appearing under "Non-
currentassets"”, thereby having noimpact on profit and loss for the year. Any further changes to the insurance
claimamount will be accounted for once the amount gets finalized with the insurance company.

As per the transfer pricing legislation under sections 92-92F of the Income Tax Act, 1961, the parent company
is required to use certain specific methods in computing arm’s length prices of transactions with associated
enterprises and maintain adequate documentation in this respect. Since law requires existence of such
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information and documentation to be contemporaneous in nature, the Company is in the process of
appointing independent consultants for conducting a Transfer Pricing Study (the ‘Study’) to confirm that the
transactions with associate enterprises undertaken during the financial year are on an "arms length basis".
Management is of the opinion that the Company’s transactions are at arm's length and that the results of the
proposed study will not have any impact on the financial statements and that they do not expect any transfer

pricing adjustments.

There are the notes to the financial statements referred to in our report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Per Lalit Kumar
Partner

Place : Chandigarh
Date : 30 May 2017

Yashovardhan Saboo

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of KDDL Limited

Sanjeev Masown

Chief Executive Officer and Vice-Chairman  Chief Financial Officer and Whole Time Director

(DIN: 00012158)

(DIN: 03542390)

Raman Sood
Company Secretary
(Membership No. F3722)
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Mahen ) Kamla Satva
Sr.No.  Name of the Subsidiary Company Ethos Ltd. Distribution Ltd. Plyania S.A. Intern.at-ional Jewc.ellery &
Holding SA Design Ltd.

1. Financial/Accounting year of the 31.03.2017 31.03.2017 31.03.2017 31.03.2017 31.03.2017

subsidiary companies
2. Country of incorporation India India Switzerland Switzerland India
3. Reporting currency INR INR CHF CHF INR
4. Exchange rate to INR:

-Balance sheet CHF=Rs 65.30  CHF=Rs 65.30

-Profit and loss CHF=Rs 67.19  CHF=Rs 67.16
5. Share Capital(Incl. Advances towards 358,040,00 74,812,200 105,064,333 38,351,064 30,000,000

capital where applicable)
6. Reserves and surplus 288,521,582 (4,071,829) (38,577,830) 3,217,298  (35,478,817)
7. Total assets 2,113,957,312 87,900,295 139,225,156 41,568,361 12,912,569
8. Total liablities 1,467,395,692 17,159,924 72,738,655 - 18,391,386
9. Investments(other than subsidiaries) - - - - -
10. Turnover 3,275,676,174 1,688,468 117,981,957 1,194,279 3,022,558
11. Profit/(loss) before tax (74,835,963) (2,287,692) 53,804,383 846,773 612,225
12. Tax Expenses/(Credited) - - 419,293 73,748 -
13. Profit/(loss) after tax (74,835,963) (2,287,692) 53,385,090 773,025 612,225
14. Proposed dividend and tax therein - - - - -

Yashovardhan Saboo Sanjeev Masown Raman Sood

Chief Executive Officer
and Vice-Chairman

Chief Financial Officer

and Whole Time Director

Company Secretary
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PROXY FORM
(Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration Rules, 2014)
KDDL Limited
(CIN: L33302HP1981PLC008123)
Regd. Office: Plot No. 3, Sector-lll, Parwanoo, Distt. Solan (H.P.)
Tel. : +91 172 2548223/24, Fax : +91 172 2548302
Website : www.kddl.com, E-mail : investor.complaints@kddl.com

Name of the member(s)
Registered Address
E-mailid
Folio No./Client Id
DPID
I/We being the member(s) of shares of the above named company, hereby appoint
1. Name
Address
E-mail Id
Signature : ,orfailing him
1. Name
Address
E-mail Id
Signature : ,orfailing him
as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 37th Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held
on Friday, the 11th day of August, 2017 at 12:30 p.m. at Hotel Timber Trail Resorts, Parwanoo-173220 (Himachal Pradesh) and at any
adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as indicated below :-
Ordinary Business :
1. Adoption of the Audited Accounts of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2017 and the Reports of the Board of
Director’s and Auditors’ thereon.
2.  Declaration of divided on equity shares.
3. Appointment of a director in place of Mr. Vishal Satinder Sood, whoiis liable to retire by rotation.
4. Appointmentof M/sBSR & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants as the Statutory Auditors of the Company.
Special Business
5 Appointment of Jai Vardhan Saboo as Non Executive Director liable to retire by rotation of the Company.
6.  Appointment of Mr. SanjivSachal as an Independent Director of the Company.
7.  Authorizeamendmentin article no 114 of association of the Company.
8
9

Authorize inserting new article no 114-Ain article of association of the Company.
. Re-appointmentand remuneration of Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo with Designation of Chairman and Managing Director.
10. Authorizeinvestmentin subsidiary company
11. Approval of acceptance of deposits from shareholders under section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013

Signed this day of 2017
Affix
Revenue
Signature of shareholder Signature of shareholder Stamp
Note:

1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, not less
than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.

ATTENDANCE SLIP

(To be presented at the entrance)

KDDL Limited
(CIN: L33302HP1981PLC008123)
Regd. Office: Plot No. 3, Sector-Ill, Parwanoo, Distt. Solan (H.P.)
Tel. : +91 172 2548223/24, Fax : +91 172 2548302 Website : www.kddl.com, E-mail : investor.complaints@kddl.com

Follo No: DPIDNo.: ClientID No.
Name of the Member Signature
Name of the Proxy holder Signature

I, hereby record my presence at the 37th Annual General Meeting at Hotel Timber Trail Resorts, Parwanoo, Distt. Solan (H.P) on Friday, the 11th
day of August, 2017 at 12:30 p.m.

(Signature of Member/Proxy)
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KDDL Limited

SCO 88-89, Sector 8-C,
Madhya Marg, Chandigarh - 160 009
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